
JOINT COMMITIEE ON CAPITAL REVIEW 

Thursday, September 20, 2018 


10:00 a.m. 


House Hearing Room 1 


JLBC 




 

   
  

   

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
    

   
   

 

  

  

   

   

    

    
 

    

   

STATE OF ARIZONA 

Joint Committee on Capital Review 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES 1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH	 DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

JOINT COMMITTEE ON CAPITAL REVIEW
 
Thursday, September 20, 2018
 

10:00 A.M.
 
House Hearing Room 1
 

MEETING NOTICE
 

-	 Call to Order 

-	 Approval of Minutes of July 24, 2018. 

-	 DIRECTOR'S REPORT (if necessary). 

1.	 ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY 
A.	 Consider Approval of Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 Financing 

Project. 
B.	 Review of Information Technology (IT) Improvements Financing Project. 

2.	 PIMA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT - Review of Revenue Bond Project. 

3.	 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION/ARIZONA EXPOSITION AND STATE FAIR - Review 
of Funding for Cooling Units. 

4.	 ***ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS' SERVICES - Review of Veterans' Home Construction 
Projects. 

5.	 ***ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT - Review of FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation 
Plan and FY 2019 Capital Projects. 

6.	 ***ARIZONA PIONEERS' HOME - Review of FY 2019 Capital Improvement Projects. 

7.	 ***DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS - Review of Tucson Readiness 
Center. 

http:azleg.gov


    
 
  

    
 

  
 

       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

 
 

     
       

 

- 2 

8.	 ***ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - Review of FY 2019 Building Renewal 
Allocation Plan. 

***	 Consent Agenda - These items will be considered in one motion and no testimony will be
taken. 

The Chairman reserves the right to set the order of the agenda. 
9/12/18 
kp 

People with disabilities may request accommodations such as interpreters, alternative formats, or assistance with physical accessibility. 
Requests for accommodations must be made with 72 hours prior notice. If you require accommodations, please contact the JLBC Office at 
(602) 926-5491. 



STATE 
SENATE 

JOHN KAVANAGH 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 

SYLVIA ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD 
KA REN FANN 
STEVE FARLEY 
KATIE HOBBS 
KIMBERLY YEE 

STATE OF ARIZONA 

joint (!Committee on (!Capital l\ebiebl 
1716 WEST ADAMS 


PHO ENI X, ARIZONA 85007 


(602) 926-5491 

azleg.gov 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 


JOINT COMMITTEE ON CAPITAL REVIEW 


July 24, 2018 

HOUSE OF 
REPRESENTATIVES 

DAVID LIVINGSTON 
CHAIRMAN 

JOHN M. ALLEN 
LELA ALSTON 
MARK CARDENAS 
HEATHER CARTER 
VINCE LEACH 
REBECCA RIOS 

Chairman David Livingston called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m., Tuesday, July 24, 2018 in House 
Hearing Room 1. The following were present: 

Members: Senator Kavanagh, Vice-Chairman Representative Livingston, Chairman 
Senator Allen Representative Allen 
Senator Cajero Bedford Representative Alston 
Senator Fann Representative Cardenas 
Senator Hobbs Representative Carter 

Representative Leach 
Representative Rios 

Absent: Senator Farley 
Senator Yee 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Hearing no objections from the members of the Committee to the minutes of April 25, 2018, 
Representative Allen moved that the minutes be approved. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were considered without discussion: 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION (ADOA) - Consider Recommending FY 2018 Partial Rent 
Exemptions. 

A.R.S. § 41-792.0lD authorizes the Director of ADOA, on recommendation from the Joint Committee on 
Capital Review (JCCR), to grant a full or partial exemption from the payment of state-owned rental fees 

(Continued) 

http:azleg.gov


- 2 

if an agency has vacated its space or if an agency does not have the financial resources to make the 
payment. The Committee recommended a partial rent exemption of $(800) for the Department of 
Emergency and Military Affairs and a corresponding increase of $800 for the Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality in FY 2018. 

ARIZONA EXPOSITION AND STATE FAIR BOARD - Review of FY 2018 Capital Improvement 
Expenditures. 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires JCCR to review expenditure plans for capital projects prior to expenditure. The 
FY 2018 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2017, Chapter 306) appropriated $1,000,000 from the Arizona 
Exposition and State Fair Fund to the Arizona Exposition and State Fair (AESF) Board for capital 
improvements. AESF requested review of 10 capital projects with a total cost of $810,000. The JLBC 
Staff provided options and potential provisions: 

A. 	 AESF shall report to the JLBC Staff if the actual cost of any project included in the expenditure plan 
exceeds the estimated cost by more than 20%. 

B. 	 If an emergency arises that is not addressed by the existing expenditure plan : 

1. 	 AESF shall notify the Chairman and the JLBC Staff that they plan to spend less than $50,000 on 
an emergency project. AESF can proceed without Committee review. 

2. 	 The Chairman can allow AESF to move forward with an emergency project of greater than 
$50,000 without Committee review. 

3. 	 The Chairman will notify AESF if he does not agree that the project is an emergency and that the 
project will require full Committee review. 

An "emergency" project is defined as unforeseen, critical in nature, and of immediate time 
sensitivity. 

C. 	 It is the intent of the Committee to not review the $120,000 allocation from the FY 2017 ADOA 
building renewal appropriation for the repair of the 1938 Works Progress Administration Civic 
Building until the provisions pursuant to Laws 2016, Chapter 126 are met. Statute does not permit 
ADOA to spend the $120,000 until matching funds from the City of Phoenix are received. When 
ADOA and the Arizona Exposition and State Fair Board subsequently request review of the 1938 WPA 
Civic Building Project, they shall include information on how total project funds will be spent and if 
the repairs will be sufficient to make the building operational. 

D. 	 No monies from the FY 2018 (Laws 2017, Chapter 306} or FY 2019 (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) capital 
appropriation may be spent on projects related to the 1938 WPA Civic Building without prior 
Committee review. 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS (ADC) - Review of FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation Plan 
and Capital Projects. 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires JCCR to review expenditure plans for building renewal monies prior to 
expenditure. The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated $5,464,300 from 
the Department of Corrections Building Renewal Fund to ADC for general building renewal. The JLBC 
Staff provided options and potential provisions: 

(Continued) 



- 3 -


A. 	 ADC shall report any reallocations between projects to the JLBC Staff as part of its existing semi
annual building renewal status report. 

B. 	 If an emergency arises that is not addressed by the existing expenditure plan: 

1. 	 ADC shall notify the Chairman and the JLBC Staff that they plan to spend less than $50,000 on an 
emergency project. ADC can proceed without Committee review. 

2. 	 The Chairman can allow ADC to move forward with an emergency project of greater than 
$50,000 without Committee review. 

3. 	 The Chairman will notify ADC if he does not agree that the project is an emergency and that the 
project will require full Committee review. An "emergency" project is defined as unforeseen, 
critical in nature, and of immediate time sensitivity. 

C. 	 If ADC adds a new non-emergency project of more than $200,000 not listed in this request, the 
department must submit the proposed project and expenditure plan for Committee review. Projects 
may not be subdivided as to fall below the $200,000 threshold. 

The expenditure plan included 11 projects at 6 state prisons detailed in Table 1. 

Table 1 

FY 2019 Building Renewal Plan 

Peri met er Security 
Fence Upgrade - Eyman SMU I $ 825,000 
Fence Electronics Upgrade - Lewis 705,000 

Subtotal $1,530,000 
Locking & Contro l Systems 
Locking Systems - Eyman SMU I $ 1,412,300 
Eq ui pment Replacement and System Improvements 
Water Tank Refurbishment - Yuma $ 400,000 
Walk-in Cooler and Freezer Replacement - Florence Central 385,000 
Walk-in Cooler and Freezer Replacement - Florence North 375,000 
Emergency Generator Replacements - Perryville 155,000 

Subtotal $1,315,000 
Air Co ndition ing anc!/or Ductwork - Select Units 
Air Conditioning - Eyman Cook $ 487,000 
Rooftop Ductwork - Tucson 165,000 

Subtotal $ 652,000 
Infrastructure 
Electrical Upgrades - Florence Central Unit $ 305,000 
Renovation 
ADA Upgrades - Florence South Unit $ 250,000 

TOTAL $5,464,300 

{Continued) 



- 4 -

ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT (AGFD) - Review of Ben Avery Shooting Facility Operation 
Center and Store. 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires JCCR to review the scope, purpose and estimated cost of any capital project over 
$250,000. AGFD requested Committee review of $1,250,000 to construct a new operation center/store at 
AGFD's Ben Avery Shooting Facility. The JLBC Staff provided options and potential provisions: 

A. 	 AGFD shall report to the Committee if the Ben Avery Shooting Facility operation center/store 
construction project's total cost exceeds 20% of the estimate. The JCCR Chairman shall determine 
whether the project requires further review. 

B. 	 On or before January 31, 2019 and July 31, 2019, AGFD shall report to the JLBC Staff on the status and 
expenditures of the Ben Avery Shooting Facility operation center/store construction project. 

Senator Allen moved that the Committee give a favorable review with provisions as outlined in the JLBC 
Staff analysis, to the 4 consent agenda items listed above. The motion carried. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

ADOA - Review of FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation Plan. 

Ms. Rebecca Perrera, JLBC Staff, stated A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires ADOA to request Committee review of 
expenditure plans for building renewal monies. The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) 
appropriated a total of $11,000,000 from the Capital Outlay Stabilization Fund (COSF) for building 
renewal. In addition, the FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill directly appropriated $1,000,000 from COSF to 
ADOA for demolition of the 1275 West Washington Street building. ADOA requested a review of the full 
$12,000,000 appropriation for building renewal and building demolition projects in FY 2019. The JLBC 
Staff provided options and potential provisions. 

Mr. Derik Leavitt, Assistant Director, Budget and Resource Planning, ADOA, responded to member 
questions. 

Senator Kavanagh moved that the Committee give a favorable review ofADOA 's FY 2019 $12,000,000 
expenditure plan with the following provisions: 

A. 	 ADOA shall report any reallocations between projects as listed in Table 2 to the JLBC Staff. If there is 
significant change of scope in the reallocation reported by ADOA, the JLBC Staff shall recommend 
ADOA request Committee review of the reallocation. 

B. 	 The distribution of the emergency contingency allocation of $304,000 be addressed as follows: 

1. 	 ADOA shall notify the Chairman and the JLBC Staff that they plan to spend less than $50,000 on 
an emergency project. ADOA can proceed without Committee review. 

2. 	 The Chairman can allow ADDA to move forward with an emergency project of greater than 
$50,000 without Committee review. 

3. 	 The Chairman will notify ADDA if he does not agree that the project is an emergency and that 
the project will require full Committee review. 

(Continued) 



- 5 -

An "emergency" project is defined as unforeseen, critical in nature, and of immediate time 

sensitivity. Prior reviews also included this provision. 


C. 	 If ADOA adds a new non-emergency project not listed in this request, the department must submit 
the proposed project and expenditure plan for Committee review. 

D. 	 The demolition of the 1275 West Washington Street and 1510/1520 West Adams Street buildings 
shall be bid as a single contract. The demolitions shall occur as soon as possible after the buildings 
have been vacated. 

E. 	 ADOA and the Department of Agriculture shall jointly report to the Committee by August 31, 2018 an 
update on the private lease agreement for the State Agricultural Laboratory, including location, 
square footage, cost per square foot, a proposed funding structure for any rent increase, and any 
improvements required to fit the needs of the lab. 

F. 	 Committee review does not include a commitment to fund any increase in rent or operating costs as 
a result of relocating the State Agricultural Laboratory to privately leased space. 

The motion carried . 

Table 2 

FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation Plan 

Fire & Li fe Safety Projects 
ADOA Statewide Replace Fire and Life Safety Systems $ 1,300,000 

Bui lding Shell Prolects 
ADOA Statewide Roof Repair, Roof Replacement, and 

Exterior Caulking 
$ 1,600,000 

Major Building Services Pro jects 
ADOA Statewide HVAC Systems Replacement Statewide 
ADOA Capitol Mall Repair/Modernize Elevators 

Subtotal 

$ 3,320,000 
$ 2,500,000 
$ 5,820,000 

lnfrastruc ure Projects 
ADOA Capitol Mall Replace/Repair Parking Lots $ 300,000 

Bui lding lnLerior Pro lects 
400 W Congress - Carpet and Floor Covering Replacement $ 200,000 

Building Demolition Pro!ecls 
1275 W. Washington St. 
1510/1520 W Adams St. 

Subtotal 

$ 1,000,000 
$ 700,000 
$ 1,700,000 

Prevent ative Maintenance Proiects 
ADOA Capitol Mall Preventative Maintenance $ 400,000 

Other Proj ects 
Personnel Services/ERE Costs 
Building Renewal Project Scoping 
Risk Management Insurance Premium 
Emergency Contingency 

Subtotal 

$ 275,000 
100,000 

1,000 
304,000 

$ 680,000 

TOTAL $12,000,000 

(Continued) 



- 6 -


ADOA - Review of FY 2019 Capitol Mall Consolidation Fund Expenditures. 

Ms. Rebecca Perrera, JLBC Staff, stated A.R.S. § 41-792.02 requires ADOA to request Committee review 
of expenditure plans for monies appropriated from the Capitol Mall Consolidation Fund. The FY 2019 
Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated $10,000,000 from the Capitol Mall 
Consolidation Fund for the renovation of state-owned buildings. ADOA requested Committee review of 
its expenditure plan for $1,000,000 from the Capitol Mall Consolidation Fund in FY 2019 to begin 
renovations of 1400 W. Washington. The JLBC Staff provided options and potential provisions. 

Mr. Deri k Leavitt, Assistant Director. Budget and Resource Planning, ADOA, responded to member 
questions. 

Senator Kavanagh moved that the Committee give a favorable review ofADOA 's expenditure plan for 
$1,000,000 from the Capital Mall Consolidation Fund in FY 2019 to begin renovations of 1400 W. 
Washington. The favorable review included the following provisions: 

A. 	 ADOA shall prioritize tenants moving from privately-leased space into 1400 W. Washington in its 
tenant relocation plan. 

B. 	 ADOA shall submit its finalized tenant list to the JCCR when requesting review for the remaining 
$9,000,000 FY 2019 appropriation. 

C. 	 ADOA shall not use FY 2019 Building Renewal monies for the 1400 W. Washington building without 
first requesting Committee review. 

The motion carried . 

ARIZONA STATE PARKS (ASP} - Review of Buckskin Mountain State Park Project, Oracle State Park 
Project and FY 2019 Capital lmprovemer:its. 

Mr. Ben Murphy, JLBC Staff, stated A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires the JCCR to review expenditure plans for 
monies appropriated for capital projects. ASP requested Committee review of the following items: 

• 	 $2,500,000 for a redevelopment of Buckskin Mountain State Park. 
• 	 $4,000,000 for a redevelopment of Oracle State Park. 

• 	 $2,000,000 for capital improvements. 

The JLBC Staff provided options and potential provisions. 

Mr. Bret Parke, Interim Deputy Director, ASP, responded to member questions. 

Senator Kavanagh moved that the Committee give a favorable review of $2,000,000 for capital 
improvements with the following provisions: 

A. 	 On or before May 31 and November 30 of each year, ASP shall report to the JCCR Chairman and the 
JLBC Staff on all projects reviewed by JCCR since June 2016 that have not yet been completed. The 

(Continued) 

http:41-792.02


- 7 

report shall include the project expenditure to date, the expected completion date, any change in 
project scope and reasons for any delay in meeting the original project timeframe. Based on the 
ASP submission, the Chairman may decide whether to place any of the uncompleted projects on the 
agenda for further discussion at the next meeting. 

B. 	 A favorable review does not constitute endorsement of appropriations to pay for future development 
costs or operating costs. 

The motion carried. 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY (DPS) - Review of Remote Housing Replacement. 

Mr. Jordan Johnston, JLBC Staff, stated A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires JCCR to review expenditure plans for 
monies appropriated to capital projects. The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) 
appropriated $2,000,000 to DPS for the replacement of highway patrol officer remote housing units. 
Chapter 277 also required DPS to submit a report on the procurement process for the new housing units 
for review. The JLBC Staff provided options and potential provisions. 

Captain Stephen Reutter, Facilities Manager, DPS, responded to member questions. 

Senator Kavanagh moved that the Committee give a favorable review to DPS' expenditure plan of 
$2,000,000 for the construction of at least 6 and up to 8 remote housing units and their procurement 
process. The favorable review included the following provisions: 

A. 	 The department shall report to the JLBC Staff on or before May 31 and November 30 of each year 
until the project is completed. The report shall include the status and the construction time line of the 
units. 

B. 	 Upon completion of the procurement process, the department shall report to the JLBC Staff the cost 
and selected location of each unit. 

The motion carried . 

Without objection, the meeting adjourned at 1:52 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted: 

NOTE: A full video recording of this meeting is available at http://www.azleg.gov/j lbc/meeting.htm. 

http://www.azleg.gov/jlbc/meeting.htm


lA 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

Joint ~ommitttt on ~apital l\tuitw 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: 	 September 13, 2018 

TO: 	 Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: 	 Matt Beien burg, Senior Fiscal Analyst M /3 

SUBJECT: 	 Arizona State University - Consider Approval of Interdisciplinary Science and Technology 
Building (ISTB) 7 Financing Project 

Request 

A.R.S. § 15-1671 requires Committee approval of any debt financed university capital project paid for 
with funds from the university's Capital Infrastructure Fund (CIF). Arizona State University (ASU) 
requests Committee approval of a $175,000,000 bond issuance for the construction of the 
Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7. 

The project will constitute ASU's second use of the $1 billion capital investment program. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. 	 Approval of the request. 

2. 	 Disapproval of the request. 

Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following standard university financing 
provision: 

Standard University Financing Provision 
A. 	 A favorable review by the Committee does not constitute endorsement of General Fund 

appropriations to offset any revenues that may be required for operations and maintenance costs 
when the project is complete. 

B. 	 ASU shall provide the final debt service schedule and interest rate for the project as soon as they are 
available. 

(Continued) 

http:azleg.gov


- 2 -


Key Points 
1) ASU plans to construct a new 258,000 sq. foot science building to house 600+ students in the 

sustainability and human origins programs. 
2) The building will include lab space for biological sciences, computing and engineering. 
3) ASU will issue $175 M of system revenue bonds, paying 50% of the debt service with tuition and 

50% with CIF appropriations ($1 B bonding package monies). 
4) Total projects costs per sq. foot are comparable to recently completed Biodesign C Building: 

direct construction costs are slightly lower, but other costs are 48% higher due to site conditions. 
5) Including a prior project, ASU will have committed 56% of its annual appropriations from the 

bonding package. 

Analysis 

ASU intends to construct a new 258,000 square foot science building at the southwest corner of 
University Drive and Rural Road. The new ISTB 7 facility will be located near the Biodesign C building 
{ISTB 6) that was completed in spring 2018. 

ISTB 7 will house ASU's Global Institute of Sustainability, including the School of Sustainability, which 
enrolls approximately 600 students. ASU states that the school's curriculum addresses "a broad 
spectrum of global challenges, including: energy, materials, and technology; water quality and scarcity; 
international development; ecosystems; social transformations; food and food systems; and policy and 
governance." 

ASU states that the space currently occupied by the Global Institute of Sustainability in the Wrigley Hall 
building will be filled by the relocation of the recently established School for the Future of Innovation in 
Society, which itself encompasses several disciplines related to technology, engineering, and ethics. 

ISTB 7 will also house the Institute of Human Origins, which focuses on paleoanthropological research
a cross-disciplinary anthropology program focused on human evolution. The institute currently has 36 
affiliated graduate students, and ASU reports that it has "outgrown its existing space" in the Social 
Sciences Building. 

The new building will include labs for biological science research and for computing and engineering 
activities (approximately 46% of the building). ISTB 7 will also include classrooms and "adaptable 
student workspaces," in addition to offices and public exhibit spaces including an auditorium and 
meeting rooms for events. 

ASU has estimated that ISTB 7 could increase the university's annual research expenditures (via 
additional grants, etc.) by $50 million per year, helping to move ASU's total from $545 million as of FY 
2017 toward its goal of $815 million by 2025. 

Financing 
ASU intends to issue $75.0 million in system revenue bonds in May 2019 and another $100.0 million in 
March 2020, for a total of $175.0 million. ASU anticipates a rating of Aa2 (Moody's)/AA (S&P) and 
interest rates of 3.68% and 3.76% over 20 and 24-year terms. ASU will make debt service payments of 
$3.3 million in FY 2020, $9.9 million in FY 2021, and $11.7 million per year from FY 2022 - FY 2043. 

(Continued) 



- 3 -


Half of the debt service payments will be funded by tuition and the other half by General Fund 
appropriations from the $1 billion bonding package. As a result, the General Fund will provide 
approximately $5.85 million for the building's debt service payments per year by FY 2022. 

Of the $271.6 million cumulative debt service payments, $135.8 million will be paid from tuition and 
$135.8 million from the General Fund. (See Table 2 for a summary of the bond financing terms). 

The debt service on this project increases ASU's current debt ratio by 0.38%, from 4.5% to 4.88%. 

University Capital Infrastructure Funds (2017 Bonding Package) 
Laws 2017, Chapter 328 established A.R.S. § 15-1671, which provides General Fund appropriations from 
FY 2019 - FY 2043 for new university research facilities, building renewal, or other capital construction 
projects. The law appropriates $27.0 million to the universities in FY 2019 and increases the 
appropriation each year thereafter by 2.0% or the rate of inflation, whichever is less. The FY 2019 
appropriations are allocated to each university as follows: 

• ASU: $11,927,400 
• NAU: $4,520,900 
• UA: $10,551,700 
• Total: $27,000,000 

The universities may use these monies for debt service on infrastructure long-term-financing and for 
cash construction costs. New debt issued under this program may not exceed $1.0 billion. 

ASU has previously received Committee approval to allocate $1.2 million of its annual $11.9 million 
appropriation to the renovation of Hayden Library. Combined with the annual $5.85 million for ISTB 7, 
ASU will have committed approximately 56% of its billion dollar bonding package monies as of FY 2022. 

Under the law, each university's General Fund appropriation is deposited into a newly-created Capital 
Infrastructure Fund (CIF). Each university must match any General Fund contributions to its fund that 
are used for debt service payments at a 1:1 rate. The $1.0 billion of new projects would thus be funded 
half by state appropriations and half from university resources. 

Debt service payments made on CIF-funded projects are included in the universities' statutory debt 
limit. Any cash-based capital projects funded with CIF monies must be reviewed by the Joint Committee 
on Capital Review, and any debt-financed projects funded with CIF monies must be approved by the 
Committee. 

Construction Costs 
Of the $175.0 million total project cost, direct construction costs (excluding items such as design and 
project management costs) are $126.0 million. As shown in Table 1, total project costs per square foot 
are $678, while direct construction costs per square foot are $488. 

As reference, ASU recently completed construction of the 188,500 square foot Biodesign C Building (ISTB 
6), which the Committee reviewed in 2016. Total construction costs for that facility were $637 per 
square foot, with direct construction costs making up $509. Costs besides direct construction are $190 
per square foot for ISTB 7, however, compared to $128 for Biodesign C, which marks a 48% increase. 
ASU has stated that the location and site conditions of the project are responsible for the increase, citing 
the required demolition of existing buildings, the relocation of utility lines, and remediation costs. 

(Continued) 



- 4 -

ASU states that project construction will begin by October 2018, and that the Construction Manager at 

Risk (CMAR) will complete the project under the guaranteed maximum price arrangement with ASU by 

November 2020. ASU estimates occupancy of the building by January 2021. 


Operations and Maintenance Costs 

ASU estimates that the facility will require annual operations and maintenance costs of $3,188,410, 

which ASU intends to fund with tuition revenues. 


Table 1 

ISTB 7 Construction 

Total Square Footage 258,000 

Funding 
System Revenue Bonds 11 $175,000,000 

Costs 
Direct Construction Costs $126,015, 700 ($488 per sq. ft.) 

Other Costs Y 48,984,300 ($190 per sq. ft.) 

Total $175,000,000 ($678 per sq. ft.) 

Operations & Maintenance Y $3,188,400 

l/ 	Annual debt service payments on $175.0 million principal are estimated at $3.3 million in FY 2020, $9.9 
million in FY 2021, and $11.7 million from FY 2022- FY 2043 based on a 3.76% / 3.68% interest rate for a total 
debt service cost of $271.6 million. Debt service will be paid by CIF monies (50% General Fund, 50% tuition). 

Y Includes equipment, furniture, project design and management fees, and other costs. 
~ Annual operatlons and maintenance costs to be funded b tuition. 

Table 2 

Construction Timeframe 

Issuance Amount 

Issuance Date 

Issuance Transaction Fees 

Rating 

Interest Rate 

Term 

Total Debt Costs 

Debt Service Payments 

Payment Source 

Debt Ratio Increase 

ISTB 7 Building Financing Terms 

October 2018 - November 2020 

$175.0 million 

May 2019, March 2020 

$1,565,000 

Aa2 (Moody's)/AA (S&P) 

3.76% I 3.68% 

24 years 

$271.6 million 

$3.3 million (FY 2020) 
$9.9 million (FY 2021) 
$11.7 million (FY 2022 - FY 2043) 

$135.8 million General Fund (CIF) 
$135.8 million tuition (CIF) 

0.38% 

MB: Im 



ARl/O~\ST\Tt Lhl\ER'llfl 

August 30, 2018 

The Honorable David Livingston, Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review 
Arizona State Senate Capitol Complex 
1700 West Washington, Room 200 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 -2890 

Dear Representative Livingston: 

In accordance with ARS 15-1683 and ARS 15-1671, the Arizona Board of Regents 
requests that the following Arizona State University bond-financed projects be placed 
on the next Joint Committee on Capital Review agenda for review and approval, 
respectively: 

• 	 Information Technology (IT) Improvements 
• 	 Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 

Enclosed is pertinent information relating to these items. 

If you have any questions or desire any clarification on the enclosed material, please 
contact me at (480) 727-9920. 

Sincerely, l 
VYI\.a~ ,1 

,/ 
Morgan R. Olsen 
Executive Vice President, Treasurer and CFO 

Enclosures 

c: 	 Richard Stavneak, Director, JLBC 
John Arnold, Executive Director, Arizona Board of Regents, ABOR 
Lorenzo Martinez, Chief Financial Officer and Director of Finance, ABOR 
Matt Salmon, Vice President, Government Affairs, ASU 
Adam C. Deguire, Associate Vice President, Government Affairs, ASU 
Courtney Coolidge, Senior Director, State Relations, ASU 
Bruce Nevel, Associate Vice President, Facilities Development and Management, ASU 
Joanne Wamsley, Vice President for Finance and Deputy Treasurer, ASU 
Matt Beienburg, Fiscal Analyst, JLBC 

0FFIC:: OF r"lE EXECUT1'1€ Vic:: PRESIDENT ~NO (HIE> FINANC!AL '.JH 1CD 


BUSINESS ~,~o FINANC: 

PO lox 377505, r;,,,1pc '-\Z 85 287 7505 


I1160) 7')_7 9921) ~"X '.1801 ,-~ 7-9922 




Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


On behalf of the Arizona Board of Regents, Arizona State University (ASU) 
requests Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) review of the following items 
as required by ABOR policy, ARS 15-1683, and ARS 15-1671. 

Issuance of Bonds 

Arizona State University plans to undertake bond-financed projects including construction 
of the Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 on the Tempe campus, 
as well as improvements to the university's information technology (IT) infrastructure at 
multiple campuses. These projects respond to the need to provide students, faculty and 
staff with high-quality facilities and the associated infrastructure that will enable their 
success and support the key elements of ASU's Strategic Enterprise Framework. 
Additional information regarding these projects is included on the following pages. 

Arizona Board of Regents executive summaries are attached, which outlines the terms 
and other details relevant to these projects. 



Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


PROJECT SUMMARY -Revenue Bonds 

Projects: Funding Sources: Amount: 
Interdisciplinary Science & Technology Bldg 7 CIF FundsfTuition $175,000,000 
Information Technology (IT) Infrastructure Tuition 32,000,000 
Improvements 
Total $207,000,000 

FINANCING INFORMATION 

System Revenue Bonds: 
Project Costs $207,000,000 
Estimated Costs of Issuance $1,805,000 
Anticipated Bond Rating Aa2 (Moody's) and AA (S&P) 
Assumed Interest Rate 3.76%/3.68% 
Term 20-24 years 

Debt Service Information: 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY20 $3,325,971 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY21 $12,255,962 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY22-40 $14,075,887 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY41-43 $11,742,752 
Estimated Total Debt Service $318,252,049 

DEBT RATIO 

Debt Ratio on Existing Debt 4.50 
Incremental Debt Ratio .46 
Project Debt Ratio 4.96 



Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


1. INTERDISCIPLINARY SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY BUILDING (ISTB) 7 

Project Description 

The proposed construction of an approximately 258,000 gross-square-foot, high
performance research facility will represent a significant addition to the university's 
growing research district on the Tempe campus. This facility will be designed to foster 
an interdisciplinary approach to knowledge generation and leading-edge research, 
including innovative endeavors focusing on the sustainability of food, water and energy. 

This leading-edge facility will serve as the new home for the Global Institute of 
Sustainability, as well as the Institute of Human Origins, which has outgrown its existing 
space. The School of Sustainability is part of the Julie Ann Wrigley Global Institute of 
Sustainability, which serves as the hub of ASU's sustainability initiatives. The institute 
advances research, education and business practices for an urbanizing world. 

The Institute of Human Origins is one of the leading research organizations devoted to 
the science of human origins. Embedded within ASU's School of Human Evolution and 
Social Change, the Institute pursues a transdisciplinary strategy for field and analytical 
paleoanthropological research. 

Open, robust dry research laboratory space for computing, engineering design and 
fabrication, as well as wet laboratory and specialized space for biological sciences, will 
be included in this project to advance the research goals of the university. The facility will 
include university classrooms and numerous adaptable student workspaces to stimulate 
and facilitate intellectual contributions to future global outcomes. Public outreach and 
exhibit spaces to put "science on display," including a large auditorium and smaller 
meeting rooms, will facilitate public and special events. The public spaces will convey 
and demonstrate the research and ideas generated within. 

This debt-financed project will be funded with $175.0 million in system revenue bonds 
under the state's new capital infrastructure financing program enacted by the 
legislature in 2017. Under the new program, half the debt service will be funded with 
state appropriations tied to the new Capital Infrastructure Fund and half will be funded 
with university tuition. The annual operations and maintenance costs for this project 
are estimated at $3, 188,410 and will be funded with tuition. 

An Arizona Board of Regents executive summary for this project is attached, outlining 
the project description and other relevant information. Additionally, tables are included 
in this request that summarize the financial aspects of this project. This project received 
Capital Development Plan approval at the February 8-9, 2018, Arizona Board of 
Regents meeting . 



Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


Project Costs 

Total Project Cost $ 175,000,000 
Total Project Construction Cost $ 126,015,660 
Total Project Cost per GSF $ 678 
Construction Cost per GSF $ 488 



Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


Arizona State University 
Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building 7 


System Revenue Bonds 


Fiscal 
Year Principal Interest Total 
2021 $4,943,221 $4,943,221 
2022 $3,055,000 3,707,416 6,762,416 
2023 3, 165,000 3,594,992 6,759,992 
2024 3,280,000 3,478,520 6,758,520 
2025 3,400,000 3,357,816 6,757,816 
2026 3,530,000 3,232,696 6,762,696 
2027 3,655,000 3,102,792 6,757,792 
2028 3,790,000 2,968,288 6,758,288 
2029 3,930,000 2,828,816 6,758,816 
2030 4,075,000 2,684, 192 6,759, 192 
2031 4,225,000 2,534,232 6,759,232 
2032 4,380,000 2,378,752 6,758,752 
2033 4,545,000 2,217,568 6,762,568 
2034 4,710,000 2,050,312 6,760,312 
2035 4,885,000 1,876,984 6,761,984 
2036 5,065,000 1,697,216 6,762,216 
2037 5,250,000 1,510,824 6,760,824 
2038 5,440,000 1,317,624 6,757,624 
2039 5,640,000 1,117,432 6,757,432 
2040 5,850,000 909,880 6,759,880 
2041 6,065,000 694,600 6,759,600 
2042 6,290,000 471,408 6,761,408 
2043 6.520,000 239,936 6,759,936 

$100.745,000 $52,915,517 $153,660,517 

Estimated issue date March 1, 2020. 



Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


Arizona State University 
Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building 7 

System Revenue Bonds 

Fiscal 
Year Princi~al Interest Total 
2020 $3,325,971 $3,325,971 
2021 $2,130,000 2,850,832 4,980,832 
2022 2,210,000 2,770,744 4,980,744 
2023 2,295,000 2,687,648 4,982,648 
2024 2,380,000 2,601,356 4,981,356 
2025 2,470,000 2,511,868 4,981,868 
2026 2,565,000 2,418,996 4,983,996 
2027 2,660,000 2,322,552 4,982,552 
2028 2,760,000 2,222,536 4,982,536 
2029 2,865,000 2, 118,760 4,983,760 
2030 2,970,000 2,011,036 4,981,036 
2031 3,085,000 1,899,364 4,984,364 
2032 3,200,000 1,783,368 4,983,368 
2033 3,320,000 1,663,048 4,983,048 
2034 3,445,000 1,538,216 4,983,216 
2035 3,575,000 1,408,684 4,983,684 
2036 3,710,000 1,274,264 4,984,264 
2037 3,850,000 1,134,768 4,984,768 
2038 3,995,000 990,008 4,985,008 
2039 4,145,000 839,796 4,984,796 
2040 4,300,000 683,944 4,983,944 
2041 4,460,000 522,264 4,982,264 
2042 4,630,000 354,568 4,984,568 
2043 4,800,000 180,480 4,980,480 

$75,820,000 $42, 115,071 $117,935,071 

Estimated issue date May 1, 2019. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Board of Regents Meeting 
February 8-9, 2018 

Item #14 
Page 15 of 51 

Arizona Board of Regents 

Arizona State University 


Capital Development Plan Project Justification Report 

Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 


Previous Board Action: 

• 	 FY 2019-21 Capital Improvement Plan September 2017 

Statutory/Policy Requirements 

• 	 ABOR Policy 7-102 (8) requires committee review and board approval of all 
capital projects with an estimated total project cost of $10,000,000 or more for 
new construction. 

Project Justification/Description/Scope 

• 	 This project will construct a new, approximately 258,000 gross-square-foot, 
high-performance research facility that will be a significant addition to the university's 
growing research district on the Tempe campus. The facility will be designed to 
foster an interdisciplinary approach to knowledge generation and leading-edge 
research, including innovative endeavors focusing on the sustainability of food, 
water and energy. 

• 	 ISTB 7 will serve as a new gateway to the Tempe campus, located immediately 
adjacent to the light rail station and the larger research district, including the 
Biodesign Institute and the future Novus Innovation Corridor. The site location is 
depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit 0. ISTB 7 is in an ideal location to 
transcend academic disciplines and to connect world-class research with commerce 
and business applications that will fuel economic growth. 

• 	 This leading-edge facility will serve as the new home for the Global Institute of 
Sustainability and the Institute of Human Origins, which has outgrown its existing 
space. The School of Sustainability is part of the Julie Ann Wrigley Global Institute 
of Sustainability, which serves as the hub of ASU's sustainability initiatives. The 
institute advances research, education and business practices for an urbanizing 
world. The School's course of study emphasizes experiential learning, research with 
faculty, corporate and K-12 work, community service and leadership development. 

• 	 The Institute of Human Origins is one of the leading research organizations devoted 
to the science of human origins. Embedded within ASU's School of Human Evolution 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Board of Regents Meeting 
February 8-9, 2018 

Item #14 
Page 16 of 51 

and Social Change, the Institute pursues a transdisciplinary strategy for field and 
analytical paleoanthropological research. This research is central to its founding 
mission of integrating social, earth, and life science approaches to the most 
important questions concerning the course, timing and causes of human 
evolutionary change over deep time. 

• 	 Open dry, robust research laboratory space for computing, engineering design 
and fabrication, as well as wet laboratory or other specialized space for biological 
sciences, will be included in this project to advance the ambitious research goals 
of the university. The facility also will include university classrooms and numerous 
adaptable student workspaces to stimulate and facilitate intellectual contributions to 
global future outcomes. 

• 	 ISTB 7 will have public outreach and exhibit spaces to put "science on display," 
including a large auditorium and smaller meeting rooms to facilitate public and 
special events. The spaces will be both public and porous to convey and 
demonstrate the research and ideas generated within. 

• 	 This project will support the primary institutional priority of establishing the university 
as a leading global center for interdisciplinary research, discovery and development 
by 2025: 

o 	 Become the leading American center for discovery and scholarship in the 
integrated social sciences and comprehensive arts and sciences 

o 	 Enhance research competitiveness to more than $815 million in annual 
research expenditures 

o 	 Transform regional economic competitiveness through research and 
discovery and value-added programs 

o 	 Become a leading American center for innovation and entrepreneurship at 
all levels 

Project Delivery Method and Process: 

• 	 This project will be delivered through the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) 
delivery method. This approach was selected to provide contractor design input 
and coordination throughout the project, alleviate potentially adversarial project 
environments and allow for the selection of the most qualified contractor team. 
With the use of two independent cost estimates at each phase and pre-qualified, 
low-bid subcontractor work for the actual construction, CMAR project delivery also 
provides a high level of cost and quality control. 

• 	 ASU has selected Architekton-Grimshaw as the Design Professional (DP) team for 
this project and McCarthy Building Companies, Inc. as the CMAR. The selection 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Board of Regents Meeting 
February 8-9, 2018 

Item #14 
Page 17 of 51 

process for the DP included twenty-three responses and four firms were interviewed. 
During the CMAR selection process, there were nine submittal responses and four 
contractors were interviewed. 

Project Status and Schedule 

• 	 Site demolition and utility work is scheduled to begin when the CMAR's Guaranteed 
Maximum Price is complete and after all approvals are in place. Construction will 
follow and is scheduled for completion in November 2020. 

Project Cost 

• 	 The budget for this 258,000 gross-square-foot project is $175.0 million. The budget 
represents an estimated construction cost of $488 per gross square foot. The 
estimated total project cost is $678 per gross square foot. 

• 	 The CMAR will be at risk to provide the completed project within the agreed-upon 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP). 

Fiscal Impact and Financing Plan: 

• 	 The $175.0 million project budget will be funded with system revenue bonds. Debt 
service will be funded by the State of Arizona Capital Infrastructure Fund and 
matched with university funds. 

• 	 Operations and maintenance costs for this project are estimated at $3, 188,410 
annually and will be funded by tuition. 

• 	 Debt Ratio Impact: The projected incremental debt ratio impact for this project is 
0.32 percent. 

Occupancy Plan 

• 	 When the Global Institute of Sustainability and School of Sustainability relocate to 
ISTB 7, the backfill plan will include the relocation of the School for the Future of 
Innovation in Society into their current Wrigley Hall location. Occupancy of ISTB 7 
is scheduled for January 2021. 

Exhibit 

• 	 Exhibit D - Site Location Map 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Board of Regents Meeting 
February 8-9, 2018 

Item #14 
Page 18 of 51 

Capital Prolect Information Summary 

University: Arizona State University Project Name: Interdisciplinary Science and 
Technology Building (ISTB) 7 

Project Description and Location: This project, as depicted on the attached map 
as Exhibit D, will construct a new, approximately 258,000 gross-square-foot, high
performance research facility that will be a significant addition to the university's growing 
research district on the Tempe campus. The facility will be designed to foster an 
interdisciplinary approach to knowledge generation and leading-edge research. 

Project Schedule: 
Planning 
Design Start 
Construction Start 
Construction Completion 

Project Budget: 
Total Project Cost 
Total Project Construction Cost 
Total Project Cost per GSF 
Construction Cost per GSF 

Change in Annual 0 & M Cost: 
Utilities 
Personnel 
AJI Other Operating 

Subtotal 

Funding Sources: 

Capital 
A. System Revenue Bonds 

Debt Service Funding Sources: 

January 2018 
May 2018 
October 2018 
November 2020 

$ 175,000,000 
$ 126,015,660 
$ 678 
$ 488 

$ 1,563,438 
459,355 

1I165,617 
$ 3,188,410 

$ 175,000,000 

Tuition 

Capital Infrastructure Fund 

Operation/Maintenance $ 3,188,410 

Funding Source: Tuition 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Board of Regents Meeting 
February 8-9, 2018 

Item #14 
Page 19 of 51 

Capital Project Budget Summary 

University: Arizona State University 
Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 

Capital Costs 
1. Land Acquisition 
2. Construction Cost 

A. New Construction 
B. Tenant Improvements 
C. Special Fixed Equipment 
D. Site Development (excl. 2.E.) 
E. Parking and Landscaping 
F. Utilities Extensions 
G. Other* (Demolition/abatement) 


Subtotal Construction Cost 


3. Fees 
A. CMAR Pre-Construction 
B. Architect/Engineer 
C. Other 

Subtotal Consultant Fees 

4. FF&E Movable 
5. Contingency, Design Phase 
6. Contingency, Constr. Phase 
7. Parking Reserve 
8. Telecommunications Equipment 
Subtotal Items 4-8 

9. Additional University Costs 
A. Surveys, Tests, Haz. Mat. Abatement 
B. Move-in Costs 
C. Printing Advertisement 
D. Keying, signage, facilities support 
E. Project Management Cost 
F. State Risk Mgt. Ins. (.0034 **) 

Subtotal Addi. Univ. Costs 
Total Capital Cost 

* Universities shall identify items included in this category 

Capital 

Development Plan 


$ 120,175,000 

2,032,860 
2,675,000 
1,000,000 

132,800 
$ 126,015,660 

$ 1,892,860 
15,773,832 
2,550,390 

$ 20,217,082 

$ 7,210,500 
6,008,750 
6,008,750 

$ 
4,124,250 

23,352,250 

$ 

$ 
$ 

175,000 
50,000 
35,000 
10,000 

4,561,908 
583,100 

5,415,008 
175,000,000 

•• State Risk Management Insurance factor is calculated on construction costs and consultant fees. 

Project: 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Board of Regents Meeting 
February 8-9, 2018 

Item #14 
Page 20 of 51 

EXHIBIT D 

Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 


Site Location Map 




lB 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

joint QCommittee on QCapital l\ebiebl 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE 1716 WEST ADAMS REPRESENTATIVES 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: September 13, 2018 

TO: Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: Matt Beienburg, Senior Fiscal Analyst f'I\ () 

SUBJECT: Arizona State University - Review of Information Technology (IT) Improvements 
Financing Project 

Request 

A.R.S. § 15-1683 requires Committee review of any university projects financed with system revenue 
bonds. Arizona State University (ASU) requests Committee review of $32,000,000 in system revenue 
bond issuances to fund information technology (IT) infrastructure improvements. ASU will fund the 
debt service payments with tuition. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. 	 A favorable review of the request. 

2. 	 An unfavorable review of the request. 

Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following standard university financing 
provisions: 

Standard University Financing Provision 
A. 	 A favorable review by the Committee does not constitute endorsement of General Fund 

appropriations to offset any revenues that may be required for debt service or any operations and 
maintenance costs when the project is complete. 

B. 	 ASU shall provide the final debt service schedule and interest rate for the project as soon as they are 
available. 

(Continued) 



- 2 -


Key Points 
1) ASU will issue $32 M of system revenue bonds to upgrade IT infrastructure across all campuses. 
2) Priorities will include strengthening network security and increasing data capacity. 
3) Upgrades will be used to prepare ASU for the implementation of an "Array of Things" campus

wide system of sensors to monitor patterns of pedestrian activity and environmental conditions. 

Analysis 

ASU intends to undertake IT infrastructure upgrades across all campuses related to network security, 
network and data center capacity, and the development of "network-enabled smart and secure 
campuses." 

The university plans to upgrade its firewalls and the security of its network and web services, upgrade 
and expand its fiber and wireless networks, increase the capacity of its primary data center at the 
Tempe Campus, and upgrade emergency call boxes that will serve as the platform for the ASU "Array of 
Things." 

The Array of Things, under development through the University of Chicago and other partner 
organizations, will "consist of a network of interactive sensors that will collect real-time data on the 
campus environment, infrastructure, and activity" of the university. The array is intended to improve 
campus security and monitor a variety of subjects, including pedestrian traffic, noise levels, water and 
temperature conditions among others. 

Deployment of the first array is currently underway in the city of Chicago, with its developers citing 
several potential benefits and applications such as the ability to identify areas "heavily populated by 
pedestrians at different times of day to suggest safe and efficient routes for walking late at night." 

While the current project request will allow ASU to upgrade its existing emergency call boxes with "a 
smart version, in preparation for the ASU Array of Things," ASU has not indicated the potential costs of 
deploying the actual Array of Things sensor nodes onto those boxes. 

The university system is not subject to the state's IT oversight body, the Information Technology 
Authorization Committee (ITAC). Rather, new IT initiatives that are identified by the Strategic 
Implementation Office within the University Technology Office (UTO) go before a UTO Architecture 
Review Board and the UTO Information Security Office before receiving approval from university 
leadership. 

The total cost of the proposed IT upgrades is $32.0 million. Of this amount, $24.0 million will support 
the network and data center infrastructure, and $8.0 million will fund the new call box stations that will 
ultimately support the Array of Things. 

Financing 
The project is currently in the planning phase and will begin construction in March 2019, being paid with 
current ASU funds. ASU then intends to issue the $32.0 million of system revenue bonds in March 2020 
to reimburse project costs with an anticipated rating of Aa2 (Moody's)/AA (S&P) and an estimated 
interest rate of 3.68% over a 20-year term. In addition to project costs, issuance costs are projected to 
be $240,000. ASU will fund the annual $2.3 million debt service with tuition. (See Table 1 for a 
summary of the bond financing terms). 

(Continued) 



- 3 -


The debt service on this project increases ASU's current debt ratio by 0.08% from 4.5% to 4.58%. 


Construction Costs 

Besides the issuance costs, ASU budgets total project costs for the IT improvements at $32.0 million, 

based on current market prices. The university states that "a competitive procurement process, 

including at least three state-contract vendors, will be used" and that the various improvements will 

incorporate the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR), Design-Build, and Job Order Contracting methods 

of project delivery. 


ASU states that project installation will begin March 2019, with construction scheduled to be complete 

by March 2022. 


Operations and Maintenance Costs 

ASU expects no increase in operation and maintenance costs as a result of the IT improvements. ASU 

has not indicated the potential costs of operating the Array of Things once it is deployed. 


Recent ASU Building Renewal Projects 

At its September 2017 meeting, the Committee favorably reviewed $35.0 million of bond issuances for 

building renewal projects such as laboratory and classroom upgrades and HVAC, fire, live and safety 

improvements across the ASU campuses. These bonds were also financed with university tuition 

revenues. 


The state typically does not provide funding for building renewal. If funded, the building renewal 

formula would generate $48.2 million annually for ASU as of FY 2018. 


Table 1 

IT Infrastructure Improvement Financing Terms 

Construction Timeframe March 2019 - March 2022 

Issuance Amount $32.0 million 

Issuance Date March 2020 

Issuance Transaction Fees $240,000 

Rating Aa2 (Moody's)/AA (S&P) 

Interest Rate 3.68% 

Term 20 years 

Total Debt Costs $46.7 million 

Debt Service Payments $2.3 million 

Payment Source Tuition 

Debt Ratio Increase 0.08% 

MB:kp 



ARIZONA STATE U'.\JIVERSLTY 

August 30, 2018 

The Honorable David Livingston, Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review 
Arizona State Senate Capitol Complex 
1700 West Washington, Room 200 
Phoenix, AZ 85007-2890 

Dear Representative Livingston: 

In accordance with ARS 15-1683 and ARS 15-1671, the Arizona Board of Regents 
requests that the following Arizona State University bond-financed projects be placed 
on the next Joint Committee on Capital Review agenda for review and approval, 
respectively: 

• 	 Information Technology {IT) Improvements 
• 	 Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 

Enclosed is pertinent information relating to these items. 

If you have any questions or desire any clarification on the enclosed material, please 
contact me at (480) 727-9920. 

~L~ 
Morgan R. Olsen 
Executive Vice President, Treasurer and CFO 

Enclosures 

c: 	 Richard Stavneak, Director, JLBC 
John Arnold, Executive Director, Arizona Board of Regents, ABOR 
Lorenzo Martinez, Chief Financial Officer and Director of Finance, ABOR 
Matt Salmon, Vice President, Government Affairs, ASU 
Adam C. Deguire, Associate Vice President, Government Affairs, ASU 
Courtney Coolidge, Senior Director, State Relations, ASU 
Bruce Nevel, Associate Vice President, Facilities Development and Management, ASU 
Joanne Wamsley, Vice President for Finance and Deputy Treasurer, ASU 
Matt Beienburg, Fiscal Analyst, JLBC 

OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT .ii.ND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 


BUSINESS At~D FINANCE 


PO 3ox 877505, T2MP<o, AZ 85287-7505 
!480) 7?_7 9920 F~x: 1480! 727-9922 



Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


On behalf of the Arizona Board of Regents, Arizona State University (ASU) 
requests Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) review of the following items 
as required by ABOR policy, ARS 15-1683, and ARS 15-1671. 

Issuance of Bonds 

Arizona State University plans to undertake bond-financed projects including construction 
of the Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building (ISTB) 7 on the Tempe campus, 
as well as improvements to the university's information technology (IT) infrastructure at 
multiple campuses. These projects respond to the need to provide students, faculty and 
staff with high-quality facilities and the associated infrastructure that will enable their 
success and support the key elements of ASU's Strategic Enterprise Framework. 
Additional information regarding these projects is included on the following pages. 

Arizona Board .of Regents executive summaries are attached, which outlines the terms 
and other details relevant to these projects. 



Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


2. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

Project Description 

The proposed improvements to the university's information technology (IT) infrastructure 
are essential to advancing its mission of demonstrating leadership in academic 
excellence and accessibility. These improvements will accelerate the achievement of 
the university's vision of universal learning, an evolving model of higher education that 
provides academic, training and skill-building opportunities to learners from all 
socioeconomic backgrounds, wherever they may be located, through diverse learning 
experiences. ASU's existing IT infrastructure is aging and does not fully support the 
university's role as a comprehensive knowledge enterprise dedicated to access, 
excellence and impact. 

The IT infrastructure improvements planned on all campuses will focus on four 
fundamental network and infrastructure elements: network infrastructure security; 
network infrastructure capacity; data center capacity; and network-enabled smart and 
secure campuses. 

The Construction Manager at Risk, Design-Build and Job Order Contracting methods will 
be used to deliver these improvements, based upon the needs of the individual project 
components. 

This debt-financed project will be funded with $32.0 million in system revenue bonds. 
The debt service will be funded with tuition. There are no expected increases in 
operation and maintenance costs associated with these IT infrastructure improvements. 

An Arizona Board of Regents executive summary is attached for this project, which 
outlines the project description and other relevant information. Additionally, tables are 
included in this request that summarize the financial aspects of this project. This project 
is scheduled to receive Capital Development Plan recommended approval at the 
September 13, 2018, Finance, Capital and Resources committee meeting and approval 
at the September 27-28, 2018, Arizona Board of Regents meeting. The project will not 
move forward without Arizona Board of Regents approval. 

Project Costs 

Total Project Cost $ 32,000,000 

Total Project Construction Cost N/A 

Total Project Cost per GSF N/A 

Total Construction Cost per GSF N/A 




Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


PROJECT SUMMARY -Revenue Bonds 

Projects: 
Interdisciplinary Science & Technology Bldg 7 
Information Technology (IT) Infrastructure 
Improvements 
Total 

FINANCING INFORMATION 

System Revenue Bonds: 
Project Costs 
Estimated Costs of Issuance 
Anticipated Bond Rating 
Assumed Interest Rate 
Term 

Debt Service Information: 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY20 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY21 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY22-40 
Estimated Annual Debt Service FY 41-43 
Estimated Total Debt Service 

DEBT RATIO 

Debt Ratio on Existing Debt 

Incremental Debt Ratio 

Project Debt Ratio 


Funding Sources: Amount: 
CIF Funds!Tuition $175,000,000 
Tuition 32,000,000 

$207,000,000 

$207,000,000 
$1,805,000 

Aa2 (Moody's) and AA (S&P) 
3. 76%/3.68% 

20-24 years 

$3,325,971 
$12,255,962 
$14,075,887 
$11,742,752 

$318,252,049 

4.50 
.46 

4.96 

http:76%/3.68


Joint Committee on Capital Review 

Arizona State University 


September 2018 JCCR Meeting 


Arizona State University 
Information Technology Infrastructure Improvement 

System Revenue Bonds 

Fiscal Year Princi~al Interest Total 

2021 $750,000 $1,581,909 $2,331,909 
2022 1,175,000 1,158,832 2,333,832 
2023 1,220,000 1,115,592 2,335,592 
2024 1,260,000 1,070,696 2,330,696 
2025 1,310,000 1,024,328 2,334,328 
2026 1,355,000 976,120 2,331,120 
2027 1,405,000 926,256 2,331,256 
2028 1,460,000 874,552 2,334,552 
2029 1,510,000 820,824 2,330,824 
2030 1,570,000 765,256 2,335,256 
2031 1,625,000 707,480 2,332,480 
2032 1,685,000 647,680 2,332,680 
2033 1,745,000 585,672 2,330,672 
2034 1,810,000 521,456 2,331,456 
2035 1,880,000 454,848 2,334,848 
2036 1,945,000 385,664 2,330,664 
2037 2,020,000 314,088 2,334,088 
2038 2,095,000 239,752 2,334,752 
2039 2,170,000 162,656 2,332,656 
2040 2,250,000 82,800 2,332,800 

$32,240,000 $14,416,461 $46,656,461 


Estimated issue date March 1, 2020. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Finance, Capital and Resources Committee 
September 13, 2018 

Item# 
Page 5 of 8 

Arizona Board of Regents 

Arizona State University 


Amended Capital Development Plan - Project Justification Report 

IT Infrastructure Improvements 


Previous Board Action 

• 	 None 

Project Justification/Description/Scope 

• 	 The Information Technology (IT) Infrastructure Improvements project is essential to 
advancing the university's mission of demonstrating leadership in academic 
excellence and accessibility. These improvements will accelerate the achievement 
of the university's vision of universal learning, an evolving model of higher education 
that provides academic, training and skill-building opportunities to learners from all 
socioeconomic backgrounds through diverse learning experiences. ASU's existing 
IT infrastructure is aging and does not fully support the university's role as a 
comprehensive knowledge enterprise dedicated to access, excellence and impact. 

• 	 The information technology infrastructure improvements planned on all campuses 
will focus on four fundamental network and infrastructure elements: network 
infrastructure security; network infrastructure and capacity; data center capacity; and 
network-enabled smart and secure campuses. 

o 	 Network Infrastructure Security: To support the university's commitment 
to preserving the availability, confidentiality and integrity of its information 
resources, proactive security management is required. Upgrades to the 
university's firewalls are critical to meeting the demands of sharply increasing 
network traffic, as is securing web services, improving network segment security 
and providing endpoint protection. 

o 	 Network Infrastructure and Capacity: To support the university's ambitious 
academic and research initiatives, the fiber backbone, as well as the wired 
and wireless networks, must be upgraded. To create more resilient and reliable 
networks, the fiber will be upgraded to the new standard in an estimated forty 
buildings, as well as in the associated network closets. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Finance, Capital and Resources Committee 
September 13, 2018 

Item# 
Page 6 of 8 

The university's high-density wireless capacity will also be expanded and 
obsolete technology that poses a security vulnerability or no longer supports 
current technologies will be replaced in over 1,000 university learning spaces. 
These upgrades will support the use of classroom and instructional technologies 
to enhance learning and support student success. 

o 	 Data Center Capacity: To meet the university's current and future high
performance computing requirements, upgrades to its primary data center on 
the Tempe campus are critical, as it is currently operating at capacity. 

o 	 Network-Enabled Smart and Secure Campuses: To ensure secure campus 
communities, the outdated emergency call boxes will be upgraded with a smart 
version, in preparation for the ASU Array of Things. The ASU Array of Things will 
consist of a network of interactive sensors that will collect real-time data on the 
campus environment, infrastructure and activity. These emergency stanchions 
will function as the physical platform on which the university will build the ASU 
Array of Things for the next generation of smart and secure campuses. 

Project Delivery Method and Process 

• 	 The Construction Manager at Risk, Design-Build and Job Order Contracting 
methods will be used to deliver these improvements, based upon the needs of 
the individual project components. 

Project Status and Schedule 

• 	 Installation of the infrastructure improvements is scheduled to start in March 2019 
and project completion is estimated for March 2022. 

Project Cost 

• 	 The total budget for the IT Infrastructure Improvements project is $32.0 million. 

• 	 The project costs are based upon current market competitive pricing. A competitive 
procurement process, including at least three state-contracted vendors, will be 
used to complete these infrastructure improvements. 

Fiscal Impact and Financing Plan 

• 	 The $32.0 million IT Infrastructure Improvement project will be funded with system 
revenue bond proceeds and the annual debt service of approximately $2.3 million 
will be funded by tuition. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Finance, Capital and Resources Committee 
September 13, 2018 

Item# 
Page 7 of 8 

• 	 There are no expected increases in operation and maintenance costs associated 
with the IT Infrastructure Improvements project. 

• 	 Debt Ratio Impact: The projected incremental debt ratio impact for this project is 
0.08 percent. 

Occupancy Plan 

• 	 The installation of the proposed improvements will not impact occupancy or 
programs, but it will support the advancement of the university's academic and 
research initiatives. 

Statutory/Policy Requirements 

• 	 ABOR Policy Chapter 7-102(8) requires Amended Capital Development Plan 
approval for new projects added outside of the regular Capital Development Plan. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Finance, Capital and Resources Committee 
September 13, 2018 

Item# 
Page 8 of 8 

Capital Project Information Summary 

University: Arizona State University Project Name: IT Infrastructure Improvements 

Project Description and Location: This project will upgrade, increase and install IT 
infrastructure, wireless systems and associated network security infrastructure at all 
ASU campuses. 

Project Schedule: 

Planning 
Design Start 
Installation Start 
Installation Completion 

March 
January 
March 
March 

2018 
2019 
2019 
2022 

Project Budget: 

Total Project Cost 
Total Project Construction Cost 
Total Project Cost per GSF 
Construction Cost per GSF 

$ 32,00
$ 
$ 
$ 

0,000 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Change in Annual 0 & M Cost: 

Utilities 
Personnel 
All Other Operating 

Subtotal 

$ 

$ 0 

Funding Sources: 

Capital $ 32,000,000 
Funding Source: System Revenue Bonds 

Operation/Maintenance $ 0 
Funding Source: Not Applicable 



2 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

jfoint Qtommittee on Qtapital l\etliehl 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: September 13, 2018 

TO: Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: Micaela Larkin, Senior Fiscal Analyst 

SUBJECT: Pima County Community College District - Review of Revenue Bond Projects 

Request 

A.R.S. § 15-1483 requires Committee review of any community college projects financed with revenue 
bonds that do not require voter approval. The Pima County Community College District (PCCCD) 
requests Committee review of their bond projects totaling $65,000,000. The monies would finance new 
construction and renovation at the Downtown Campus and renovations at the East Campus and the 
West Campus. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. 	 A favorable review of the request. 

2. 	 An unfavorable review of the request. 

Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following provisions: 

A. 	 PCCCD shall provide the final debt service schedule and interest rate for the projects as soon as they 
are available. 

B. 	 On or before July 31 of each year until completion of the projects financed from the bond issuance, 
PCCCD shall report to the JLBC Staff on the status and expenditures of each project. The report shall 
include the project expenditures to date, the expected completion date, and any change in project 
scope. 

(Continued) 

http:azleg.gov


- 2 -


Key Points 
1) Pima County Community College District is seeking review of a $65.0 M bond project. Under 

statute, non-voter approved community college bonds require JCCR review. 
2) The $4.5 M debt service will be paid from system revenues including tuition and fees. 
3) PCCCD will allocate $54.4 M in expenses for the Downtown Tucson, East Campus and West 

campuses, and has allocated $10.6 M for project contingencies. 
4) The monies will primarily be used for projects for the public safety, health professions, and 

applied technology program areas. 
5) The new bond will not cause PCCCD to exceed the Statutory Debt Ratio or Expenditure Limit. 

Analysis 

The bond issuance of $65.0 million includes $54.4 million to enhance 3 of its 6 campuses: $43.3 million 
for the Applied Technology and continuing education programs at the Downtown Campus, $5.2 million 
for the Public Safety and Emergency Services Institute at the East Campus, and $5.4 million for the 
Nursing & Allied Health and science programs at the West Campus. The expenditure plan also includes 
$500,000 for districtwide improvements to bookstore and vendor service areas at all campuses. 

The remaining $10.6 million is allocated for materials/labor escalation and contingency. 

PCCCD developed a master capital plan beginning in 2015 based on community input to align their 
capital expenditures with workforce needs. Working with the community and faculty, PCCCD identified 
projects for the public safety, health professions, and applied technology program areas to better meet 
the needs of students, the community, and private industry. The District plans to use the bond proceeds 
for construction and renovation projects to support these targeted program areas and other needs at 
the 3 campuses. 

Downtown Campus 
The Downtown campus opened in 1974 in a remodeled office building. The campus grew by purchasing 
15 additional buildings. The Campus has a total of 206,105 square feet. During 2016-2017, the campus 
served a headcount enrollment of 11,140 students, an (8.3}% decrease since the previous year. The 
proposed projects at this campus expand the Applied Technology programs and continuing education 
programs related to manufacturing, machinery, and production of goods. The expenditure plan detailed 
below are the estimates provided by PCCCD, as the as the district has yet to finalize plans or seek bids. 

The proposed expenditure plan includes $43.3 million for the following improvements: 

• 	 $20.0 million to construct a new space for the automotive/transportation program including new 
program initiatives for heavy diesel and autonomous technology. 

• 	 $10.5 million for the renovation or construction of shared space for offices, classrooms and labs to 
be used by college and industry/business partners for the applied technology programs as well as 
continuing education. 

• 	 $6.0 million for the renovation and/or construction of new space for welding, machine tools, 
engineering, and manufacturing for programs. For example, PCCCD is currently providing a training 
program for engineers of the Caterpillar company to learn hands on welding and machining skills so 
as to improve their design. 

(Continued) 



- 3 

• 	 $3.8 million for renovation and/or construction of space for Computer Aided Design and expanded 
advanced manufacturing programs, provide integrated learning environments, and partner with the 
community. 

• 	 $3.0 M to purchase land to allow for future development of the campus. Currently, the PCCCD is 
purchasing 227 W. Drachman (52,508 square foot property) and is negotiating for the purchase of 
225 W Drachman (35,888 square foot property). The total expected cost for the 2 properties is $2.7 
million. 

East Campus 
Located near Davis-Monthan Air Force Base, the East Campus was established in 1976. The Campus 
currently houses supply chain management, pharmacy technician, emergency medical technician, and 
Veterinary Science programs. There are 15 buildings, with a total 155,857 square feet. 

The expenditure plan includes $5.2 million for the relocation of the Public Safety and Emergency 
Services Institute from a different site. This allows the Fire Sciences and Law Enforcement programs to 
be combined with the Emergency Medical Technology program that is already located on the East 
Campus. During 2016-2017, the campus served a headcount enrollment of 6,812 students, a (9.2)% 
decrease from the previous year. 

West Campus 
Established in the early 1970s, the West Campus was the first permanent campus for the district. The 
campus includes 19 buildings and a total of 529,601 square feet, and houses the Nursing and Allied 
Health programs, the Digital Arts program, and the Visual and Performing Arts programs. The 
expenditure plan includes $5.4 million for the renovation of labs/classroom space utilized by the 
Nursing, Allied Health, and Science programs. During 2016-2017, the campus served a headcount 
enrollment of 13,021 students, a decrease of (8.5)% since the previous year. 

Since these are estimates, PCCCD indicated that any additional bond proceeds may be used to fund 
other projects in PCCCD's master plan. 

Financing 
PCCCD plans on issuing the $65.0 million in revenue bonds in January 2019 with a 20-year term and an 
estimated interest rate of 3.6%. The annual debt service payments would be approximately $4.S 
million. Over the term of the bonds, the total debt service approximately $90.0 million. The debt 
service will be primarily funded from tuition and fees along with other miscellaneous operating 
revenues. {See Table 1 for a summary of the bondfinancing terms). 

PCCCD expects a bond rating of Aa from Fitch ratings and AA from Moody's Investor Service which is a 
similar rating level to prior bond issuances. 

A.R.S. § 15-1484 allows each community college district to incur a projected annual debt service of up to 
8% of each institution's total projected annual expenditures less any expenditures for voter approved 
general obligations bonds. This calculation is known as the debt ratio. PCCCD reports no outstanding 
revenue or general obligation bonds. With the current proposal, the PCCCD's annual debt service 
obligation would be $4.5 million. PCCCD's total budgeted expenditures for FY 2019 are $165.2 million, 
resulting in an estimated debt ratio of 2.7%. 

The Arizona Constitution generally limits community college spending to the 1980 level plus adjustments 
for changes in student population and inflation. The spending limit excludes payments for debt service 
and proceeds from bonds and would be unaffected by the PCCCD bond proposal. 

(Continued) 



- 4 -

Table 1 

Pima Community College District Bond Estimates 

Issuance Amount $65,000,000 

Issuance Date January 2019 

Issuance Transaction Fees $585,000 

Rating Aa/AA (Moody's)/(Fitch) 

Interest Rate 3.6% 

Term 20 years 

Total Debt Costs $90.0 million 

Debt Service Payments $4.5 million (FY 2019 - FY 2038) 

Payment Source $4.5 million from tuition and fees, and other 
operating revenues 

Debt Ratio Increase 2.7% 

Construction Costs 
The total proposed expenditure plan shown in Table 2 includes $54.4 million for the design, 
construction, and renovation projects, and $10.6 million allocated for contingencies. PCCCD has yet to 
finalize the plans for the allocation of the space and design parameters. Information on project size and 
cost per square foot were based on preliminary estimates provided by PCCCD. 

Table 2 

Pima Community College District Bond Expenditure Plan 

Camp us/Prolect 
Downtown Campus 

Amount 
$43.3 M 

Project 
Size (SF) Cost[SF 

Applied Technology - Automotive/Transportation 

Applied Technology - Workforce Development Programs 

Applied Technology - Welding/Machine Tools/Engineering 

Applied Technology - Makerspace/Computer-Aided Design (CAD) 

Downtown Campus - Purchase Adjacent Real Estate 

East Campus 

$20.0 M 

$10.5 M 

$6.0M 

$3.8 M 

$3.0 M 

$5.2M 

77,537 

67,941 

26,657 

22,476 

N/A 

$257 

$155 

$225 

$169 

N/A 

Public Safety and Emergency Services Institute $5.2 M 16,600 $310 

West Campus 

Nursing & Allied Health 

Science Labs 

Districtwide Renovation of Bookstore and Food Services 

Contingency 

Expenditure Plan 

$S.4M 

$2.7 M 

$2.7 M 

$0.SM 

$10.6 M 

$65.0 M 

13,481 

12,600 

$207 

$214 

ML:kp 



Office of the Chancellor 

~~ 

~~ 

PimaCountyCommunityCollegeDistrict 

August 30, 2018 

The Honorable David Livingston, Chair 
Joint Committee on Capital Review 
1700 W. Washington 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

RE : 	 Request for Placement on Agenda for Joint Committee on Capital Review 
Meeting Scheduled for September 20, 2018 

Dear Chairman Livingston: 

Pursuant to A.R.S § 15-1483, Community College Districts are required to submit information to the Joint 
Committee on Capital Review regarding projects that will be funded with revenue bond proceeds. We are 
pleased to provide this letter as a request from the Pima County Community College District to be placed on the 
September 20, 2018 agenda of the Joint Committee on Capital Review for such review. 

BACKGROUND: Pima Community College is comprised of six different campuses, as well as multiple learning 
and education centers, delivering specialized training programs across approximately 1.7 million square feet of 
facilities and 539 acres of district grounds. The College serves more than 42,000 students annually, providing 
traditional and online instruction and awarding certificates and associate's degrees in a variety of fields, with 
185 total transfer and occupational programs. Entering its soth Anniversary, Pima Community College has ranked 
among the largest multi-campus community colleges in the nation. 

For the past several years, Pima Community College has embarked on an extensive process to develop 
educational and capital funding priorities, resulting in the Educational and Facilities Master Plans. The guiding 
principles for the planning process were to: align like programs and services across the College; use space more 
efficiently; reduce facility operating costs; leverage capital to renovate facilities to create modern, flexible, 
learning environments; and establish Centers of Excellence. Most importantly, the plans identify the need to 
update and modernize workforce training equipment and facilities to support innovative program and career 
pathways, ensuring students are prepared to succeed. 

The Governing Board of the College believes the master plan improvements are important for the continued 
success of the College and are a significant step toward essential facilities improvements and upgrades that will 
efficiently and effectively benefit the students of the College, the Pima County workforce, and the community 
at large. 



PROJECT INFORMATION: 


CAMPUS PROJECT AMOUNT DESCRIPTION NEED 

The Downtown Campus is located just north of the downtown Tucson business area and the University of 
Arizona. The 24-acre campus has more than 206,105 square feet, and the College recently expanded the 
footprint to include two vacant properties of approximately 3 acres adjacent to the Campus to allow for 
expansion. The Downtown Campus will be a Center of Excellence for our applied technology programs, which 
are delivered in collaboration with on-site industry partners embedded within multiple disciplines, as demand 
requires. The Center of Excellence - Applied Technology will be for transportation technology, 
manufacturing/advanced manufacturing, and infrastructure. Estimated projects total with soft costs: $43.275 
million 
Downtown Automotive I $19,950,000 

Transportation 
New construction to 
allow for expansion of 
the program and provide 
space for new program 
initiatives such as heavy 
diesel and autonomous 
vehicle technologies. 
New construction orDowntown Makerspace I $3,800,000 

CAD renovation. 

Downtown New construction or$6,000,000Welding/ 
renovation.Machine 

Downtown Center of $10,525,000 New construction or 
Excellence  renovation of shared use 
Applied offices, conference 
Technology centers, additional 

community rooms, and 
classrooms and labs. 

Improve existing programs and 
expand program footprint. 

Enhances student collaboration 
among various advanced 
manufacturing programs. Space 
will also facilitate partnerships 
with local business, industry, 
workforce development, local 
school districts, and community 
events. 
Expand program footprints to 
properly align allotted square 
footage with actual program and 
industry standards. Additionally, 
affords industry partners 
continuing education and training 
opportunities. 
Accommodate mixed used of 
College and industry/business 
partners. 

Downtown Real Estate $3,000,000 Purchase real estate near Allow for future development to 
Expansion Downtown Campus. accommodate programs. 
Opportunities 

The East Campus is on Tucson's Southeast Side and offers a wide range of programs, including Emergency 
Medical Technician and Veterinary Technology. East Campus will be the Center of Excellence for the Public 
Safety and Emergency Services Institute (PSESI) and Computer Information Systems (CIS) programs, which are 

21Page 



CAMPUS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NEEDAMOUNT 
delivered in collaboration with industry partners and on-site at multiple locations, as demand requires. The 
East Campus also provides educational services at the Davis-Monthan Air Force Base (DMAFB). Estimated 
projects total with soft costs: $5.15 million 
East Align PSESI programs with 

and 
Relocation and Public Safety $5,150,000 

Emergency Medical Technology 
Emergency 

renovation of PSESI 
program. programs already located on 

Services Campus and establish Center of 
Institute Excellence. 
(PSESI) 

The West Campus is home to top-flight Nursing and Health-Related Professions programs, along with Digital, 
Visual, and Performing Arts, and the College's International Student Services. The West Campus will be the 
Center of Excellence for Nursing & Allied Health. Estimated projects total with soft costs: $5.5 million 
West For today's high-tech, high-touch 

renovation to establish 
Allied Health Expansion and $2,700,000 

healthcare fields, the Center of 
Center of Excellence for Excellence will provide the 
Nursing & Allied Health. community with highly trained 

professionals and enhance 
regional workforce. 

West Supports Center of Excellence for 
Modernizes more than 

Science Labs $2,800,000 Science labs renovation. 
Nursing & Allied Health. 

30 lab spaces, establishes 
integrated classroom and 
lab instructional model, 
and expands lab space to 
provide flexible learning 
spaces that 
accommodate new 
pedagogies. 

Multiple Supports efforts of College's 
Bookstore 
Food Service I $500,000 Renovations combine 

contracted food service and 
Renovations 

vendor service areas and 
bookstore vendor. 

convenient one-stop 
shop for students. 

Material and labor 

provide a modern, 

$10,575,000 
escalation & contingency 
TOTAL BOND AMOUNT $65,000,000 

Fl NANCIAL INFORMATION: 
• 	 Not-to-Exceed Bond Amount: $65 million 

• 	 Preliminary Estimated Fixed Interest Rate: 3.6% 

• 	 Projected Annual Debt Service Amount: $4.5 million to be paid from tuition and fees, contracts, 
commissions and rents and other operating revenues of the College. The College currently has no 
outstanding bond debt. 

3IPage 



• Bond Term: 20 years (average life 11.12 years) 	 PRELIMINARY DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

Revenue Bonds, 
• Total Estimated Debt Service: $89.96 million Series 2018 or 2019 

• Estimated costs of issuance: $585,000 Fiscal 

Year Principal 

Estimated 

Interest (a) 

Total 

Debt Service 

• Anticipated date of issuance: Early January 2019 2019 $3,365,000 $1,130,688 $4,495,688 

2020 1,885,000 2,612,700 4,497,700 
• Credit Ratings: The College plans to pursue credit ratings from 2021 1,960,000 2,537,300 4,497,300 

both Moody's Investor Service and Fitch Ratings. Ratings 2022 2,040,000 2,458,900 4,498,900 

discussions are preliminarily scheduled for mid-October. 2023 2,140,000 2,356,900 4,496,900 

Ratings are expected to be in the "Aa" /"AA" range from Fitch 
and Moody's. 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2,250,000 

2,360,000 

2,480,000 

2,249,900 

2,137,400 

2,019,400 

4,499,900 

4,497,400 

4,499,400 

• Bond Insurance: A cost/benefit analysis will be considered 2027 2,600,000 1,895,400 4,495,400 

following the assignment of ratings. If advantageous for the 2028 2,730,000 1,765,400 4,495,400 

College, bond insurance will be secured. 2029 

2030 

2,870,000 

3,010,000 

1,628,900 

1,485,400 

4,498,900 

4,495,400 

• Statutory Debt Ratio: Pursuant to A.R.S § 15-1484, Subsection 2031 3,165,000 1,334,900 4,499,900 

B, the issuance of bonds (other than general obligation bonds) 2032 3,290,000 1,208,300 4,498,300 

by a Community College District is not permitted if the 
issuance would cause the maximum annual debt service to 
exceed 8% of the institution's current expenditures (less 

2033 

2034 

2035 

2036 

3,420,000 

3,560,000 

3,700,000 

3,885,000 

1,076,700 

939,900 

797,500 

612,500 

4,496,700 

4,499,900 

4,497,500 

4,497,500 
amounts general obligation bond debt service). The College 2037 4,080,000 418,250 4,498,250 
does not currently have any bond debt outstanding. With the 2038 4,285,000 214,250 4,499,250 

issuance of the proposed revenue bonds, the maximum annual $59,075,000 $30,880,588 $89,955,588 

debt service is estimated to be less than 3% of current 
(a) Interest on the Revenue Bonds Is estimated and is based 

expenditures. 	 on current Market MMD from 8/13/2018 with an 
estimated All-in True Interest Cost of 3.60%. 

On September 5, 2018, the College Governing Board is expe'Cted to adopt a resolution authorizing the issuance 
of the bonds. The resolution included the obligation to submit the required information to the Joint Committee 
on Capital Review. The pricing of the bonds is tentatively scheduled for early January 2019 with an expected 
bond closing in late January. 

Thank you very much for your consideration of our request. If additional information is needed, please do not 
hesitate to contact me or Dr. David Bea, Executive Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration. 

Sincerely, 

' { 	 . 
'-~ . . ~-$~ ----------Lee D. Lambert,'Chancellor 

Pima County Community College District 

Cc: 	 Senator John Kavanagh, Vice-Chair JCCR 
Mr. Richard Stavneak, JLBC 
Ms. Micaela Larkin, JLBC 
Dr. David Bea, Pima Community College 

4jPage 



3 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

jfoint ~ommitttt on ~apital l\tbitbl 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: 	 September 13, 2018 

TO: 	 Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: 	 Morgan Dorcheus, Fiscal Analyst VID 

Chris Gustafson, Senior Fiscal AnalystCJi,. 


SUBJECT: 	 Arizona Department of Administration/Arizona Exposition and State Fair- Review of 
Funding for Cooling Units 

Request 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires Committee review of expenditure plans for building renewal monies. At its 
June 2017 meeting, the Committee favorably reviewed the Arizona Department of Administration's 
(ADOA) FY 2018 building renewal allocation plan. Pursuant to a Committee provision, ADOA is 
requesting review of its plan to reallocate $400,000 to replace cooling units at the Arizona Exposition 
and State Fair (AESF) grounds. 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 also requires Committee review of expenditure plans for monies appropriated for 
capital projects. AESF proposes providing $400,000 of matching funds to replace the cooling units, for a 
total project cost of $800,000. Between the FY 2018 and FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bills, AESF has $1.2 
million in unallocated capital funds which have not been reviewed by JCCR. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 3 options: 

1. 	 A favorable review of the request to have ADOA building renewal pay for $400,000 of the project 
and AESF to pay for $400,000 from its own funds. The latter would be funded from $190,000 of 
AESF's FY 2018 capital appropriation and $210,000 from their FY 2019 capital appropriation. 

2. 	 A favorable review of a proposal to require AESF to pay for the total $800,000 cost of the project 
($190,000 from the FY 2018 capital appropriation and $610,000 from the FY 2019 capital 
appropriation). 

3. 	 An unfavorable review of the request. 

(Continued) 

http:azleg.gov


- 2 -


Key Points 
1) In June 2017, the Committee favorably reviewed ADOA's '18 building renewal plan. 
2) ADOA proposes reallocating $400,000 to replace cooling units at the State Fair. 
3) AESF would match the building renewal monies with $400,000 from the State Fair Fund, for a 

total project cost of $800,000. 
4) The Committee may consider an option requiring the fair to pay 100% of the cost of the project. 
5) Existing AESF capital appropriations would be sufficient to cover the full cost of the project. 

Under any option, the Committee may also consider the following provision: 

A. 	 If AESF does not spend the full $400,000 (or $800,000) from its own fund on the cooling unit 
replacement, the agency must submit a plan to JCCR for review before reallocating the monies to 
any other projects. 

Analysis 

ADOA and AESF report that the air conditioning cooling units for the Arizona Veterans' Memorial 
Coliseum located on AESF grounds are over SO years old and are beyond their useful life. ADOA has 
reported that the cooling units require annual repairs to maintain operation, and failure of the units 
would limit the ability of AESF to perform critical functions. As part of the state's annual capital planning 
process, AESF has requested replacement of the cooling units in their FY 2020 Capital Improvement 
Plan. 

ADOA's approved FY 2018 building renewal plan allocated monies to major building services (HVAC 
system replacements and elevator repairs), project scoping and professional services, and an emergency 
contingency. The ADOA proposal would reallocate $400,000 from those project categories for 
replacement of the Coliseum cooling units. 

In addition to a reallocation of ADOA FY 2018 building renewal monies, AESF would pay $400,000 for the 
project from the Arizona Exposition and State Fair Fund, which receives revenues from AESF events and 
is the sole source of funding for the agency. The total estimated cost of the project is $800,000. See 
Table 1 for a summary of the project expenditure plan. 

Table 1 

ADOA Project Cost Estimates 

Removal and Abatement $ 40,000 
Design & Engineering 70,000 
Construction 650,000 
Contingency 40.000 

TOTAL $800,000 

Historically, AESF receives a $1.0 million appropriation from the Arizona Exposition and State Fair Fund 
each fiscal year for capital projects. The Legislature has intended for the agency to be self-funded for 
capital costs based on event revenues. ADOA has identified replacement of the cooling units as urgent, 
and reallocated $400,000 from FY 2018 building renewal monies as a result. 

(Continued) 



- 3 -


As of September 2018, AESF has not allocated $190,000 of its FY 2018 capital project appropriation and 
has the full $1.0 million remaining of its FY 2019 capital project appropriation. 

Under Option 1 (the ADOA proposal), Committee review would include review of both the ADOA 
building renewal reallocation and the AESF $400,000 allocation ($190,000 from their FY 2018 capital 
appropriation and $210,000 from their FY 2019 capital appropriation). AESF will have $790,000 
remaining for FY 2019 projects. 

AESF has sufficient funding to pay the full $800,000 cost of the project. Under Option 2, AESF would pay 
the entire cost from their own funds, $190,000 from their FY 2018 capital appropriation and $610,000 
from their FY 2019 capital appropriation. AESF has an approximate balance of $2.0 million should the 
Legislature need to appropriate additional funding to cover the totality of AESF's capital needs, including 
non-cooling unit issues. 

The purpose of Option 2 would be to preserve ADOA building renewal funds for General Fund agencies 
or for non-General Fund agencies with insufficient fund balances to afford their own repairs. 

AESF has expressed concerns that under Option 2, paying $610,000 from the FY 2019 appropriation 
would leave only $390,000 for FY 2019 projects. As a result, AESF may delay some of their other 
projects. It is difficult to evaluate this impact since AESF has not yet submitted any other FY 2019 
projects for JCCR review. 

MD:kp 



Douglas A. Ducey 
Governor 

Gilbert Davidson 
Interim Director 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR 

100 NORTH FIFTEENTH AVENUE• SUITE 401 
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 

(602) 542-1500 

August 28, 2018 

The Honorable, John Kavanagh, Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) 
Arizona State Senate 
1700 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

The Honorable David Livingston, Vice-Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) 
Arizona House of Representatives 
1700 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Dear Senator Kavanagh and Representative Livingston: 

Section 41-1252, Arizona Revised Statutes, provides the Joint Committee on Capital Review 
(JCCR) shall review the expenditure of all monies appropriated for building renewal. Laws 2017, 
First Regular Session, Chapter 306 (SB 1523) appropriated $8,300,000 to the Arizona 
Department of Administration (ADOA) to allocate to the ADOA Building System for building 
renewal projects. 

At it's June 2017 meeting, JCCR gave favorable review to the FY 2018 ADOA Building System, 
Building Renewal Allocation Plan. The review included a provision that ADOA shall report any 
reallocations between projects to JLBC Staff. If ADOA adds a new non-emergency project not 
listed in this request, the department must submit the proposed project and expenditure plan for 
committee review. 

ADOA requests JCCR review for the re-allocation of $400,000 from ADOA's FY 2018 ADOA 
Building System, Building Renewal Allocation Plan for replacement of the Arizona Veterans 
Memorial Colisuem cooling towers located at the Arizona State Fair Grounds. The existing 
cooling towers are over 50 years old and beyond their expected useful life. The Arizona 
Exposition and State Fair (AESF) will also be providing a match of $400,000 to fund the project. 

DoclD:adaab8ceb4725c2127a347dOc7bb781ed117207d 



The Honorable John Kavanagh 
The Honorable David Livingston 
August 28, 2018 
Page 2 of2 

If you have any questions regarding the proposed reallocation please contact Nola Barnes, 
Assistant Director, ADOA General Services Division (GSD), at 602-542-1954. 

Sincerely, 

Gilbert Davidson 
Interim Director 

Attachments (2) 

cc: 	 Richard Stavneak, Director, JLBC Staff 
Rebecca Perrera, Fiscal Analyst, JLBC Staff 
Matt Gress, Director, OSPB 
Jacob Wingate, Budget Analyst, OSPB 
Kevin Donnellan, Deputy Director, ADOA 
Nola Barnes, Assistant Director, ADOA/GSD 
John Hauptman, General Manager, ADOA/GSD 

DoclD:adaab8ceb4725c2127a347dOc7bb781ed117207d 



$800,000: Exposition & State Fair, Arizona (AESF) - Replace Coliseum Cooling Towers 

The Arizona Veterans Memorial Coliseum is cooled by a physical plant located 200 feet north of 
the Coliseum. The plant consists of an existing Marley three cell 1500-ton cooling tower 
installed in 1964, and three 500-ton Carrier chillers installed in 1993. The existing cooling 
towers are over 50 years old and beyond their expected useful life. Numerous repairs to the 
rotting wooden structure are necessary each year to maintain operation of the Coliseum cooling 
systems. These repairs are costly as the exterior panel cladding is comprised of Asbestos 
Containing Materials (ACM) and must be abated properly. 

The Coliseum currently generates approximately $2 million annually in revenue for the AESF 
and hosts numerous events including concerts, graduations, shows and trainings throughout the 
year. In addition, the administrative functions for the AESF are located within the Coliseum. 
Failure of the cooling towers would interrupt mission critical functions and cost the AESF much 
needed revenue generated from the Coliseum. Timing is critical as the replacement must take 
place immediately following the conclusion of this year's State Fair. ADOA and AESF will each 
be providing $400,000 to fund the total project budget of $800,000. 

AESF Cooling Tower Replacement Estimate 

Abatement/Removal of Existing Cooling Towers $40,000 

Design/Engineering Costs $70,000 

Estimated Construction Costs $650,000 

Contingency (5%) $40,000 

Total $800,000 

Project funds will be allocated from the following fund sources: 

AIJOA Bllildlng Renewal Funding 

FY 2018 Building Renewal Contingency Allocation $150,353 

FY 2018 Building Renewal Project Scoping & Professional Services $139,602 

FY 2018 Building Renewal Major Building Services Allocation $110,045 

ADOA Sub-Total $400,000 

AESF Funding 

FY 2019 Cl4001 - Coliseum Fund $400,000 

AESF Sub-Total $400,000 

TOTAL ALLOCATION $800,000 

DoclD:adaab8ceb4725c2127a347dOc7bb781ed117207d 



$800,000: Exposition & State Fair, Arizona (AESF) - Replace Coliseum Cooling Towers 

DoclD:adaab8ceb4725c2127a347dOc7bb781ed117207d 



4 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

jfoint Qtommitttt on QCapital 3L\ti.littu 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 8S007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: 	 September 13, 2018 

TO: 	 Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: 	 Morgan Dorcheus, Fiscal Analyst tv\O 
SUBJECT: 	 Arizona Department of Veterans' Services - Review of Veterans' Home Construction 

Projects 

Request 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires Committee review of expenditure plans for monies appropriated to capital 
projects. The Arizona Department of Veterans' Services (ADVS) is requesting review of $27,200,000 
($19,200,000 from the General Fund and $8,000,000 from the State Home for Veterans' Trust Fund) for 
construction of new veterans' homes facilities in Yuma and Flagstaff. These monies were appropriated 
in the FY 2015, FY 2017, and FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bills. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. 	 A favorable review of the request. 

2. 	 An unfavorable review of the request 

Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following provisions: 

A. 	 Committee review does not constitute endorsement of General Fund appropriations for start-up 
costs at the Yuma and Flagstaff facilities. 

B. 	 ADVS shall submit a report to the Committee by September 1, 2019 on the estimated start-up costs 
for both the Yuma and Flagstaff facilities and if the State Home for Veterans' Trust Fund has a 
sufficient balance to fund those costs. 

(Continued) 

http:azleg.gov


- 2 -


Key Points 
1) The Legislature has appropriated $27.2 M for part of the cost to construct 2 veterans' homes. 

The federal government pays the remainder of the cost. 
2) The 80-bed facilities will be in Yuma ($31.7 M) and Flagstaff ($34.2 M). 
3) The state normally pays 35% ofthe cost of construction. The federal government, however, only 

approved 60-bed facilities (as requested by ADVS). 
4) As a result, the state will pay a total of $6.0 M between the 2 projects as a 100% state cost. 
5) The building designs are consistent with VA guidelines. 
6) Construction is estimated to begin in spring 2019 and take approximately 18 months to 

complete. 
7) Ongoing operational costs will be funded through the State Home for Veterans' Trust Fund. 
8) ADVS has not yet determined if an additional request will be made for initial start-up costs. 

Analysis 

Background 
The FY 2015 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2014, Chapter 15) appropriated $9.2 million from the General Fund 
for 35% of the cost of construction and establishment of a veterans' home facility in Yuma. The 
appropriation was made non-lapsing and conditional on receiving the other 65% share of the cost from 
the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). 

The FY 2017 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2016, Chapter 126) appropriated $10.0 million from the General 
Fund for 35% of the cost for construction and establishment of a veterans' home facility in Flagstaff. 
This appropriation was also made non-lapsing and conditional on receiving the other 65% share of the 
cost from the VA. 

In April 2018, the VA approved grants for 65% of the cost for construction of both the Yuma and 
Flagstaff veterans' home facilities. To account for changes in construction costs during the approval 
process, the VA allows states to request up to a 10% increase in total construction costs, with a 
requirement that the state cover 35% of the increase (with the other 65% share from the VA). 

The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated an additional $8.0 million from 
the State Home for Veterans' Trust Fund ($4.0 million for the Yuma Home and $4.0 million for the 
Flagstaff Home). This additional funding was allocated to: 1) cover the state's share of the 10% cost 
increase; and 2) allow sufficient funds to cover the state-only cost of ADVS increasing the size of both 
facilities from 60-beds to 80-beds, as ADVS had applied for federal funding for 60-bed facilities. 

Design 
Under the current proposal, both the Yuma and Flagstaff facility will consist of 80 beds, including 5 units 
with 16 beds in each. Each unit will be skilled nursing care, with one of the 5 units being a secure 
memory care unit. Each bedroom will be private with a bathroom, and each unit will have a dining room 
and living room shared between the 16 beds. Additionally, the overall facilities will include a general 
store/gift shop, barber/beauty shop, meditation room, therapy rooms, lounge areas, kitchen and serving 
areas, and administrative offices. This design is consistent with current VA requirements. 

(Continued) 



- 3 -


Construction Costs 
The Yuma Veterans' Home is estimated to cost a total of $31,675,200 for 85,000-95,000 square feet, or 
$333-373 per square foot. See Table 1 for a detailed breakdown of estimated costs. The home will be 
located on donated land at the southeast corner of Avenue 6E and 34th Street in Yuma, Arizona. 

The Flagstaff Veterans' Home is estimated to cost a total of $34,157,500 for 85,000-95,000 square feet, 
or $360-402 per square foot. See Table 1 for a detailed breakdown of estimated costs. The home will 
be located on donated land between E Forest Avenue and N Pine Cliff Drive on E Gemini Road in 
Flagstaff, Arizona. 

Among veterans' homes facilities in other states that were approved for VA funding in 2018, the average 
estimated cost per bed is $395,900, compared to the Yuma Home cost of $395,900 per bed and the 
Flagstaff Home cost of $427,000 per bed. 

As of July 2018, 35% of the design plans for the homes were completed. A construction vendor has 
been selected for construction of both the Yuma and Flagstaff Veterans' Home. Construction is 
estimated to begin in spring 2019 for both homes and will take approximately 18 months to complete. 

Table 1 

Veterans' Home Construction Cost Estimates 

Costs by Project Category 
Yuma Flagstaff 

Construction $25,330, 700 $27,611,400 
Equipment 2,392,700 2,585,000 
Site Work 1,596,100 1,238,600 
Architectural & Engineering Fees 889,700 1,138,500 
Project Inspection Fees 176,800 176,000 
Administrative & Legal Expenses 61,100 66,000 
Land, Structure, Appraisals, etc. 31,800 49,500 
Contingencies 1,196,300 1,292,500 

TOTAL $31,675,200 $34,157,500 

Costs by Fund Source 
Yuma Flagstaff 

Federal Funds $18,638,900 $20,252,400 
General Fund 9,200,000 10,000,000 
State Home for Veterans' Trust Fund 3,836,300 3,905,100 

TOTAL $31,675,200 $34,157,500 

Ongoing Operational Costs 

Operation of both homes will be funded by the appropriated State Home for Veterans' Trust Fund, 

which currently receives revenue from charges for services at the existing Phoenix and Tucson veterans' 

homes. Primarily, fund deposits include private insurance, Medicare, Medicaid, and VA payments. Any 

increase in the appropriation level for this fund has not yet been determined. 


ADVS opened the Tucson Veterans' Home in January 2012. The FY 2012 budget increased the 

appropriation level for veterans' homes by a total of $4.6 million for the first year of operating costs. Of 

that amount, $2.8 million was appropriated on an ongoing basis from the State Home for Veterans' 


(Continued) 



Trust Fund and $1.8 million was appropriated one-time from the General Fund, which provided funding 
for initial start-up costs for staffing and operating supplies. The need for a similar General Fund 
appropriation for start-up costs at the Yuma and Flagstaff facilities has not yet been determined. With a 
projected balance of $27.3 million at the end of FY 2020, the State Home for Veterans' Trust Fund would 
appear to have a sufficient balance to cover these costs. 

MD:kp 



STATE OF ARIZONA 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS' SERVICES 


OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR 

3839 N THIRD STREET 


PHOENIX, AZ 85012 

Tel 602 .255.3373 •Fax 602.255.1038 

DOUGLAS A. DUCEY www.azdvs.gov WANDA A. WRIGHT 
GOVERNOR DIRECTOR 

July 20, 2018 

The Honorable David Livingston, Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review 
Arizona State House of Representatives 
1700 West Washington 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Dear State Representative Livingston: 

Laws 2016, 52nd Legislature, 2nd Regular Legislative Session, Chapter 126, Section 6 appropriated 
$10,000,000 to the Arizona Department of Veterans' Services (ADVS) for the construction and 
establishment of an Arizona State Veterans Home in Flagstaff. In addition, Laws 2018, 53rd 
Legislature, 2nd Regular Legislative Session, Chapter 277, Section 20 appropriated another 
$4,000,000 and Section 22 appropriated additional funds for the same purpose. 

Laws 2014, 51st Legislature, 2nd Regular Legislative Session, Chapter 15, Section 5 appropriated 
$9,200,000 to ADVS for the construction and establishment of an Arizona State Veterans Home in 
Yuma. In addition, Laws 2018, 53rd Legislature, 2nd Regular Legislative Session, Chapter 277, 
Section 21 appropriated another $4,000,000 and Section 22 appropriated additional funds for the 
same purpose. 

Pursuant to each appropriation, ADVS requests that JCCR place these projects on the September 
2018, agenda for review in order to proceed with construction. 

If you need further information or have questions regarding this project please contact Deputy 
Director, John F. Scott, at 602-234-8416. 

Sincerely, 

Attachments: Projects Information 

Cc: 	 The Honorable John Kavanagh, Vice-Chairman, JCCR 
Richard Stavneak, Director, JLBC 
Matthew Gress, Director, OSPB 
Morgan Dorcheus, Fiscal Analyst, JLBC 
Jacob Wingate, Budget Analyst, OSPB 



OMB Number: 4040-0008 

Expiration Date: 01/31/2019 


BUDGET INFORMATION - Construction Programs 

NOTE: Certain Federal assistance programs require additional computations to arrive at the Federal share ofproject costs eligible for participation. 

COST CLASSIFICATION 

1. Administrative and legal expenses 

2. Land, structures, rights-of-way, appraisals, etc. 

3. Relocation expenses and payments 

4. Architectural and engineering fees 

5. Other architectural and engineering fees 

6. Project inspection fees 

7. Site work 

8. Demolition and removal 

9. Construction 

10. Equipment 

11. Miscellaneous 

12. SUBTOTAL (sum oflines 1-11) 

13. Contingencies 

14. SUBTOTAL 

15. Project (program} income 

16. TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (subtract#15 from #14) 

a. Total Cost 

66,00o.ool$ I 

$ I 49,500.ool 

$ I 	 I 


$ I 1,001,000.ool 

$ I 137, 500. ooj 


$ I 116,000.ooj 

$ I 1,238,600.001 

$ I 	 I 


$ I 27,611,400.001 

$ 2, 585, ooo. oolI 


$ I 	 I 

$ I 32,865,000.ool 

$ I 1,292,500.001 

$ I 34,157,500.001 

$ I 	 I 


$ I 34, 157, 500. ool 


b. Costs Not Allowable 
for Participation 

$ I 
 I 


$ I l 

$ I 	 I 

$ I I 


$ I I 


$ I 	 I 


$ I 	 I 


$ I 	 l 
$ 3,000,000.001I 


$ I 	 l 
$ I 	 I 


$ I 3, ooo, ooo. ool 

$ I 	 l 
$ I 3, ooo, ooo.ool 

$ I 	 I 


$ 3,ooo,ooo.oolI 


If such is the case, you will be notified. 

c. Total Allowable Costs 
(Columns a-b} 

66,0oo.ool$ I 

49,500.ool$ I 


$ I 	 I 

1, 001, ooo.ool$ I 


137,500.ooi$ I 

116,000.ooj$ I 


1,238,600.001$ I 

$ I 	 I 


24,611,400.001$ I 

2,585,ooo.ool$ I 


$ I 

29,865,ooo.ool$ I 


1,292,500.001$ I 

31, 151, 500. ool
$ I 


$ I 	 I 


31,157,500.001$ I 

FEDERAL FUNDING 

17. 	 Federal assistance requested, calculate as follows: 

(Consult Federal agency for Federal percentage share.} Enter eligible costs from line 16c Multiply X I 651 % 
 $ I 20,252,375.ool 

Enter the resulting Federal share. 

I 



OMB Number: 4040-0008 
Expiration Date: 01/31/2019 

BUDGET INFORMATION - Construction Programs 

NOTE: Certain Federal assistance programs require additional computations to arrive at the Federal share ofproject costs eligible for participation. If such is the case, you will be notified. 

COST CLASSIFICATION 

1. Administrative and legal expenses 

2. Land, structures, rights-of-way, appraisals, etc. 

3. Relocation expenses and payments 

4. Architectural and engineering fees 

5. Other architectural and engineering fees 

6. Project inspection fees 

7. Site work 

8. Demolition and removal 

9. Construction 

10. Equipment 

11. Miscellaneous 

12. SUBTOTAL (sum of fines 1-11) 

13. Contingencies 

14. SUBTOTAL 

15. Project (program) income 

16. TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (subtract#15 from #14) 

a. Total Cost 

$ I 61,105.0ol 

$ I 31,162.soJ 

$ I I 
$ I 841, 2s2. sol 

$ I 48,400.ool 

$ I 176,792.ool 

$ I 1,596,100.001 

$ I I 

$ I 25,330,727.101 

$ I 2' 392' 682. 70 1 

$ I I 

$ I 30,478,821.801 

$ I l, 196' 341.351 

$ I 31,675,163.151 

$ I I 
$ 1 31,675,163.151 

b. Costs Not Allowable 
for Participation 

$ I I 

$ I I 
$ I I 

$ I I 
$ I I 

$ l I 
$ I l 
$ I I 

$ I 3,000,000.00! 

$ I I 

$ I I 
$ I 3,000,000.001 

$ I I 

$ I 3,ooo,ooo.ool 

$ I I 
$ I 3,000,000.001 

c. Total Allowable Costs 
(Columns a-b) 

61,105.001$ I 
31,762.sol$ I 

$ I 	 I 
841,252.501$ I 
48,400.ool$ I 

176,792.ool$ I 
1,596,100.001$ I 

$ I 	 I 
22,330,727.10]$ I 

2, 392, 682. 701$ I 
$ I 

27 ,478,821.801$ I 
1,196,341.351$ I 

$ I 
$ I 	 I 

28,675,163.151 

28,675,163.151$ I 
FEDERAL FUNDING 

17. 	 Federal assistance requested, calculate as follows: 
(Consult Federal agency for Federal percentage share.) Enter eligible costs from line 16c Multiply X I 651 % 18,638,856.051$ I 
Enter the resulting Federal share. 

I 

http:22,330,727.10
http:3,000,000.00


5 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

Joint qcommittee on qcapital l\ebiew 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: 	 September 13, 2018 

TO : 	 Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: 	 Ben Murphy, Fiscal Analyst BM 

SUBJECT: 	 Arizona Game and Fish Department - Review of FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation 
Plan and FY 2019 Capital Projects 

Request 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires Committee review of expenditure plans for monies appropriated for building 
renewal and capital projects and for any capital project with an estimated cost of more than $250,000. 
The Arizona Game and Fish Department (AGFD} requests the Committee review of the following items: 

• $981,000 for building renewal. 
• $300,000 for property maintenance. 
• $150,000 for dam maintenance. 
• $3,990,000 for 6 non-appropriated capital projects. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. A favorable review of the request. 

2. An unfavorable review of the request. 

With Provision B, the proposed building renewal plan is consistent with building renewal guidelines and 
appropriations. 

Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following provisions: 

(Continued} 

http:azleg.gov


- 2 -


A. 	 The distribution of the building renewal emergency allocation of $75,000 shall be addressed as 
follows: 

1. 	 AGFD shall notify the Chairman and the JLBC Staff that they plan to spend monies on an 
emergency project. The Chairman can allow AGFD to move forward with an emergency project 
without Committee review. 

2. 	 If the Chairman does not agree that a project is an emergency and that the project will require 
full Committee review, the JLBC Staff will notify AGFD. 

An "emergency" project is defined as unforeseen, critical in nature, and of immediate time 

sensitivity. 


B. 	 In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-790, AGFD's Headquarters Major Maintenance Fund may not use 
building renewal monies for movable equipment. 

Key Points 
AGFD is seeking review of: 

1) $981,000 for 23 items in its FY 2019 building renewal allocation plan. 

2) 	 $300,000 for property maintenance at 3 fish hatcheries statewide. 
3) 	 $150,000 for dam maintenance at 8 dams statewide. 
4) 	 $4.0 M for 6 non-appropriated capital improvement projects statewide. 

Analysis 

FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation Plan 
The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated a total of $981,400 from the 
Game and Fish Fund for building renewal, which provides for the major maintenance and repair of state
owned buildings. Please see Table 1 below for a summary of the 23 items in the expenditure plan, as 
well as the descriptions below for individual project details and cost estimates. As background, regional 
offices serve as a base of operations for AGFD personnel in their respective areas and typically employ 
around 30 employees, wildlife areas are habitats of particular recreational significance that employ a 
full-time manager on-site, and fish hatcheries produce the sportfish stocked throughout Arizona lakes. 

Flagstaff Regional Office Projects 
• 	 An inspection from the department's staff revealed that the office's front entry stairs and hand 

railing is deteriorated and loose. AGFD proposes a $12,000 project to remove failing concrete, 
repair the stairs, and re-anchor the handrail to a more stable position. 

• 	 To address aging and non-operational lighting surrounding the office, the department plans to 
spend $50,000 on exterior light fixture replacements. 

Tucson Regional Office Projects 
• 	 The office's current fire alarm system is 34 years old and has been noted in contracted annual 

inspections as being outdated and nearly inadequate. AGFD plans to replace the entire system for 
$30,000 with standards consistent with newer systems in other department offices. 

(Continued) 



- 3 -


Table 1 

FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation Plan Y 

Regional Office Projects 

Flagstaff - Entry Stairs Renovation $12,000 

Flagstaff - Exterior LED Light Fixture Replacement 50,000 

Tucson - Fire Alarm System Replacement 30,000 

Tucson - HVAC Replacements 45,000 

Tucson - Drywall Repair 15,000 

Pinetop - Door Hardware System Replacement 75,000 

Kingman - Parking Lot Maintenance 37,000 

Mesa - HVAC Replacements 35,000 

Subtotal 299,000 

Wildlife Area Projects 

Sipe - Bunkhouse Foundation and Roof Repairs 25,000 

Sipe - Well Re-Sleeve and Sterilization System 33,000 

Horseshoe - Reroof and Structural Repairs 95,000 

Horseshoe - Septic System Design 25,000 

PS Ranch - Cabin Door Repair 10,000 
Subtotal 188,000 

Headquarters/Shooting Facility Projects 

Headquarters - Exterior LED Light Fixture Replacement 25,000 

Ben Avery - Conservation Education Building Reroof 5,000 

Ben Avery - Hunter Education Building Reroof 18,300 

Subtotal 48,300 

Fish Hatchery Projects 

Page Springs - Pavement Repair 75,000 

Canyon Creek - Pavement Repair 75,000 

Tonto Creek - Pavement Repair 75,000 

Bubbling Ponds - Research Center HVAC Replacement 15,000 

Subtotal 240,000 

Maintenance and Emergency Allocations 

Headquarters Major Maintenance Fund 52,200 

Emergency Allocation 75,000 

Preventative Maintenance 78.500 
Subtotal 205,700 

Total $981,000 

J} All estimates are from AGFD engineer estimates or licensed contractor bids. 

(Continued) 



- 4 

• 	 The department has determined that 3 HVAC units have outlived their useful life and require costly 
repairs. It plans to replace the units with new, energy efficient alternatives for $45,000. 

• 	 Due to condensation from HVAC units, the drywall in mechanical rooms has deteriorated. For 
$15,000, AGFD will remove and replace 400 square feet of damaged drywall. 

Pinetop Regional Office Door Locking System Replacement 
The door locking hardware system at the office is outdated, has experienced failures and is based on a 
standard no longer used by the state. The department has transitioned into a more secure key system 
with card access and auditing capabilities. At a cost of $75,000, AGFD would fund a new door locking 
hardware system for the office, conforming with its other buildings. 

Kingman Regional Office Parking Lot Maintenance 
The department proposes a $37,000 project to remove and replace damaged asphalt at its Kingman 
Regional Office, as well as seal cracks, apply a double seal coating, and paint new striping. 

Mesa Regional Office HVAC Replacement 
AGFD has determined that its Mesa Regional Office, like the Tucson Office, has 3 HVAC units that are too 
outdated and costly to repair. It plans to replace those units with newer models for a total of $35,000. 

Sipe Wildlife Area Projects 

• 	 The department has detected foundation settlement and roofing separation at its Sipe Wildlife Area 
bunkhouse. To fix these issues, AGFD would allocate $25,000 to permanently stabilize the 
foundation and floor and to improve the building's drainage, which was identified as a contributing 
factor the structure's settlement. 

• 	 The wildlife area's well system, which provides water to the area manager, volunteers and 
bunkhouse, is vulnerable to surface water runoff contamination. AGFD plans to spend $33,000 on 
re-sleeving the well and installing a new filtration/sterilization system. 

Horseshoe Wildlife Area Projects 

• 	 A recent inspection revealed a deteriorating and unsafe roof at the main house at Horseshoe 
Wildlife Area. For a total of $95,000, the department would install a new standing seam metal roof 
and replace and repair damaged wood beams and boards. 

• 	 The wildlife area is remote and independent of any outside sewer system. As such, the area has 5 
individual septic systems, which do not adequately accommodate heavy use for instances of events 
and meetings. AGFD would spend $25,000 to evaluate and design a comprehensive site septic 
system. 

PS Ranch Wildlife Area Cabin Door Repair 
The cabin at the PS Ranch Wildlife Area has nonfunctional double doors to its storage and utility room 
due to floor settlement. To address that issue, AGFD proposes a $10,000 plan to remove the trim from 
the door jamb, remove wood space to provide more room for the door and re-adjust the door for 
normal operation. If necessary, the department may replace the door and frame. 

Headquarters and Ben Avery Shooting Facility Projects 

• 	 AGFD would allocate $25,000 to improve lighting at AGFD's Headquarters in North Phoenix. By 
switching existing fixtures to LED lighting, the department estimates annual savings of $7, 700. 

(Continued) 



- 5 

• 	 The Ben Avery Shooting Facility includes a Conservation Education Building. The building's flat, tar
and-gravel roof is 20 years old and risks failure. For $5,000, AGFD plans to install a new membrane 
roof with a 10-year warranty. 

• 	 The Ben Avery Shooting Facility also features a Hunter Education Building with a roof in similar 
condition to that of the Conservation Education Building. The Hunter Education Building is 
considerably larger; therefore, the department would spend $18,300 on a new membrane roof with 
a 10-year warranty. 

Fish Hatchery Projects 

• 	 The Page Springs Hatchery's parking lot has been damaged by the root system of a large tree and 
requires other maintenance. AGFD plans to spend $75,000 on removal and replacement of 
damaged asphalt, crack seals, double seal coats and new striping. 

• 	 The Canyon Creek Hatchery parking lot is experiencing similar deterioration, with particularly severe 
cracking. The department would allocate $75,000 on repairs, maintenance and striping. 

• 	 AGFD would also spend $75,000 on repairing, maintaining and striping the parking lot of Tonto 
Creek Hatchery. 

• 	 Located at Bubbling Ponds Hatchery, the Aquatics Research Conservation Center conducts 
conservation research on endangered Arizona fish populations. The building includes staff offices 
and research areas, where climate control is of particular importance. AGFD plans to replace 2 
outdated HVAC units with newer models at a total cost of $15,000. 

Maintenance and Emergency Set-Asides 
The department designated 3 allocations for maintenance and emergency purposes: 

• 	 An emergency allocation of $75,000 for unscheduled and unanticipated building system or 
equipment repairs requiring immediate response, to be addressed as described by Provision A. 

• 	 The department proposes a deposit of $52,200 into its Major Maintenance Fund. This non-state 
interest-bearing account is designed to cover future major maintenance capital expenses for the 
AGFD headquarters building, which has 14 years left on its lease-purchase agreement. AGFD lists 
"upgrades to telecommunications and information systems" as one use of this fund. Provision B 
clarifies that telecommunications and information systems excludes movable equipment, such as 
laptops. 

• 	 As permitted by A.R.S. § 41-793.010, AGFD has set aside 8%, or $78,500 of its FY 2019 building 
renewal appropriation for preventative maintenance, which may include maintenance contracts for 
HVAC, backup power generators, pavement maintenance, and sewage systems. 

FY 2019 Property Maintenance 
The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated $300,000 from the Capital 
Improvement Fund for Property Maintenance. AGFD proposes using the funds for hatchery 
maintenance, allocated to 2 main areas: 

• 	 $200,000 for Phase 2 of a Silver Creek Hatchery repair. This amount would fund the repair and new 
lining of raceways (where fish are cultured) and add covering to the units. 

• 	 $100,000 for mold abatement at the residences of Tonto Creek Hatchery, Silver Creek Hatchery and 
Canyon Creek Hatchery. The houses are situated near slopes that can cause water damage and 
mold after significant rain events. 

(Continued) 



-6 -

FY 2019 Dam Maintenance 
The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated $150,000 from the Capital 
Improvement Fund for Dam Maintenance. AGFD owns and operates 37 dams statewide. The 
department proposes allocating the funding in 2 areas: 

• $100,000 for enhancing the collection of dam safety information. The funding would allow the 
transition of data transmitters from analog (radio) to digital (cellular) at 3 dams: Roper, Cluff Ranch 
and Lee Valley. These transmitters are referred to as Automated Local Evaluation in Real Time 
(ALERT) systems, which transmit real-time data to AGFD to determine dam water level safety. The 
funding would also implement stationery cameras to dams at Parker Canyon, Pena Blanca, Roper, 
Fool Hollow, Lee Valley and Lynx Lake, add additional batteries and enhance solar panels at ALERT 
sites statewide, facilitate a software transition, and provide additional maintenance. 

• $50,000 for maintenance at Ellis Wiltbank Reservoir Dam. These measures include rebuilding 
slopes, new stones for erosion protection, fencing to prevent cattle trespassing, and extending the 
outlet pipe by 10 feet. 

Non-Appropriated Cap ital Projects Exceeding $250,000 
The department has requested review of the following projects pursuant to statutory provisions 
requiring JCCR review of any capital project with an estimated cost over $250,000: 

Wildlife Center Animal Care Building 
The department's Adobe Mountain Wildlife Center closed in May 2018 due to deteriorating 
infrastructure. The facility served to treat wildlife injuries, rehabilitate animals, and provide educational 
and volunteer opportunities for the public. AGFD is currently operating a modular office with nearby 
animal enclosures as a temporary wildlife center. 

The department proposes constructing a 2,400 square foot building to operate as its new wildlife center. 
The building will be situated on a half-acre plot and will include a parking lot, roadway, utilities, 
sidewalks, landscaping, signage and fencing. The project is funded through $1,650,000 in Federal Funds, 
with $150,000 of that set aside as a contingency. In addition, the facility will include a deer enclosure 
funded $17,000 from the Game and Fish Fund, favorably reviewed by the JCCR in April 2018. 

The new facility will facilitate public outreach and education programs, provide daily care for wildlife 
used in those programs and rehabilitate sick, injured, orphaned or confiscated wildlife. 

Bubbling Pond Hatchery Fish Culture Building 
AGFD proposes a $1,200,000 multi-phase project for a new fish culture building at Bubbling Pond 
Hatchery. The goal of the project is to provide additional capacity to propagate native aquatic species 
while also increasing production capacity for sportfish, such as rainbow trout. For example, AGFD plans 
to begin mass production of Sono ran suckers to provide a native bait fish for the state's anglers, which 
may reduce risks associated with non-native bait fish. 

The first phase involves constructing a 60-foot by 100-foot metal building shell. Future phases will equip 
the building with raceways to accommodate a wide range of native fish and sport fish. 

Phase 1 of the project would be funded through $448,000 in private funding from Salt River Project, 

(Continued) 



- 7 

$200,000 from the Heritage Fund, and $100,000 from the Wildlife Conservation Fund, for a total Phase 1 
cost of $748,000. Depending on future availability of funds, the remaining $452,000 of project costs are 
planned to be funded from appropriations from the Game and Fish Fund. The project has an estimated 
completion date in 2023. 

Whitewater Draw Wildlife Area Office/Bunkhouse Replacement 
The department proposes spending $290,000 in Federal Funds to replace an office/bunkhouse at its 
Whitewater Draw Wildlife Area, as the current structure has irreparable termite damage. Of this 
amount, $40,000 would be for the historic survey and design of the structure. The remaining $250,000 
would fund the project's construction costs. 

Mittry Lake North Shore Public Access Project 
Located north of Yuma, the Mittry Lake Wildlife Area is federally-owned but managed by AGFD. The 
lake serves as a recreational area offering wildlife watching, fishing and paddle boating. The department 
proposes a $450,000 project with Federal Funds to develop a public access point on the north shore of 
the lake. This amount consists of constructing a new road, fire precautions, a paddle boat launch ramp, 
toilets, and trash receptacles. 

Lake Pleasant Multi-Agency Patrol Boat Storage 
As part of its JLBC review of a transfer of $1.0 million from its Watercraft Grants line item to its 
operating budget, AGFD proposed $300,000 for the department's portion of funding for construction of 
a shared boat storage facility at Lake Pleasant. As a capital project, the item is also subject to review by 
JCCR. AGFD currently stores its boats at a privately-owned marina that is undergoing a redevelopment. 
As part of a public-private partnership, the owner has offered an improved location, secure access, 
utilities and a gangway, and AGFD, Maricopa County Sheriff's Office, and Maricopa County Parks will 
fund the construction of the new storage facility, which includes 2 covered and 2 uncovered patrol boat 
slips. 

Lake Havasu Law Enforcement Aid Station Masterplan 
Like the item above, the department submitted this project as both a JLBC and JCCR item. The 
department proposes $100,000 for the development of an architectural master plan for a multi-agency 
boating safety center at Lake Havasu. Due to the lake's high volume of visitors, public safety is managed 
by several agencies, including the Lake Havasu Police Depa rtment, Mohave County Sheriff, Arizona State 
Parks, AGFD and other agencies. The agencies coordinate law enforcement efforts and have collectively 
identified the lack of a multi-agency boating safety faci lity as an issue. The new facility would provide 
work space for processing arrestees, an interview room, a medical care area, and a space for search and 
rescue response coordination efforts. There is not currently an estimate for the total cost of the facility. 

BM:kp 



Augu.-,1 3<J, 2<J I~ 

Repre5entativc David Living.'iton, Chainnan 

Joint Committee cm Capital Review 

Capitol Complex 

I 700 W. Wa~hingwn 


Phoenix, AZ 850()7-2890 


Re: Request for Pia.cement on Joint Committ.cc on Capital Review Ag(..'11da 

J-frmorablc RL.."J'rescntati ve Li vi ng..~t{)n: 

Jn accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1252 A(4), the Ariz,ma Game and Fish Department respectfully 
requests to be on the next schedu led agi;nda of the Joint Committ.cc on Capital Review to review 
the Ari7.on.a Game and Fish Dc.:partmc:nt's FY 19 Building Rc..-ncwal Expenditure Plan, and FY 19 
Capital Project Expenditure Plan. 

Sincerely, 

~~'427 
Deputy Director 

cc: 	 Sc.-nator John Kavanagh, Vice Chainnan, JCCR 

Richard Stavncak, Staff Director, JLBC 

Matthew Gress, Dircc.1or, OSPB 


azgfd.gov I 602.942.3000 


5000 W. CAREFREE HIGHWAY, PHOENIX AZ 85086 


GCN£QHOQ: r.()1.JClA.S A (JUCf'°f COMMl•~R• CHAJRMM4. JAMES S. ZIELER. ST JOHNS I ERIC S SPARKS, TUCSON, KURT R DAVIS. PHOENIX 


http:azgfd.gov
http:Committ.cc
http:Committ.cc


Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


FY 19 Building Renewal Appropriation Expenditure Summary by Category 

ACiFD FY19 Building Renewal Appropriation $981,000 
Fire, Life Safety, & Hazardous Abatement Projects $700,000 
Building Shell Projects $728,300 
Major Building Services Projects $770,000 
Building Interior Projects $ 75,000 
Infrastructure Projects $362,000 
Building Demolition Projects $0 
Preventive Maintenance Projects $ 78,470 
Other Projects 
Personnel Services/ERE Costs 0 
Building Renewal Project Scoping 0 
Risk Management Insurance Premium Paid from other funds 
Arizona Game and Fish State Headquarters - Major 
Maintenance Fund 

$ 52,230 

Emergency Allocation $ 75,000 
Total Planned Expenditures: $981,000 

Balance: $0* 

Reasonableness of Estimates: The allocation plan represents Game and Fish 
Department's (AGFD) estimated cost of the proposed projects. AZGFD estimates these 
costs based on past projects, contractor quotes and industry cost guides. AGFD uses its 
continuing services contractors, state contracts and issues request for quotes as 
necessary to procure vendors for each project or group of projects. As a result, the project 
cost may change as the procurement process evolves. 

Unanticipated Costs: To the extent possible, AGFD completes major maintenance and 
replacements to building systems before failures occur. Given the years of deferred major 
maintenance of an aging building system, it is difficult, if not impossible to anticipate the 
timing and nature of building component failure. In the event of one or more unexpected 
critical breakdowns or imminent failures, AGFD may redirect all or some monies from an 
allocation to address critical priorities. 

*Pursuant to ARS 41-1252 the ACiFD will submit an expenditure plan for changes to 
this plan or for any surplus balance at a future JCCR meeting for review and 
approval. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 1 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


FY 19 Building Renewal Expenditure Summary by Project 

AOFD FY19 Building Renewal Appropriation 
Flagstaff Regional Office Front Entry Stair and Railing Renovation 
Sipe Wildlife Area Bunkhouse Foundation and Roof Repairs 
Sipe Wildlife Area Domestic Well & UV Protection 
Tucson Regional Office Fire Alarm System Replacement 
Conservation Education Building Reroof 
Hunter Education Building Reroof 
Black River Lands Cabin {PS Ranch} Double Door Repair 
Horseshoe Wildlife Area Main House Reroof and Structural Repairs 
Mesa Regional Office HVAC Replacements 
Pinetop Regional Office Door Hardware Replacement and Update to 
New Key System 
Aquatics Research Conservation Center HVAC Replacement 
Tucson Regional Office HVAC Replacements 
Tucson Regional Drywall Repair 
Kingman Regional Office Parking Lot Maintenance 
Page Springs Fish Hatchery Visitor Parking Lot Repair and Maintenance 
AGFD Headquarters Exterior Lig hting Lamp LED Lamp Replacements 
Flagstaff Regional Office Exterior LED Light Fixture Replacements 
Canyon Creek Hatchery Pavement Repair 
Tonto Creek Hatchery Pavement Repair 
Horseshoe Wildlife Area Septic System Design 
AGFD State Headquarters Major Maintenance Fund 
Emerg ency Allocation 
Preventive Maintenance Projects (8% ofAppropriation total) 
Total Planned Expenditures: 

$981,000 
$72,000 
$25,000 
$33,000 
$30,000 

$5,000 
$78,300 
$70,000 
$95,000 
$35,000 

$75,000 

$75,000 
$45,000 
$75,000 

$37,000 
$75,000 
$25,000 
$50,000 
$75,000 
$75,000 
$75,000 
$52,230 
$75,000 
$78,470 

$981,000 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 2 



Arizona Game and Fish FYI 9 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Flagstaff Regional Office Front Entry Stair and Railing Renovation 

Category: Fire, Life Safety; Hazard Abatement 

Need: As part of an inspection of the Flagstaff Regional Office by AGFD's Loss Prevention 
Coordinator and Engineering staff, it was noted that existing stair and handrail is 
deteriorating and the handrail is loose. This condition was determined to be a safety 
concern for the public. 

Solution: Remove failing concrete as necessary; repair the concrete stairs and threshold; 
re-anchor the handrail to a more stable portion of the stair concrete system 

Cost Estimate 

Unit 
Activity Quantity Unit Cost Cost 

Flagstaff Regional Office Front 
Entry Stairs and Railing 1 LS $12,000 $12,000* 
Renovation 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $12,000 

*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe 
environment to its employees and the public. To not correct the issues identified would 
place AZGFD in liability of future claims and would violate ADA accessibility for the entry. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 3 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Sipe Wildlife Area Bunkhouse Foundation and Roof Repairs 

Category: Fire, Life Safety; Hazard Abatement 

Need: AGFD staff has observed separation in the roofing system and floor settlement at 
its Sipe Bunkhouse. A forensic engineering analysis determined significant foundation 
settlement to the building, likely due to subgrade saturation of moisture resulting from 
poor d ra inage and years of storm runoff. This has caused the entire building to be 
compromised. 

Solution: Permanently stabilize the perimeter foundation, and improve perimeter 
drainage. The forensic report indicated that the drainage around the structure and roof 
runoff needs to be addressed and regrade to flow away from the structure. Once the flow 
runoff has been established for 6 months and the soil has had time to stabilize, cosmetic 
repairs will be made to the building. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Permanently stabilize foundation; lift 
settled foundation, permanently 
stabilize floor; lift and level floors; lift 
and level exterior concrete 

1 LS $25,000 $25,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $25,000 

*Estimate base on a bid p rovided by Ar izona Foundation Solutions 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe 
environment to its employees and the public. Deferring this work would likely result in 
the need to condemn this valuable structure. Restoration will become more costly and 
impractical, if not impossible, the longer this issue persists. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 4 



- -----

Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Sipe Wildlife Area Domestic Well & UV Disinfection 

Category: Fire, Life Safety; Hazard Abatement 

Need: AGFD staff has observed significant water quality concerns with the current 
domestic well system that provides water to the permanent onsite manager, the onsite 
volunteer host sites, and the bunkhouse. Due to older well installation the well is 
susceptible to contamination from surface water runoff that enters the well system 

Solution: Hire a registered well contractor to re sleeve the existing well and provide solid 
pipe sleeving from below static water level to 18' above the ground surface. Provide 
proper backfill material around the existing sump of the well to protect the new sleeve 
system and grade the surface away from the well location. Above ground install a new 
filtration system with UV sterilization to provide better quality water. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Re-sleeve domestic well and 
provide filtration and sterilization 
system to the domestic water 
system 

l LS $33,000 $33,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $33,000 

*Estimate base on an engineer's estimate 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe 
environment to its employees and the public. Deferring this work causes health and 
safety issues to the employees and visitors of the wildlife area. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 5 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Tucson Regional Office Fire Alarm System Replacement 

Category: Fire, Life Safety; Hazard Abatement 

Need: AGFD owns and operates six Regional Offices around the state (Pinetop, Flagstaff, 
Kingman, Yuma, Tucson and Mesa) . These offices are typically occupied by 25 to 35 
permanent staff and act as a base station for law enforcement officers and other field 
personnel. They are also AGFD's primary customer service locations throughout the state, 
providing hunting and fishing license sales, boating registration and a variety of 
information resources regarding Arizona's wildlife. During the last several annual 
inspections of the fire alarm system by a qualified state contracted firm, it was continually 
noted the system is outdated and replacement should be seriously conside red . The fire 
alarm system is over 34 years old. Fire alarm systems shou ld be replaced every 20 years. In 
addition replacement components for this system are hard if not impossib le to find. 

Solution: Replace the entire fire alarm system with a new non-proprietary standardized 
system consistent with other newer systems throughout AGFD's other Regional offices. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Replace the entire fire alarm system 1 LS $30,000 $30,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $30,000 

*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work and past projects 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe 
environment to its employees and the public. Deferring this work causes health and 
safety issues to the employees and visitors of the Regional office. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 6 



Arizona Game and Fish FYI 9 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Conservation Education Building Reroof 

Category: Building Shell Project 

Need: The flat, built-up roofing on the Conservation Education Building is greater than 20 
years in age and has far exceeded its useful life. A recent inspection indicated imminent 
failure in several locations. 

Solution: Install new coating restoration system 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Install roof Membrane w/10 Year 
Warranty l LS $5,000 $5,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $5,000 

*Estimate base on bids provided by AGFD Continuing Services, licensed contractors 
Total area of improvement: 1,825 sq.ft. ($2.75/sq ft) 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to preserving its 
administrative assets. To defer this work could result in interior damage, costly repairs 
and restoration/remediation due to roof failure. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 7 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Hunter Education Building Reroof 

Category: Building Shell Project 

Need: The flat, built-up roofing on the Hunter Education building is greater than 20 years 
in age and has far exceeded its useful life. A recent inspection indicated imminent failure 
in several locations. 

Solution: Install new coating restoration system 

Cost Estimate 

Unit 
Activity Quantity Unit Cost Cost 

. 
Install Membrane w/10 Year 
Warranty 1 LS $18,300 $18,300* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $18,300 

*Estimate base on bids provided by AGFD Continuing Services, licensed contractors 
Total area of improvement: 6,650sq.ft. ($2.75/sq ft) 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to preserving its 
administrative assets. To defer this work could result in interior damage, costly repairs 
and restoration/remediation due to roof failure. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 8 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Black River Lands Cabin (PS Ranch) Double Door Repair 

Category: Building Shell Project 

Need: The exterior double metal doors that access the storage, water system, and solar 
system controls of the cabin are not functional due to building settlement. 

Solution: Remove the trim around the door jamb and evaluate the wood space between 
the door frame and the log header. Remove and replace the filler wood as necessary. 
Re-straighten the door frame for normal operation. Replace the door and frame only if 
required. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

PS Ranch Cabin Double Door Repair 1 LS $10,000 $10,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $10,000 

*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to preserving its 
administrative assets. To defer this work could result in damage, costly repairs and 
restoration/remediation due to continued sagging and the doors not being operational. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 9 



----- --- ----

Arizona Game and Fish FYI9 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Horseshoe Wildlife Area Main House Reroof and Structural Repairs 

Category: Building Shell Project 

Need: The sloped roofing on the Main House building is greater than 20 years in age and 
has far exceeded its useful life. A recent inspection indicated imminent failure in several 
locations and some wood beams and fascia have already deteriorated. 

Solution: Install new standing seam metal roof with metal clad around the fascia for 
added protection and extended life. Replace/repair deteriorated wood that is observed 
now and may be exposed when the roof material is removed. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

-
Horseshoe Ranch Main House 
Reroof (Standing Seam Metal) and 
Structural Repairs 

1 LS $95,000 $95,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $95,000 

*Estimate base on bids provided by AGFD Continuing Services, licensed contractors 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to preserving its 
administrative assets. To defer this work could result in interior damage, costly repairs 
and restoration/remediation due to roof failure. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 10 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Mesa Regional Office HVAC Replacements 

Category: Major Building Services 

Need: AGFD owns and operates six Regional Offices around the state (Pinetop, Flagstaff, 
Kingman, Yuma, Tucson and Mesa). These offices are typically occupied by 25 to 35 
permanent staff and act as a base station for law enforcement officers and other field 
personnel. They are also AGFD's primary customer service locations throughout the state, 
providing hunting and fishing license sales, boating registration and a variety of 
information resources regarding Arizona's wildlife. Several of the HVAC units are well 
beyond their useful life and are in need of costly repairs or are showing signs of fatigue 
and may fail at any time. 

Solution: Replace three HVAC units with new energy efficient units. 

Cost Estimate: 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Replace aging HVAC units with new 
more energy efficient units. 

l LS $35,000 $35,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $35,000 

*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe, quality 
work environment for its employees. The failure of existing HVAC units is a certainty, and 
will necessitate emergency replacement, if it is allowed to occur. Failure of HVAC 
equipment will also create an environment that is not comfortable or safe for Department 
employees and visitors. To defer this project will result in further failure of existing 
equipment and create poor working conditions for staff and unsuitable conditions for the 
public. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 11 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Pinetop Regional Office Door Hardware Replacement and Update to New Key 
System 

Category: Major Building Services 

Need: The door hardware at the Pinetop regional office has experienced several failures 
with the lock mechanisms. The locks are over 25 years old are using the outdated Keeso 
key system that the state no longer uses nor supports. AZGFD has transitioned to a new 
Sargent restricted large format interchangeable core (LIFC) key system with key control 
and card access systems. This allows for better auditing of door use, and necessitates 
fewer keys be physically issued, reducing the liability and cost if keys are misplaced or lost. 

Solution: Provide new door hardware with the new Sargent restricted LFIC key system to 
all doors; provide card access to restricted doors that have higher volume use and need 
better audit capabilities. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Provide new door hardware with the 
new Sargent restricted LFIC key 
system to all doors Provide card 
access to restricted doors that have 
higher volume use and need better 
audit capabilities. 

l LS $75,000 $75,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $75,000 

*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work and previous p rojects 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe, quality 
work environment for its employees. Without this project employees cannot unlock 
certain doors requiring them to use other doors, creating an inefficent work environment 
and presenting potential hazards. The Pinetop Regional Office will also continue to lack 
the ability to selectively control and audit access to the building. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 12 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Aquatic Research Conservation Center HVAC Replacement 

Category: Major Building Services 

Need: The Aquatics Resea rch Conservation Center (ARCC) cond ucts fish study and 
research on fish species for better introduction into t he wild , genetic propagation, and fish 
production. This building houses offices for st aff and resea rch studies which need to be 
cli mate controlled. Both of the HVAC units are well beyond their useful life and are in 
need of costly repairs or are showing signs of fatigue and may fail at any time. 

Solution: Replace two HVAC units with new, energy efficient units. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost 

Cost 

Aquatic Research Conservation 
2

Center HVAC Replacement 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: 

*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work 

EA $7,500 
I 

$15,000* 

$15,000 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to provid ing a safe, quality 
work environment for its employees. Without replacing these units the units will fai l and 
have to be replaced on an emergency basis whil e compromising staff worki hg conditions 
and center operations. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 13 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Tucson Regional Office HVAC Replacement 

Category: Major Building Services 

Need: AGFD owns and operates six Regional Offices around the state (Pinetop, Flagstaff, 
Kingman, Yuma, Tucson and Mesa). These offices are typically occupied by 25 to 35 
permanent staff and act as a base station for law enforcement officers and other field 
personnel. They are also AGFD's primary customer service locations throughout the state, 
providing hunting and fishing license sales, boating registration and a variety of 
information resources regarding Arizona's wildlife. Several of the HVAC units are well 
beyond their useful life and are in need of costly repairs or are showing signs of fatigue 
and may go out at any time. 

Solution: Replace three HVAC units with new, energy efficient units. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 

Tucson Regional Office HVAC 
1 LS

Replacement 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: 

*Estimate based on Eng ineers estimate for work 

Unit 
Cost 

$45,000 

Cost 

$45,000* 

$45,000 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe, quality 
work environment for its employees. The failure of existing HVAC units is a certainty, and 
will necessitate emergency replacement, if it is allowed to occur. Failure of HVAC 
equipment will also create an environment that is not comfortable or safe for Department 
employees and visitors. To defer this project will result in further failure of existing 
equipment and create poor working conditions for staff and unsuitable conditions for the 
public. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 14 



---------

Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Tucson Regional Office Drywall Repair 

Category: Building interior 

Need: AGFD owns and operates six Regional Offices around the state (Pinetop, Flagstaff, 
Kingman, Yuma, Tucson and Mesa). These offices are typically occupied by 25 to 35 
permanent staff and act as a base station for law enforcement officers and other field 
personnel. They are also AGFD's primary customer service locations throughout the state, 
providing hunting and fishing license sales, boating registration and a variety of 
information resources regarding Arizona's wildlife. Over the years drywall in the 
mechanical rooms has deteriorated due to condensate from HVAC equipment. The 
condensate problem will be corrected by the installation of new HVAC equipment 
submitted separately under this expenditure plan. 

Solution: Remove and replace damaged drywall. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost 

Cost 

Remove and replace damaged 
drywall. 

400 SF $37.00 $15,000* 
-

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $15,000 

*Estimate based on Eng ineers estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to providing a safe, quality 
work environment for its employees and visitors. To defer this project will result in further 
failure of drywall and possible damage to wall framing. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 15 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Kingman Regional Office Parking Lot Maintenance 

Category: Infrastructure 

Need: The Arizona Gam e and Fish Department (AGFD) owns and operates six Regiona l 
Offices around the state (Pinetop, Flagstaff, Kingman, Yuma, Tucson and Mesa}. These 
offices are typ ica lly occupied by 25 to 35 perm anent staff and act as a base station for law 
enforcement officers and other field personnel. They are also AGFD's primary customer 
service locations throughout the state, providing hunting and fishing license sales, 
boating registration and a variety of information resources regarding Arizona's wildlife. 
AGFD implemented major renovations to the Kingman administrative building in FY 2016. 
Due to budget limitations parking lot maintenance was deferred. Both the publ ic and 
employee parking lot are in strong need of repair and resurfacing. 

Solution: Saw cut, remove and replace damaged asphalt; seal all cracks; apply double seal 
coat; apply new striping 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Project: Kingman Regional Office 
Parking Lot Maintenance 

1 LS $37,000 $37,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $37,000 
*Estimate based on a bids provided by local licensed contractors 
Total area of improvement: 77,950 sqft [$.47/sqft) 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is com mitted to preservi ng its 
administrative assets. To defer this w ork will resu lt in further pavem ent degradation and 
more costly repairs in the future. Poor parki ng lot con d it ions may cause damage to sta ff 
and visitor vehicles, poses a risk of walking inj u ry, and det racts from the public's image of 
AGFD. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 16 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Page Springs Fish Hatchery Visitor Parking Lot Repair and Maintenance 

Category: Infrastructure 

Need: The Arizona Game and Fish Department (AGFD) owns and operates six hatcheries 
around the state (Page Spring, Tonto Creek, Canyon Creek, Silver Creek, Sterling Springs, 
and Bubbling Ponds). These facilities raise sport and native fish for the state stocking 
program of lakes and stream thought out the State. The facilities are staffed 24 hours/7 
days a week with large transport trucks used to transport the fish for stocking on a regular 
basis. All hatcheries except Sterling Springs are open to the public for viewing of the 
hatchery operations, bird watching, to wildlife information. 
The pavement around the visitor center is in need of major repair due to a large tree that 
the root system has grown and heaved the pavement up throughout the ADA parking 
stalls. In addition the remainder of the parking lot is indeed of creak seal and overlay to 
preserve the pavement. 

Solution: Saw cut, remove and replace damaged asphalt; seal all cracks; apply double seal 
coat; apply new striping 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Page Springs Fish Hatchery 
Parking Lot Repair and 
Maintenance 

1 LS $75,000 $75,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $75,000 

*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to preserving its 
administrative assets. To defer this work could result in further pavement degradation 
and more costly repairs in the future. Poor parking lot conditions may cause damage to 
staff and visitor vehicles, poses a risk of walking injury, and detracts from the public's 
image of AGFD. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 17 



--- ------

Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: AGFD Headquarters Exterior LED Lamp Replacements 

Category: Infrastructure 

Need: AGFb occupies a 118,000 square foot Headquarters com plex on Carefree Highway 
in Phoenix. These offices are typically occupied by 300 to 350 permanent staff. It and act 
as a base station fo r law enforcement office rs and other field personnel. It is also AGFD's 
primary customer service location, providing hunting and fishing license sa les, boating 
reg istration and a variety of ihformation resources regarding Arizona 's wildlife. A recent 
cost/benefit study has indicated t hat converting to LED exterior lighting will have a three 
year payback with a savings of less than three years, w ith an annual savings thereafter of 
$7,700. 

Solution: Replace existing fixture internal components with new LED lighting 
components using the existing light fixture and wiring. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

AZGFD Headquarters Exterior 
Lighting Fixture Replacement. 

1 LS $25,000 $25,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $25,000 

*Estimate based on a bids p rovided by local licensed contractors 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: To defer this work would result in lost 
opportunity to reduce power and maintenance cost at the Headquarters facility. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 18 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Flagstaff Regional Office Exterior LED Light Fixture Replacements 

Category: Infrastructure 

Need: The Arizona Game and Fish Department (AGFD) owns and operates six Regional 
Offices around the state (Pinetop, Flagstaff, Kingman, Yuma, Tucson and Mesa). These 
offices are typically occupied by 25 to 35 permanent staff and act as a base station for law 
enforcement officers and other field personnel. They are also AGFD's primary customer 
service locations throughout the state, providing hunting and fishing license sales, 
boating registration and a variety of information resources regarding Arizona's wildlife. 
This facility has many evening hour public events as well as law enforcement and field 
staff coming and going at all hours. Most of the exterior lighting around the site is 
non-operational and is over 25 years old, creating a security and public safety concern for 
employees and visitors. 

Solution: Replace existing exterior fixtures with new LED fixtures. Reuse existing wiring 
and poles. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Flagstaff Regional Office Exterior 
Light Fixture Replacements 

l LS $50,000 $50,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $50,000 

*Estimate based on a bids provided by local licensed contractors 

~I 	 Impact of Not Approving this Request: To defer this work would result in continued 
safety and security concerns for both staff and the public and lost opportunity to reduce 
power and maintenance cost long term. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 19 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Canyon Creek Fish Hatchery Pavement Repair 

Category: Infrastructure 

Need: The Arizona Game and Fish Department (AGFD) owns and operates six hatcheries 
around the state (Page Spring, Tonto Creek, Canyon Creek, Silver Creek, Sterling Springs, 
and Bubbling Ponds). These facilities raise sport and native fish for the state stocking 
program of lakes and stream thought out he State. The facilities are staff 24 hours/7 days 
a week with large transport trucks use the d to transport the fish for stocking on a regular 
basis. All hatcheries except Sterling Springs are open to the public for viewing of the 
hatchery operations, bird watching, to wildlife information. The site pavement is in need 
of major repair work. Many cracks have opened open to over two inches due to sub-base 
problems and are creating safety concerns for employees, delivery vendors, and the 
public. These conditions are also damaging the concrete curbing and undermining the 
slope stability of the site. Due to the severity of the pavement conditions this will be a 
multi- year project. The first phase will address major cracks requiring extensive saw 
cutting, pavement removal and sub-base improvements. The next phase will include 
crack seal and pavement overlay. This work will use both Building Renewal funds and 
funds from the AGFD Aquatics hatchery program. 

Solution: Saw cut, remove and replace damaged asphalt; seal all cracks; apply double seal 
coat; apply new striping 

Cost Estimate: 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Canyon Creek Fish Hatchery Parking 
Lot Maintenance 

1 LS $75,000 $75,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $75,000 
*Estimate based on E11g ineers estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to preserving its 
administrative assets. To defer this work could result in further pavement degradation 
and more costly repairs in the future. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 20 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Tonto Creek Fish Hatchery Pavement Repair 

Category: Infrastructure 

Need: The Arizona Game and Fish Department (AGFD) owns and operates six hatcheries 
around the state (Page Spring, Tonto Creek, Canyon Creek, Silver Creek, Sterling Springs, 
and Bubbling Ponds) . These facilities raise sport and native fish for the state stocking 
program of lakes and stream thought out he State. The facilities are staffed 24 hours/7 
days a week with large transport trucks use the d to transport the fish for stocking on a 
regular basis. All hatcheries except Sterling Springs are open to the public for viewing of 
the hatchery operations, bird watching, to wildlife information. . The site pavement is in 
need of major repair work. Many cracks have opened open to over two inches due to 
sub-base problems and are creating safety concerns for employees, delivery vendors, and 
the public. These conditions are also damaging the concrete curbing and undermining 
the slope stability of the site. Due to the severity of the pavement conditions this will be a 
multi- year project. The first phase will address major cracks requiring extensive saw 
cutting, pavement removal and sub-base improvements. The next phase will include 
crack seal and pavement overlay. This work will use both Building Renewal funds and 
funds from the AGFD's Aquatics hatchery program. 

Solution: Saw cut, remove and replace damaged asphalt; seal all cracks; apply double seal 
coat; apply new striping 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Tonto Creek Fish Hatchery 
Pavement Maintenance 

l LS $75,000 $75,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $75,000 
*Estimate based on Engineers estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: AGFD is committed to preservin g its 
administrative assets. To defer this work could result in further pavement degradation 
and more costly repairs in the future. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 21 



-----

Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Project: Horseshoe Wildlife Area Septic System Design 

Category: Infrastructure/Hazard Abatement 

Need: Horseshoe Wildlife Area Headquarters is a remote, off-grid facility and has over 
fifteen structu res with five structures havi ng potable w ater and ind ividua l sept ic systems. 
Th is fa cil ity hosts multi ple events and meetihgs, both Interna l and external to AGFD with 
up to 50 people occupying t he site at a t ime. Several of t he septic system s are old and 
show signs of failure during heavy use. The remote location does not provide for a public 
sewer system tie as would be in an urban setting . 

Solution: Evaluate providing a site septic system rather than individual septic system for 
each building. This request is for an analysis of the existing system and design of a new 
site septic system. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity Quantity Unit 
Unit 
Cost Cost 

Horseshoe Wildlife Area Septic 
System Design l LS $25,000 $25,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $25,000 

*Estimate based on an Eng ineer's estimate 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: To defer this work will result in failure of the 
septic systems, potential threat to human health and violation of ADEQ system 
requirements. The would result in scaling back the use of this valuable facility. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 22 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


Arizona Game and Fish State Headquarters Major Maintenance Fund 

Background: As part of th e lease pu rchase agreem ent fo r the AG FD Headquarters faci li t y, 
the Depa rtmeht committed to deposit ing a port ioh of its annual bu ild ing renew al 
allocat ion into a sinking fund established th rough an indenture agreem ent w ith W ells 
Fargo Corporate Trust. This fund will cover future ca pital expenses associated with m ajor 
cyclic maintenance items based on the following: 

• 	 Administration Building Roof Maintenance - Foam Roof Sealant every 7 years; new 
roof in year 25 

• 	 Interior Floors, Walls - Replace carpet flooring every 7 years; paint interior walls 
every 5 years; other flooring every 10 -15 years 

• 	 Building Systems - Assumes ongoin~l upgrades to lighting, HVAC (energy 
managemeht) , te lecommunication and information systems; security/access 
control system; fire detect ioh and alarm system 

• 	 HVAC - Ant icipated rep lacement of chi ller in year 25; air handler unit replacements 
in yea rs 20 -25; independent heat pump systems every 12 years 

• 	 Aspha lt Maintenance - Crack seal every 3 years; seal coat parking lots every 5 years; 
slurry seal main entry road every 5 years; mi ll and overlay parking lot and m ain 
entry road in year 20 

Estimated Annual Sinking Fund Requirement: $52,230 

ACFD Building Renewal Emergency Allocation 

Need: AGFD maintains more than four hundred facilities within its building and 
infrastructure system statewide, which comprises a great diversity of types including 
administrative offices, administrative sites, shooting ranges, actively and passively 
managed wildlife areas, dams, boating facilities and other recreational improvements. 
Facilities range in age from historic structures constructed in the 1930s to recently 
constructed operational and administrative facilities. It is critical that AGFD executes a 
comprehensive maintenance program that includes scheduled replacement or 
renovation of major building systems and other infrastructure, circumventing costly 
repairs and preserving the va lue and useful life of these mission critical assets. However, 
given this maintenance bu rden it is difficult if not impossible to anticipate the timi ng and 
nature of all building component failures. In the event of unexpected critical breakdowns 
or imminent failures, AGFD requires the fiscal agility to remedy those events in an 
expeditious manner. Accordingly, AGFD is requesting the following: 

Emergency Allocation: $75,000 

Expenditure Categories 
l. 	 Emergency Maintenance and Repairs: Unscheduled and unanticipated building 

system or equipment repairs requiring immediate response in order to maintain 
functionality of essential facilities and infrastructure. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 23 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Building Renewal Expenditure Plan 


2. 	 Corrective Maintenance: These maintenance activities are typically related to 
health, safety or accessibility concerns as determined by the Department's Loss 
Prevention Coordinator or Engineering staff, and require a timely response 

The distribution of the Emergency Allocation of $75,000 shall be addressed as follows: 

• 	 AGFD shall notify the Chairman and JLBC staff that they plan to spend less than 
$25,000 on an emergency maintenance and repair or corrective maintenance 
project. AGFD can proceed without Committee review 

• 	 The Chairman can allow AGFD to expend more than $25,000 on an emergency 
maintenance and repair or corrective maintenance project without Committee 
review 

• 	 The Chairman will notify AGFD if he does hot agree that the project is an 

emergency or urgent corrective action and that the project will require full 

Committee review 


Preventive Maintenance 
Per statute, AGFD may spend up to 8% ($78,480) of the total app ropriation amount on 
preventive maintenance which can include preventive ma intenance contracts for HVAC, 
backup power generators, pavement maintenance (small repairs), wastewater pump 
stations, septic systems, etc. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 24 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


FY 2019 Capital Projects Expenditure Summary 

AGFD FY19 Capital Projects Funding Amount 

Wildlife Center Animal Care Building 
C&F Fund; Federal Aid in Wildlife 
Restoration (Pittman-Robertson) 

$7,650,000 

Bubbling Pond Hatchery Fish Culture 
Building 

Salt River Project Funding; 
Heritage Fund; Wildlife 

Conservation Fund 
$750,000 

Whitewater Draw Office/Bunkhouse 
Replacement 

Federal Aid in Wildlife 
Restoration (Pittman-Robertson) 

$40,000 

Lake Pleasant Multi-Agency Patrol Boat 
Storage and Office Complex 

Watercraft licensing funds $300,000 

Lake Havasu Law Enforcement Aid 
Station Masterplan 

Water Craft $700,000 

Federal Aid in Wildlife 
Mittry Lake North Shore Public Access 
Project 

Restoration 
(Pittman-Robertson/Dingell-Joh 

$450,000 

nson) 
Hatchery Maintenance Capital Improvement Fund $300,000 
Dam Maintenance Capital Improvement Fund $750,000 

Ben Avery Retail Store and Operations 
Center (previously approved by JCCR) 

Federal Aid in Wildlife 
Restoration 

(Pittman-Robertson); Donations 
$7,250,000 

Total Planned Expenditures: $4,990,000 

Pursuant to ARS 41-1252 the Arizona Game and Fish Department will submit an 
expenditure plan for any unspent balances to a future JCCR meeting for review and 
approval. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 1 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Wildlife Center Animal Care Building 

Category: New Capital Improvement 

Funding: Game and Fish Fund; Federal State Aid Grants 

Need: Arizona Game and Fish Department (Department) opened the Adobe Mountain 
Wildlife Center (Center) in 1983 on land leased from the Department of Juvenile 
Corrections. The Center occupied approximately l.3 acres and consisted of variety of 
structures that were built primarily by volunteers over the last 30 years. Structures 
included a small wildlife treatment hospital, modular/trailer office, portable storage 
containers, and animal enclosures. These volunteer built structures have deteriorated over 
time, to the point of posing health and safety concerns. The Department closed the 
Adobe Mountain Wildlife Center the week of May 8, 2018. All remaining Education animals 
have been relocated to existing animal enclosures adjacent to the AGFD Headquarters. 

The Department's enclosures serve to shelter education animals but lack facilities 
necessary for other critical functions. Without facilities purpose designed for sensitive 
tasks such as food preparation and equipment cleaning, staff must employ time intensive 
measures to ensure proper sanitation and care. A lack of dedicated storage necessitates 
temporary storage units and other cumbersome solutions. These enclosures also lack 
office facilities, meaning that staff must move between the enclosures and offices within 
the headquarters building in order to perform their duties, such as planning educational 
events and processing paperwork, drastically reducing efficiency. Certain Department 
functions, such as emergency triage of injured wildlife cannot be performed at this facility 
at all. 

Solution: The Department proposes to build a new Wildlife Center (Center) adjacent to 
the Department Headquarters within a master planned development footprint 
(multi-year phasing). The Center will carry forward the legacy of the Adobe Mountain 
facility by: 

l. 	 Planning, building and maintaining facilities to ensure the health and safety of 
native birds and mammals used in Department outreach and education efforts 

2. 	 Delivering public outreach and education programs using native birds and 
mammals to inform the public about wildlife management activities and how 
these programs are supported by the Department and the US Fish and Wildlife 
Service (USFWS) 

3. 	 Providing daily care for the native birds and mammals used in Department 
outreach and education programs 

4. 	 Providing care for sick, injured, orphaned, and confiscated wildlife 

The proposed project area is approximately .5 acres which includes: basic infrastructure 
development (i.e., parking lot, roadway, utilities, sidewalks, retention basins, landscaping, 
signage, fencing etc.) and a 2,400 sq foot wildlife care center building. A fully functioning 
wildlife center will allow the Department to provide a greater range of services including 
education and outreach events anticipated to reach 100,000 people annually, statewide. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department 	 Page 2 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Cost Estimate 

Activity 
Quanti 

ty 
Uni 

t Unit Cost Cost 

Animal Care Building and Associated 
Infrastructure 
Contingency ('10%) 

1 
1 

LS 
LS 

$1,500,00 
0 
$150,000 

$1,500,000 
$150,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $1,650,000 
*Estimate based on AGFD on-cal l contractor's estimate for work (attached) 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: The Arizona Game and Fish Department is 
committed to providing a safe environment to its employees, volunteers and t he public. 
To not construct this building would leave Department staff without the too ls necessary 
to accomplish t heir work such as a dedicated place to prepare food, clean eq uipment, 
and provide routine or emergency hea lth ca re for education animals and wi ld life. The 
Department's ed ucation outreach program would be severely impacted and 
engagem ent wit h t he public curtai led. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 3 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Bubbling Ponds Hatchery Fish Culture Building 

Category: New Capital Improvement 

Funding: Salt River Project Funding; Heritage Fund; Wildlife Conservation Fund; 

Need: The Arizona Game and Fish Department (Department) owns and operates six fish 
hatcheries around the state. Bubbling Ponds Hatchery {BPH) encompasses 
approximately 122 acres along the Oak Creek riparian corridor in the Page Springs area of 
Cornville, AZ. The facility has 13 active fish rearing ponds, containing two federally listed 
species (the Colorado River pikeminnow and Razorback sucker) and a broodstock of 
Verde River genetic strain roundtail chub. During the fall and winter months two ponds 
are utilized to raise rainbow trout. In addition, there are three year classes of largemouth 
bass that the Department plans to use as broodstock to adequately maintain and 
enhance bass fishing opportunities in the near future. Recreational sport fishing produces 
$1.47 billion in economic benefits for the state of Arizona annually. Among active anglers 
63% fish for bass. Hatchery operations are at maximum capacity for current fish holding 
and stocking requests, creating an urgent need at BPH to expand indoor holding and 
rearing facilities. 

The Department is currently developing techniques to mass produce Sonoran suckers as 
bait fish. By sustainably propagating native Arizona fish for this purpose, the Department 
hopes to reduce potential for biological competition by non-native fish accidentally 
introduced through out-of-state supply chains and reduce the risk of fish disease 
introduction associated with importation of bait fish by offering a local option to bait 
dealers. BPH does not currently have the space and facilities necessary to develop such 
techniques. 

Solution: The Department proposes a multi-phase project beginning with the 
construction of a metal building shell and necessary infrastructure improvements. 
Further site infrastructure and tenant improvements will be established in future years. 

Theis fish culture building will be approximately 60' x 100' and will be used to maintain 
indoor broodstock; produce and propagate multiple native aquatic species for 
conservation efforts; and produce and propagate sportfish species for recreation. By 
utilizing different sizes of rearing units (raceways, circular tanks including aquariums) 
within the fish culture building, the Department will maximize BPH's capability to 
reproduce and raise different species of interest. The estimated final cost for the building 
and equipment will be approximately $1.2 million. We are estimating 100% completion 
and functionality in approximately five years. 

The construction of the fish culture building will be accomplished through partnership 
with Salt River Project (SRP). SRP has pledged to contribute $448,000 and the 
Department has committed $200,000 from the Heritage Fund, $100,000 from the Wildlife 
Conservation Fund in FY19 and will address appropriate associated costs using the Game 
and Fish Fund. This multi-funding approach will provide BPH the flexibility to raise native 
fish and sportfish in the same facility. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 4 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 5 




Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Cost Estimate 

Quanti 
Activity ty Unit 

Metal Building Shell/Infrastructure 1 LS 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: 

*Estimate based on Eng ineers estimate for work 

Unit 
Cost 

$750,00 
0 

Cost 

$750,000* 

$750,000 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: The Arizona Game and Fish Department is 
committed to providing recreationa l opportunities to t he publ ic and to conserving 
Arizona's fish resou rces for the fu t ure. Without the construction of this bu ildi ng, the 
Department wou ld have to purchase la rgemouth bass from out of state t o meet Arizona 
ang ler demand. Largemouth bass purchase in large quantities is cost prohib itive under 
the Department's current structure, with an approxirnat e cost of $19.50/lb. Wi thout 
adequate faci lit ies to develop a source of native bait f ish , the state will continue to be 
exposed to the risks of catastrophic impact in sport and native fish associated with the 
importat ion of fish from bait dea lers. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 6 



. 

-------- -

Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Whitewater Draw Office/Bunkhouse Replacement- Historic Survey and Design 

Category: New Capital Improvement 

Funding: Federal Aid in Wildlife Restoration (Pittman-Robertson) 

Need: Historic survey, demolition, and rebuild of existing office/bunkhouse for the 
Whitewater Draw Wildlife area. Existing building deteriorated beyond repair due to 
termites. 

Solution: This will be a multi-year project with first year being the historic survey and 
documentation of the existing structure and design of the new bunkhouse. In Fiscal year 
2020 AGFD will request approval for construction (approximate $250,000). 

Cost Estimate 

Activity 
Quanti 

ty 
Uni 

t Unit Cost Cost 
·, 

-

Whitewater Draw Office/Bunkhouse 
Replacement- Historic Survey and Design 

1 LS $40,000 $40,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $40,000 
*Estimate based on AGFD estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: The Arizona Game and Fish Department is 
committed to providing a safe environment to its employees, volunteers and the public. 
To defer replacement of this building would mean the Whitewater Draw Wildlife Area will 
not have safe, healthy space for administrative operations. Additionally when Department1~ 

I 	 staff are in the area for wildlife surveys, field work around the area or law enforcement 
operations they will not have a safe, healthy place to stay requiring them to make less 
convenient, sometimes costly arrangements. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department 	 Page 7 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Lake Pleasant Multi-Agency Patrol Boat Storage and Office Complex 

Category: New Capital Improvement 

Funding: Watercraft Licensing Funds 

Need: The Maricopa County Sheriff's Office, Maricopa County Parks and the Arizona Game 
and Fish Department currently work cooperatively under a Memorandum of 
Understahding (M O U) to provide boating law enforcement services on Lake Pleasant. The 
Ari zona Game and Fish Department and Maricopa County Sheriff's Office currently utilize 
a boat storage facility that is incorporated into the Scorpion Bay Marina for the storage of 
patrol boats. Due to contamination of Lake Pleasant with quagga mussels and other AIS, 
boats are stored in an elevated system that prevents prolonged contact with water a 
minimizes AIS related hull degradation. 

The Scorpion Bay Marina is a private facility that is owned by Desert Troon and is 
undergoing redevelopment. Proposed redevelopment plans include relocation and 
improvement of the boat storage space currently used by law enforcement. Desert Troon 
has offered an easily accessible location, secure access, utilities and gangway for a new 
boat storage facility, provided that the agencies fund the cost of their construction in a 
public-private partnership. This partnership includes Desert Troon as the private 
developer, the Department, the Maricopa County Sheriff's Office and Maricopa County 
Parks. 

Solution: Public-Private partnership in construction of a multi-agency boat storage facility 
at Scorpion Bay Marina including covered storage, docks, boat slips and boat hoists for 
two patrol boats for each agency and transient slips. Development also includes a 
common office area for placement of an intoxilyzer, prisoner processing and officer 
administrative work. 

Cost Estimate 

Quanti 
Activity ty 

Lake Pleasant Multi-Agency Patrol Boat 
1

Storag e and Office Com p lex 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: 

*Estimate based on AGFD p rior project experience 

Uni 
t 

LS 

Unit Cost 

$300,000 

Cost 

$300,000* 

$300,000 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: The Arizona Game and Fish Department is 
committed to providing a safe environment for the boating public. Deferring this project 
would compromise the continued success of the multi agency MOU and efforts to ensure 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 8 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


safe boating on Lake Pleasant by complicating Desert Troon's efforts to redevelop its 
marina while continuing to facilitate agency operations. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 9 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Lake Havasu Multi-Agency Boating Safety Complex Master Plan 

Category: New Capital Improvement 

Funding: Watercraft Fund 

Need: Lake Havasu is the busiest recreational boating waterway in Arizona, and 
watercraft recreation forms the foundation of the robust tourism-driven economy of the 
Lake Havasu community. The most recent comprehensive management survey 
completed on Lake Havasu indicated that there were 908,000 boater use days in 2015. 
Public safety in this busy environment is maintained by several cooperating agencies 
including the Lake Havasu Police Department, Mohave County Sheriff's Office, Arizona 
State Parks, the Arizona Game and Fish Department, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the 
Bureau of Land Management, the U.S. Coast Guard as well as San Bernardino County and 
California Fish and Wildlife. During busy times as many as 20 law enforcement officers are 
working at the lake. 

Effective coordination of the many agencies and individual officers is essential in this 
environment, however efforts are complicated by the lack of a multi-agency aid station. 
Similar facilities exist on other busy lakes in this state, and in addition to maintaining 
effective coordination on those waters, they serve as a public interface or for public safety 
and enforcement activities. On Lake Havasu, a converted garage is being utilized as office 
space. This facility has insufficient space and restroom facilities for the number of officers 
operating on the lake. Arrestees and intoxicated boaters must be brought to this already 
crowded facility, creating a potentially unsafe environment for officers and for interfacing 
with the public. 

Cooperating agencies have met on multiple occasions to discuss each agencies needs 
and funding requirements and determined that a modern and effective public safety 
center is needed. There is agreement that such a facility must provide adequate space for 
the eight cooperating agencies and create secure lake access which does not currently 
exist. This facility will enhance all public safety functions by providing the work space 
necessary to hold and process arrestees, an interview room, and sufficient space to 
facilitate medical care and coordinate search and rescue responses. Enhanced public 
safety and safe watercraft operation on the lake will ensure a better experience for 
boaters and support Lake Havasu's tourism driven economy. 

In addition to public safety functions, the Lake Havasu Multi-Agency Boating Safety 
Facility would benefit the public by providing services such as boating safety education 
and watercraft registration to the community. The need for registration services in the 
Lake Havasu has been demonstrated by the Department's current pilot program in Lake 
Havasu City, where 214 watercraft transactions were conducted over a two day effort in 
July. Members of the boating public have consistently expressed their support for this 
service, as it obviates the need to transport watercraft to the next nearest registration 
location: the Department's regional office in Kingman. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 10 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Solution: The Department proposes a multi-phase approach to developing a modern 
multi-agency boati ng safety center. This process w il l beg in with development of an 
architectural m aster plan for a multi-agency boating safety center, incl uding redesig n of 
the existing patrol boat storage facility and po lice dock at Contact Point on leased SLM 
property. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 11 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Cost Estimate 

Quanti Uni 
Activity ty t Unit Cost Cost 

Lake Havasu Multi-Agency Boating Safety 
1 LS $100,000 $100,000*

Complex Masterplan 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $100,000 
*Estimate based on Consultant's Fee Proposal 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: The Arizona Game and Fish Department is 
committed to providing a safe environment for the boating public. Deferring this project 
would necessitate that the public continue to interface with the multiagency law 
enforcement task force in an increasingly unsuitable location, limit the effectiveness of 
the multiagency task force and potentially compromise boating safety operations on Lake 
Havasu. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 12 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Mittry Lake North Shore Public Access Project 

Category: New Capital Improvement 

Funding: Federal Aid in Wildlife Restoration (Pittman-Robertson/Dingell-Johnson) 

Need: The Mittry La ke property is owned by the US Secretary of the Interior and 
managed by Arizona Game and Fish Department. This area is a popular location for 
outdoor recreationa l activities including wildlife watching, waterfowl hunting, fishing and 
paddlesports. The North Shore area has not been developed for access, which limits 
opportunit ies for t he publ ic. Additionally, the lack of access would complicate firefighting 
efforts in the area in t he event of a wildlife. 

Solution: The Department proposes to Construct a new road, fire breaks, paddle boat 
launch ramp, toi lets/trash at Mittry Lake WLA to provide improved access and increased 
opportunities for waterfowl hunting, wildlife viewers, and paddle sport enthusiasts and to 
assist in f ire access, fire breaks and wlldland fire fighting in the area. 

Cost Estimate 

Activity 
Quanti 

ty 
Uni 

t Unit Cost Cost 

Mittry Lake North Shore Public Access Project l LS $450,000 $450,000* 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $450,000 

*Estimate based on AGFD estimate for work 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: The Arizona Game and Fish Department is 
committed to providing recreationa l access for the public. Requests for access in t his area 
have been m ade consistent ly. Not comp leti ng this project would be to leave the area as is 
with limited to no access for the pu blic to reach this area of the lake. This would also be a 
missed opportunity to reduce the impact of wild land fires in the area. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 13 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Hatchery Maintenance 

Funding Source: AGFD Capital Improvement 

Category: Preservation of Assets 

Need: According to the analysis in the 2073 Economic Impact of Fishing in Arizona, 
annual recreational sport fishing produces $1.47 billion in economic benefits for the state 
of Arizona. Over 62,000 individuals purchased the necessary stamp to fish for trout in 
Arizona in 2013. Most trout in this state do not originally come from the stream, river or 
lake where they are caught; the vast majority of trout caught in Arizona's public waters 
originate from hatcheries. Natural trout reproduction in Arizona is extremely limited 
because trout require cold clear-running perennial streams that are rare in this state. 
Department hatcheries stock trout annually into public waters for anglers to enjoy. To 
accomplish this, the Department maintains six fish hatcheries within the State, each of 
which has a dedicated source of natural spring water. The primary funding source for the 
Department's operating and maintenance expenses at these hatcheries are federal grant 
monies derived from an excise tax on angler sporting goods. Over the past several years 
this funding has remained flat, while costs steadily increase. As a result, critical 
maintenance activities are being deferred, impacting productivity of the hatcheries. 

Solution: The Department is proposes to use the $300,000 from the Capital Improvement 
Fund property maintenance appropriation to supplement operation and maintenance 
costs at its six fish hatcheries. The intent of this request is to establish dedicated funding 
to achieve restoration objectives and/or supplement base operation and maintenance 
funding for these facilities. Per ARS 17-292 monies in the Capital Improvement Fund may 
be expended by the Department for constructing, acquiring, converting, renovating or 
improving existing facilities. 

Expenditure Categories - The following are typical expenditures categories with specific 
requirements determined by each hatchery's unique needs, which can vary year to year: 

• 	 Silver Creek Lower Springs Units Repair Phase II: Funding would be utilized to 
complete Phase II of Silver Creek Hatchery raceways maintenance and repair. This 
funding would allow to finalize the repair of the rearing units, add cover and install 
new liners at the facility raceways. After completion of these improvements the 
facility would be capable to increase the rearing capacity in more than 15,000 lbs. of 
fish. Silver Creek Hatchery is vital to sustain stocking of trout in the White 
Mountains. All the Apache trout stocked in Arizona are produced by Silver Creek 
Hatchery. The hatchery produces approximately 20,000 pounds of rainbow and 
Apache Trout a year. This limitation in production is due to the rudimentary 
infrastructure, which consists of two sets of in ground raceways and no discharge 
permit. 

• 	 Mold Abatement at Three Hatcheries: Repair the drainage and correct the mold 
problem at TCH, SCH and CCH Houses. The bad slopes around the houses and the 
significant rain events which resulted in flooding to several areas of the properties 

Arizona Game and Fish Department 	 Page 14 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


allowed water sit against the foundation and leak into the house. This is causing 
mold and structural issues with the house at TCH and SCH. 

Cost Estimate - This funding will be allocated across AGFD's six hatcheries. 

Activity 
Quantit 

y Unit Cost 

Silver Creek Lower Springs Units 
Repair Phase II 
Mold Abatement at Three Hatcheries 

1 
l 

LS 
LS 

$200,000 
$100,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATE: $300,000.00 

Estimates based on engineering estimates and historic operational costs 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: The Arizona Game and Fish Department is 
committed to providing recreational opportunities to the public. Not approving this 
capital expenditure will compromise the Department's ability to adequately maintain 
hatchery infrastructure in order to sustain or enhance fish production rates. This in turn 
will have a negative impact on recreational opportunity for Arizona's anglers and reduce 
the economic benefit to the state. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 15 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Project: Dam Maintenance 

Funding Source: AGFD Capital Improvement Fund 

Category: Preservation of Assets/Heath/Life Safety 

Need: The Arizona Game and Fish Department owns and operates 37 dams statewide 
and is responsible for more jurisdictional dams than any other single entity in the state. 
These dams were constructed to create freshwater biomes and aquatic habitat that 
provide an array of recreational opportunities including fishing, boating, camping and 
wildlife viewing. Seven dams have a hazard potential rating of "high" meaning that a dam 
failure could result in loss of life and sign ificant impact to property. The Arizona 
Department of Water Resources (ADWR) requires both high hazard and significant 
hazard dams to have current Emergency Action Plans, which outline procedures for 
severe events. The Department has implemented Automated Local Evaluation in Real 
Time (ALERT) systems on all its high and significant hazard dams. This remote sensing 
equipment transmits real time data that help trigger an emergency response. ADWR 
inspections are performed every year on AGFD high hazard dams, every three years on 
significant hazard dams and every five years on low hazard dams. These inspections 
routinely identify maintenance requirements that can include vegetation removal , 
erosion control, exercising control structures/valves, concrete restoration, debris clearing 
from spillways, removing animal burrows, seepage monitoring and ALERT system 
maintenance. These annual maintenance needs exceed AGFD's base federal budget for 
dam maintenance. 

Solution: The following is a list of proposed projects will be implemented with this 
funding : 

•ALERT 	System Upgrades: Transition transmitters at Roper, Cluff Ranch, and Lee 
Valley to digital (cellular) from analog (radio); add stationary cameras to Parker 
Canyon, Pena Blanca, Roper, Fool Hollow, Lee Valley, and Lynx Lake; add Additional 
batteries and larger solar panels to all ALERT sites; complete the transition from 
Datawise software to jefdaq software; annual maintenance of all the ALERT sites 

•Maintenance on Ellis Wiltbank Reservoir: Includes rebuilding slopes, new riprap for 
erosion protection, fencing around the dam to keep cattle off, and extending the 
outlet pipe 10 ft so that the pipe daylights out of the dam. 

Cost Estimate - This funding will be allocated as follows: 

ALERT System Upgrades 
Maintenance on Ellis Wiltbank 
Reservoir 

Activity 

TOTAL ESTl MATE: 

l 
l 

Quantity 

LS 
LS 

Unit 

$100,000 
50,000 

Cost 

$150,000.00 

Arizona Game and Fish Department 	 Page 16 



Arizona Game and Fish FY19 Capital Projects Expenditure Plan 


Estimates based on historic operational costs 

Impact of Not Approving this Request: Not approving this capital expenditure will 
compromise the Department's ability to comply with dam safety regulations. These 
activities are critical in assuring public safety, preventing potential loss of life and property, 
and preserving the ongoing availability of numerous fishery and recreational resources for 
the citizens of Arizona. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Page 17 



6 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

joint ~ommittee on ~apital ~euiew 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY VEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: September 13, 2018 

To:· Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: Morgan Dorcheus, Fiscal Analyst tJl-p 

SUBJECT: Arizona Pioneers' Home - Review of FY 2019 Capital Improvement Projects 

Request 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires Committee review of expenditure plans for monies appropriated for capital 
projects. The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated $600,000 from the 
Miners' Hospital for Miners with Disabilities Land Fund for capital improvements. The Arizona Pioneers' 
Home (APH) is requesting review of these monies for 6 capital improvement projects. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. 	 A favorable review of the request. 

2. 	 An unfavorable review of the request. 

Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following provisions: 

A. 	 APH shall report any reallocation between projects as listed in Table 1 to the JLBC Staff. If there is a 
significant change of scope in the reallocation reported by APH, the JLBC Staff will recommend APH 
request Committee review of the reallocation. 

B. 	 If APH adds a new project not listed in this request, the agency shall submit the proposed project 
and expenditure plan for Committee review. 

C. 	 APH shall notify the Chairman and JLBC Staff if they plan to spend the contingency allocation. The 
Chairman will notify APH if the contingency plan will require full Committee review. 

(Continued) 

http:azleg.gov


Key Points 
1) The FY 2019 budget appropriated $600,000 to APH for capital improvement projects. 
2) APH plans to use the monies for 6 capital improvement projects, including: 

Window replacements 
Lead paint abatement 
Bathroom renovations 
Hot water recirculation 
Fire alarm upgrades 
Cemetery roadway and drainage upgrades. 

3) APH is in the process of receiving bids for each project and allocates $100,000 to project 
contingencies. 

Analysis 

APH's expenditure plan is allocated as follows (see Table 1): 


Window Replacement 

A total of $100,000 will be allocated to the replacement of 48 windows on the south side of the building. 

The windows are original to the building. APH reports difficulty opening and closing the existing 

windows and difficulty regulating temperatures in resident bedrooms. 


The APH building has an historic designation, and the windows must be replaced without altering the 

exterior appearance of the building. Beyond the current proposal, APH plans to request funding in the 

future to replace the remaining windows in phases to allow time and space for the residents to be 

relocated during the replacement. 


Lead Paint Abatement 

A total of $35,000 will be allocated to lead paint abatement on the exterior wall of an elevator 

enclosure. APH reports that paint is chipping off the enclosure, presenting a risk to residents, staff, and 

visitors. 


Bathroom Renovations 

A total of $25,000 will be allocated to bathroom renovations, which includes replacement of 2 bathtubs, 

and associated plumbing service and drain lines. The existing conventional bathtubs will be replaced 

with reduced barrier showers, which APH reports will be more accessible for residents. 


Hot Water Recirculation 

A total of $40,000 will be allocated to updating the hot water control system, including thermostatic 

mixing valves and the recirculating system. These upgrades are part of a Plan of Correction to comply 

with water guidelines set by the Arizona Department of Health Services. The updates will create more 

consistent water temperatures throughout the building. 


Fire Alarm Upgrades 

A total of $200,000 will be allocated to upgrade the fire alarm control panel and smoke detectors in the 

building, which APH reports are beyond their useful life. 


(Continued) 



- 3 -

Cemetery Roadway and Dra inage 
A total of $100,000 will be allocated to re-surfacing the Pioneers' Home Cemetery roadway, and to 
installation of a drainage system to divert run-off from burial sites. 

Project Cont ingency 
A total of $100,000 will be allocated to project contingencies for unforeseen costs. The amounts listed 
in Table 1 represent the estimated cost of each project. APH is currently working with the Arizona 
Department of Administration to receive bids for each project. The contingency will be used if actual 
costs are higher than the estimates provided. 

Table 1 
APH FY 2019 Capital Improvements 

Window Replacement $100,000 
Lead Paint Abatement 35,000 
Bathroom Renovations 25,000 
Hot Water Recirculation 40,000 
Fire Alarm Upgrades 200,000 
Cemetery Roadway and Drainage 100,000 
Contingency 100,000 

TOTAL $600,000 

MD:kp 



Arizona Pioneers' Hoflle 

Doug Ducey 300 South McCormick Street Philip Schlotter 

Governor Prescott, Arizona 86303 Superinlendcnt 

(928) 445-2181 - FAX (928) 778-1148 

August 14, 2018 

The Honorable, David Livingston, Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) 
Arizona State Senate 
1700 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

The Honorable John Kavanagh, Vice Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) 
1700 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Dear Senator Kavanagh and Representative Livingston: 

Laws 2018, 2nd Regular Session, Chapter 277 (SB 1522) appropriated $600,000 to the Arizona 
Pioneers' Home (APH) for capital improvement projects. APH requests JCCR review of APH's FY 
2019 capital improvement plan for $600,000. 

If you have any questions regarding this request please contact Robert Croci, Physical Plant Director, 
APH @ 928-445~2181. 

Sincerely, 

P~er :: 

Superintendent 

Attachments ( 1) 

cc: 	 Richard Stavneak, JLBC Director 
Matthew Gress, OSPB Director 



ADOA Building System Renewal Allocation Plan 

Arizona Pioneers' Home FY 2019 Capital Improvement Plan 

Laws 2018, Second Regular Session, Chapter 277 (SB1522) 


$600,000 

$100,000 Window Replacement-South Exposure 

The existing windows at APH are original to the building and have not been refurbished 
or replaced. The forty eight (48) windows are double -hung wood casement style with 
sash cords and weights. Some windows cannot be opened due to the deterioration of 
the counter balance mechanisms. The existing windows do not have any weather 
stripping or insulation which makes it difficult to regulate the room temperatures for our 
fragile elderly residents, especially during cold winter snow storms. 

We plan to replace the existing windows with single-hung insulated vinyl windows with 
screens that will maintain the exterior look of our historic building while allowing our 
residents to be safe, warm and dry. 

$35,000 Service Elevator Lead Paint Abatement 

The APH Service Elevator was built and painted prior to 1978. Testing indicates Lead 
is present in the existing paint and will require remediation from a Professional Lead 
Abatement Contractor. 

The current paint coating is decaying and throwing off dust and chips that could be 
harmful to APH Residents, Staff and visitors. 

$25,000 Resident Bathroom/Shower 

APH third floor bathrooms contain conventional resident bathtubs that make it difficult 
for our elderly residents to safely maintain their independence. 

The resldential bathtubs will be removed, plumbing service and drain lines will be 
replaced and new reduced barrier showers will be installed. These updates will allow 
APH to promote independence, better personal hygiene and reduce resident falls. 



ADOA Building System Renewal Allocation Plan 

Arizona Pioneers' Home FY 2019 Capital Improvement Plan 

Laws 2018, Second Regu lar Session, Chapter 277 (SB1522) 


$600,000 

$40,000 Hot Water Recirculation 


Currently APH domestic hot water system originates in the basement of the building 
which makes it very difficult to obtain consistent temperatures throughout the building. 
Additionally APH is unable to comply with Arizona Department of Health Services 
water temperature guidelines. As part of our Plan of Correctionl we are updating our 
hot water control system to better protect our elderly residents from harm. 

$200,000 Fire Alarm Renovation 

Fire Alarm Control Panel and smoke detectors have reached the end of their useful 
life. The manufacturer is unable to locate replacement parts t imely. The lack of readily 
avai lable parts has created situations where a 24 hour Fire Watch had to be performed 
and documented to ensure the safety of our elderly residents. Additionally during a 24 
hour Fire Watch, the smoke barrier doors do not operate limiting resident mobility 
throughout our facility. Finally, the newest section of APH Stair tower will not interface 
with the Fire Alarm Control Panel due to the functional obsolescence. 

$100,000 Cemetery Roadway and Drainage 

Snow melt and ra in rLin-off has severely damaged the existing Cemetery roadway, 
causing erosion of burial sites and covering headstones with mud and debris. The 
roadway will be re-surfaced and drainage or curb channeling system will be installed to 
accommodate the snow melt and rain run-off. 

$100,000 Project Contingency 

2 



7 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

,}oint QCommitttt on QCapital l\ttlitw 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE REPRESENTATIVES1716 WEST ADAMS 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: September 13, 2018 

TO: Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: Josh Hope, Fiscal Analyst Ti-J 
SUBJECT: Department of Emergency and Military Affairs - Review of Tucson Readiness Center 

Request 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires Committee review of expenditure plans for monies appropriated for capital 
projects. The Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs {DEMA) is requesting Committee 
review of the expenditure plan for the construction of the Tucson Readiness Center, as appropriated by 
the FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277). The total project cost is $24,133,000, which 
consists of the following fund sources: 1) $3, 759,000 from the General Fund included in the FY 2019 
budget; 2) $2,274,000 from other state monies; and 3) $18,100,000 from Federal Funds. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. 	 A favorable review of the request. 

2. 	 An unfavorable review of the request. 

Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following provisions: 

A. 	 DEMA shall report to the Committee if the Tucson Readiness Center project's total cost exceeds 
estimated costs by 20%. The JCCR Chairman shall determine whether the project requires further 
review. 

B. 	 On or before July 31 of each year until project completion, DEMA shall report to the JLBC Staff on 
the status and expenditures of the Tucson Readiness Center project. 

C. 	 A favorable review does not constitute endorsement of appropriations to pay for future operating 
costs. 

(Continued) 

http:azleg.gov


- 2 -


Key Points 
1) Using State and Federal Funds, DEMA is constructing a new $24.1 M Army National Guard 

readiness center. 
2) The building will have 74,623 square feet of capacity on state-owned land in Tucson. 
3) The state's portion is $6.0 Mand the Federal Funds portion is $18.1 M. 
4) The average total cost per square foot of the building is $323. 

Analysis 

Located on a 34-acre site of state-owned land near Rita Road and Interstate 10 in Tucson, the new 

74,623 square foot project would serve as the readiness center for 3 Army National Guard units and a 

total of approximately 325 personnel. This includes the 222nd and 222oth Transportation Companies and 

Field Artillery Detachment 1. 


DEMA has indicated the existing facilities for these units are either outdated or overcrowded. The 222"d 

Transportation Company currently resides in modular trailers located at the Florence Military 

Reservation, which have 12,620 square feet of capacity. The modular trailers have served as a 

temporary solution since 2010. The 222oth Transportation Company resides in the Valencia Readiness 

Center in Tucson, which has 34,759 square feet of capacity. The Field Artillery Detachment 1 resides in 

the Papago Park Military Reservation, which is currently overcrowded according to U.S. Department of 

Defense (DoD) space requirements. 


Upon completion of the Tucson Readiness Center, DEMA intends to dispose of the modular housing in 

Florence after the 222nd Transportation Company moves into the new center. The Valencia Readiness 

Center will continue to be used by another existing occupant (the 860th Military Police Company) along 

with another unit that will be moved in to rebalance overcrowding among the Arizona Army National 

Guard's readiness centers. The Papago Park Military Reservation will continue to be used by over 2 

dozen other units after the Field Artillery Detachment 1 moves into the Tucson Readiness Center. 


At this time, DEMA projects that the opening of the new Tucson Readiness Center would not increase 

the agency's operating costs. The Committee may consider Provision C stating that a favorable review 

of the project does not endorse funding of any operating cost increases. 


Timeline 

The design of the Tucson Readiness Center would begin around October 2018. The final design would 

be completed around October 2020, which would initiate the solicitation of construction bids. 

Construction would begin around March 2021 and would be completed around December 2021. 


Project Cost 

The total cost of the project is $24,133,000. The cost per square foot is $323. The DoD provides a 3:1 

federal-to-state match for the project. The state's portion is $6,033,000 and the DoD's federal match is 

$18,100,000. The federal portion has already been allocated by the federal government. 


(Continued) 



- 3 -

Below are the sources of funding for the state's portion of the project: 

• $3,759,000 from the General Fund 
• $1,250,000 from the Military Installation Fund (MIF) 
• $960,200 from the State Armory Property Fund 
• $63,800 in General Fund monies from the DEMA FY 2019 Operating Budget. 

Construction Details 

Table 1 presents a categorical summary of DEMA's expenditure plan. 


Table 1 

Tucson Readiness Center Expenditure Plan 

Category Cost 

Design $891,200 
Construction 21,388,800 

Other 

Construction Contingency (5%) 1,069,000 

Supervision/Inspection Services 674,000 

Other U0,000 

Total $24,133,000 

The cost estimates are based on a funding formula developed by the Department of the Army. Formula 
inputs include the type of unit stationed in the readiness center, the amount of personnel in the unit, 
and the building retrofitting needed for these units. This formula determines the baseline cost to 
construct a readiness center and does not include optional upgrades. There will be no optional 
upgrades in this project. Furthermore, construction cost factors vary by state. Arizona's cost factor is 
0.96 of a national average of 1.0. 

Related Projects 
Additionally, according to DEMA, this new readiness center may qualify the state for a future 100% 
federally-funded and maintained 39,290 square foot field maintenance shop that will support the 
vehicle maintenance needs for all Arizona Army National Guard units in Southern Arizona. The DoD 
plans to award the next round of funding for field maintenance shops in 2019 and 2020 and these 
monies would be distributed several years later. 

JH:kp 



STATE OF ARIZONA 
DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS 

5636 East McDowell Road 
Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 267-2700 DSN: 853-2700 
Dougl"' A. Oucry lllnjor Genenl Mkhatl T. McGuire 

GOYEM.~01'1 nll ADJUTANT GENlRAL 

August 22, 2018 

The Honorable David Livingston, Chairman The Honorable John Kavanagh, Vice-Chairman 
Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) 
Arizona House of Representatives Arizona State Senate 
1700 W. Washington Street 1700 W. Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

SUBJECT: 

Dear Chainnan Livingston, Vice-Chairman Kavanagh, and Committee Members: 

The Arizona Department of Emergency and Military A ffairs (DEMA) respectfully requests its 
placement on the September 20, 2018 Joint Committee on Capital Review (JCCR) meeting agenda for 
review of the expenditure of monies appropriated pursuant to Laws 2018, Second Regular Session, 
Chapter 277, Section 8 for the construction of a new Readiness Center. 

Readiness Centers serve as the home station for Arizona Army National Guard units, enable unit 
training, store weapons, vehicles, and supplies, and act as mobilization hubs for state and federal 
deployments. These facilities support the community, families, veterans, and external organizations 
with a secure location for gatherings beyond Soldier activities. Readiness Centers are safe havens 
during natural disasters, power outages, civil disturbances, and act as headquarters for incident 
management agencies. Additionally, Readiness Centers support the local economy. 

The Arizona Army National Guard has 31 Readiness Centers spread across 20 cities throughout the 
state. The average age of Arizona's Readiness Centers is 34 years old - with 11 Readiness Centers 
built in the I 950s - when Soldiers were driving jeeps instead of larger 1-lMMWVs and with little 
anticipation of the connectivity or training needs of our modern Soldiers. Readiness Centers that do 
not meet space requirements and condition standards affects our 1·eadiness to perform our dual state 
and federal missions; the recruiting, retention, and training of Soldiers; the maintenance of equipment; 
and risk losing federal funding which offsets 50-75% of the facility's maintenance and operations cost 

The scope of this project is to construct a 74,623 SF Readiness Center that supports the training, 
administrative, and logistical requirements for the Arizona Army National Guard on a 33 acre site of 
state-owned land near Rita Rd and Interstate 10 in Tucson. This project is critical to the state of 
Arizona due to the current situation of inadequate space and substandard condition of the Arizona 
Army National Guard's present facilities. It is important to note that this is the first Readiness Center 
that has received a state appropriation since before 1988. Without Readiness Center construction, 
training and mobilization readiness standards will decline and state resources will be squandered 
through increased maintenance costs of aging facilities. The 222nd Transportation Company currently 



The Honorable Dnvid Livingston 
The Honornb!e John Kavanagh 
August 22, 2018 
Page 2 of2 

resides in modular trailers at Florence Military Reservation, a temporary solution since 2010. The 
ability of the unit to meet its readiness, recruiting and retention, and training objectives is adversely 
affected when Soldiers are not provided with adequate facilities - not even a secure location to store 
their weapons. The 2220th Transportation Company resides in our Valencia Readiness Center in 
Tucson and lacks the proper spacing required to accomplish its mission. The Jack of proper facilities 
negatively influences Soldier morale and readiness, as well as affect the overall personnel retention of 
222nd Transportation Company and 2220th Transportation Company. 

This new Readiness Center will enable the closing of the temporary modular trailers at Florence 
Military Reservation and improve the ability of the Valencia Readiness Center to support the readiness 
of Soldiers stationed there by rebalancing units to reduce overcrowding. The utility and operating 
expenses for this new Readiness Center will not require any additional dollars from the state General 
Fund, being largely offset by the closure of the much smaller and significantly less efficient modular 
trailers currently is use. Additionally, this new Readiness Center will qualify for an additional, 100% 
federally funded 39,290 SF Field Maintenance Shop that will support the vehicle maintenance needs 
for all Arizona Anny National Guard units in Southern Arizona, reducing operational expenses by 
having increased local capability to maintain equipment. 

The total state cost of this project is $6,025,000, which the federal government matches three-to-one 
for $18, I 00,000.00, bringing the total projecl cost to $24, 125,000. The state portion is comprised from 
the Arizona State Legislature's FY2019 budget appropriation of $3,759,000 from the State's General 
Fund (Laws 2018, Second Regular Session. Chapter 277, Section 8), authorized use of up to 
$1 ,250,000 from the Military Installation Fund (Chapter 278, Section 14), proceeds of a previous 
Readiness Center sale of $960,200 from the continuously-appropriated State Annory Property Fund, 
and $55,800 from the existing operating budget for the Arizona Department of Emergency and 
Military Affairs. 

Lf you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Travis Schulte, DEMA Legislative 
Liaison, at 602.267.2732 or travis.schulte@azdema.gov. 

Since/ ~ _/ // 

/~-1( ·1wf4/ (./ 

M IC~IAE T. ~c;G{~ 
Major General, AZ ANG 

The Adjutant General 

cc: 	 Richard Stavneak, Staff Director JLBC 
Joshua I-lope, DEMA Analyst. JLBC 
Matt Gress, Director, OSPB 
Jncob Wingate, Capital Budget Analyst. OSPB 
Marshall Pimentel, DEMA Budget Analyst, OSPB 

mailto:travis.schulte@azdema.gov
http:00,000.00


Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs 


Arizona Army National Guard 


FY 2019 Readiness Center Construction 


Laws 2018, Second Regular Session, Chapter 277, Section 8 


Project Summary 

Scope: Construction of a 74,623 SF Readiness Center (i.e., Armory) that supports the training, 

administrative, and logistical requirements for two Transportation Companies within the Arizona Army 

National Guard on a 33-acre site of state-owned land near Rita Rd and Interstate 10 in Tucson. This 

combined facility leverages efficiencies to support these two similar units and ultimately reduces cost to 

the state to support and maintain its military forces. 

Purpose: This project is critical to the state of Arizona due to the current situation of inadequate space 

and substandard condition of the Arizona Army National Guard's present facilities. The U.S. Department 

of the Army requires 61,107 SF for each Transportation Company. The 222nd Transportation Company 

currently resides in modular trailers totaling 12,620 SF at Florence Military Reservation, a temporary 

solution since 2010. The 2220th Transportation Company resides in our Valencia Readiness Center 

totaling 34,759 SF in Tucson and also lacks the proper spacing required to accomplish its mission. The 

lack of proper facilities negatively influences Soldier readiness and morale, as well as affect the overall 

personnel retention of 222nd Transportation Company and 2220th Transportation Company. 

This Military Construction (MILCON) project as originally appropriated by Congress in 2007 was for two 

Readiness Centers. National Guard Bureau approved the AZ Army National Guard's request to combine 

the two MILCON projects into one, saving the state approximately $1.SM in reduced state match cost 

for separate facilities. This combined facility also enabled the stationing of the two Transportation 

Companies together into one facility, which enabled the reduction of the overall SF needed to support 

the readiness of these units. Locating the MILCON project at this 33 acre site additionally saved the 

state an estimated $0.SM - $1M in utility and infrastructure costs compared to other locations. 

This new Readiness Center will enable the closing of the temporary modular trailers at Florence Military 

Reservation and improve the ability of the Valencia Readiness Center to support the readiness of 

Soldiers stationed there by rebalancing units to reduce overcrowding. The utility and operating expenses 

for this new Readiness Center will be largely offset by the closure of the much smaller and significantly 

less efficient modular trailers currently is use and reduced wear and tear on Valencia, thus not requiring 

any additional state support. Additionally, this new Readiness Center will qualify for a future, 100% 

federally funded and maintained 39,290 SF Field Maintenance Shop that will support the vehicle 

maintenance needs for all Arizona Army National Guard units in Southern Arizona, reducing operational 

expenses by having increased local capability to maintain equipment. Overall, it will improve the ability 

of the Arizona Army National Guard to maintain the readiness of our Citizen Soldiers for their dual state 

and federal missions. 

Page 1of2 



Project Cost : 

Federal Match $18,100,000 

State Match $6,025,000 

Total Project Cost $24,125,000 

State Match Sources: 	 $3,759,000 Laws 2018, Second Regular Session, Chapter 277, Section 8 

$1,250,000 Laws 2018, Second Regular Session, Chapter 278, Section 14 

$960,200 State Armory Property Fund 

$55.800 DEMA FY19 Operating Budget 

$6,025,000 

Timeline: 

Design Start - Oct 2018 (we anticipate the Design Authority Letter from NGB in Nov/Dec 2018) 

Concept Design 35% Complete - Jun 2019 

Interim Design 65% Complete - Jan 2020 

Final Design/Ready to Advertise - Oct 2020 

Construction Award - Oct 2020 

Construction Start- Mar 2021 

Construction Completion - Dec 2021 

Benefits: 

• 	 Critical -Ability to support the readiness of the two units stationed there 

• 	 Critical - Storage for weapons, vehicles, communications, and equipment that is currently not available 
• 	 Critical - Training facilities to maintain readiness requirements 

• 	 Sleeping quarters 

• 	 Personnel and logistical support center 

• 	 Safe haven during natural disasters, power outages, civil disturbances 

• 	 Incident management HQs 

• 	 Support to communities, families, veterans 

• 	 Improved ability to recruit and retain Soldiers 

• 	 Mobilization hub for state and federal deployments 

• 	 Metro-Tucson currently has two Readiness Centers, the last built in 1988 when the population was 

approximately 400,000. Metro-Tucson's population today is approximately 985,000. 

Economic Impact: 

• 	 300% return on investment (75% Federal match; 25% State match) 

• 	 Per economic modeling provided by National Guard Bureau estimates, Readiness Center 

maintenance and MILCON spending has a short-term economic impact of up to double the actual 

project spending amount and over triple the actual project spending long-term: 

o 	 Short term economic impact= $48.25M 

o 	 Long-term economic impact= $77.44M 

Page 2 of 2 



8 




STATE OF ARIZONA 

Joint ~ommitttt on ~apital l\tbitw 
STATE HOUSE OF 
SENATE 1716 WEST ADAMS REPRESENTATIVES 

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007 
JOHN KAVANAGH DAVID LIVINGSTON 

VICE-CHAIRMAN (602) 926-5491 CHAIRMAN 
SYLVIA ALLEN JOHN M. ALLEN 
OLIVIA CAJERO BEDFORD azleg.gov LELA ALSTON 
KAREN FANN MARK CARDENAS 
STEVE FARLEY HEATHER CARTER 
KATIE HOBBS VINCE LEACH 
KIMBERLY YEE REBECCA RIOS 

DATE: September 13, 2017 

TO: Members of the Joint Committee on Capital Review 

FROM: Ben Murphy, Fiscal Analyst BM 

SUBJECT: Arizona Department of Transportation - Review of FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation 
Plan 

Request 

A.R.S. § 41-1252 requires Committee review of expenditure plans for building renewal monies prior to 
expenditure. The Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) is requesting that the Committee 
review its $5,492,000 FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation Plan. 

ADOT has allocated $5,250,000 from the State Highway Fund among 122 projects, leaving a contingency 
balance of $100,000 and $70,000 for project management support. ADOT has also allocated $242,000 
from the State Aviation Fund for 16 projects, with no contingency funding. 

Committee Options 

The Committee has at least the following 2 options: 

1. 	 A favorable review of the request. 

2. An unfavorable review of the request. 


Under either option, the Committee may also consider the following provisions: 


A. 	 ADOT shall report any reallocations between projects in the FY 2019 spending plan above $100,000 
to the JCCR Chairman. The JCCR Chairman shall determine whether the reallocation requires further 
Committee review. 

(Continued) 



- 2 -

B. 	 ADOT shall provide a written explanation by October 1 of their reason for not complying with a 2017 
Committee provision to report on the status of existing building renewal projects by July 31, 2018. 
Alternatively, ADOT may provide the status report. 

C. 	 In accordance with an FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill footnote, ADOT shall report to JLBC Staff on or 
before January 31, 2019 and July 31, 2019 on the status of all building renewal projects and building 
renewal expenditures. 

Key Points 
1) ADOT Building Renewal projects span a range of categories including remodeling, safety 

improvements, compliance, and roofing replacements. 
2) The $5.3 M State Highway Fund Building Renewal appropriation equates to approximately 41% of 

the formula requirement. 
3) ADOT plans to expend $2.3 M for remodeling and $1.4 M for building systems (HVAC, electrical 

and plumbing). 

Analysis 

The FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill (Laws 2018, Chapter 277) appropriated a total of $5.5 million for building 
renewal in FY 2019, including $5,250,000 from the State Highway Fund and $242,000 from the State 
Aviation Fund. The FY 2019 Building Renewal appropriation represents 40.6% of the amount generated 
by the revised building renewal formula for the ADOT Building System and 93.5% for the Grand Canyon 
Airport building renewal formula for FY 2019. The formula is based on the square footage and 
replacement cost of existing buildings. 

ADOT expects to allocate the Building Renewal monies from the State Highway Fund in the following 
categories for 122 projects: 

Table 1 

State Highway Fund Building Renewal Project Categories 
Category Projects State Highwa~ Fund % of Total 
Remodeling 21 $2,279,300 43% 
Building Systems (HVAC, Electrical, Plumbing) 36 1,434,000 27% 
Exterior Preservation (Doors, Windows, Siding) 23 420,700 8% 
Roof Repairs/Replacement 11 262,000 5% 
Infrastructure (Sewers, Wells) 11 246,000 5% 
Fire/Life/Safety 10 219,000 4% 
Interior Finishes (Paint, Carpet, Tile) 7 189,000 4% 
Americans with Disabilities Act 3 30,000 1% 
Project Management Support NA 70,000 1% 
Contingency NA 100,000 2% 

Total 122 $5,250,000 100% 

Of the 122 State Highway Fund projects, the 11 projects shown in Table 2 require $100,000 or more . 
Most of these renovations will occur on the Capitol Mall. 

(Continued) 



- 3 -


Table 2 

Major State Highway Fund Building Renewal Projects 

Project Allocation 
Remodeling 
Administration Building - Renovate 2 Areas for Asbestos Abatement $595,000 
Administration Building - Renovate Financial Management Services Areas 550,000 
Engineering Building - Renovate Second Floor Office 300,000 
Facilities Management Building - Renovate Output Room and Air Handler Unit 180,000 
Engineering Building - Renovate First Floor Restroom 160,000 
Building Systems (HVAC, Electrical, Plumbing) 
Sign Shop Building - Repair Ventilation Systems 120,000 
Administration Building - Renovate Elevator Door Controls 120,000 
Tucson Construction Office - Replace Canopy HVAC 100,000 
Fire/Life/Safety 
Phoenix Equipment Services Building - Replace Fire Alarm 150,000 
Exterior Preservation (Doors, Windows, Siding) 
Administration Building - Replace Phase 1 Exterior Window 100,000 
Interior Finishes (Paint, Carpet, Tile) 
Survey Team Building - Renovate Interior 100,000 

Total $2,475,000 

ADOT expects to allocate the Building Renewal monies from the State Aviation Fund for 16 projects at 
the state-owned Grand Canyon Airport in the following categories: 

Table 3 

State Aviation Fund Building Renewal Projects 
Category .e_roiects State Aviation Fund % of Total 
Exterior Preservation (Doors, Windows, Siding) 3 $102,000 42% 
Infrastructure (Sewers, Wells) 3 50,000 21% 
Interior Finishes (Paint, Carpet, Tile) 3 30,000 12% 
Building Systems (HVAC, Electrical, Plumbing) 4 28,000 12% 
Fire/Life Safety 2 28,000 12% 
Roof/Repairs Replacement 1 4,000 1% 
Contingency NA 0 0% 

Total 16 $242,000 100% 

The attached material submitted by ADOT lists each project and its estimated cost. 

To reinforce ADOT's FY 2019 reporting requirements, the Committee may consider Provision C. This 
provision reiterates an FY 2019 Capital Outlay Bill footnote requiring ADOT to report on the status of its 
building renewal projects on or before January 31, 2019 and July 31, 2019. The Committee's favorable 
review at the September 2017 meeting of ADOT's FY 2018 Building Renewal plan included a provision 
that the department report to the JLBC Staff on or before July 31, 2018 on the status of its building 
renewal projects. As of September 11, 2018, the department has not yet submitted the report. As a 
result, the Committee may consider Provision B, which requires that by October 1, ADOT either provide 
written explanation of their reason for not complying with the September 2017 provision or submit the 
report. 

BM:lm 



A DCT An Arizona Management System Agency 
Doualas A. Ducey, GovernorDirector's Office 
Johns. Hallkowskl, Director 

Scott Omer, Deputy Director/Chief Operating Officer 
Kevin Blesty, Deputy Director for Polley 

Dallas Hammlt, Deputy Director for Transportation 

August 27, 2018 

The Honorable John Kavanagh 
Chairman, Joint Committee on Capital Review 
1716 West Adams Street 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Subject: Building Renewal Allocation Plan 

Dear Senator Kavanagh: 

We respectfully request that ADOT's FY 2019 Building Renewal Allocation Plan be placed on the next 

meeting of the JCCR for review related to ADOT's FY 2019 Capital Outlay Appropriation. 


The following summary outlines the scope of work: 


Renewal Projects - State Highway Fun~ 


Category 1- Fire/Live/Safety $ 219,000 

Category 2· Roof Repairs/Replacement $ 262,000 

Category 3- Preservation of Asset $ 420,700 

Category 4- Major Building Systems $ 1,434,000 

Category 5- Interior Building Systems $ 189,000 

Category 6- Reconfigure Occupied Space $ 2,279,300 

Category 7- ADA Compliance $ 30,000 

Category 8- Infrastructure $ 246,000 

Project Management Support $ 70,000 

Contingency $ 100,000 

Subtotal $ 5,250,000 

Renewal Projects - State Aviation Fund 

Category 1- Fire/live/Safety $ 28,000 

Category 2- Roof Repairs/Replacement $ 4,000 

Category 3· Preservation of Asset $ 102,000 

Category 4- Major Building Systems $ 28,000 

Category 5- Interior Building Systems $ 30,000 

Category 8· Infrastructure $ 50,000 

Subtotal $ 242,000 

Total FY 2019 $ 5,492,000 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

206 S. 17th Ave. I Phoenix, AZ. 85007 I azdot.gov 

http:azdot.gov


Project Details are attached. Your favorable review of our request is appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

x~~~ 
ADOT Director 

Enclosure 

C: 	 Rlchard Stavneak, JLBC Director 
Ben Murphy, JLBC Analyst 
Ben Blink, OSPB Analyst 
Sonya Herrera, ADOT, Administrative Services Division Director 
Keith Fallstrom, ADOT, Budget Manager 
John Hetzel, ADOT Facllities Manager 
Nichole Zumbrunnen, ADOT, Administrative Services Division Business Manager/DiFO 



STATE OF ARIZONA 


FY :2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATIOM FY 2019 FINAL SUILOING RENEWAL PROJECT LIST· BY CATEGORY 


Pro1ec1 Oe~crip l •o11 Es trm~tod Cost 

ISTA TE HIGHWA y FUND 

CATEGORY 1 •FIRE/LIFE SAFETY 
Chand•' 1.1vo Brei~ 1921 • Rer::t;ace r11e alJrm iw:el ~ •~coo 
A·,ci:dalr.: J.1•10 Bldq 1602 • Rec tace liia a1a1111 oanel ~ 1 ~000 
Prn:anr• E11urcmtnl Service~ B•dll 1754 • Reclace rI'! a lJflTI can11t & de.ice1 ~ 150 oco 
.:.1·cm ~°"' Eourll Serv s~oo BICg J2 71 • ...,enel r;m son~~ ler s ~l'!m n10 ana::Md canne•u s 8 000 
Sl'O':t L:io:1t.1Jrn1enance 1;111rce e·c11 .J.:t o. Install a s.1 ret1 ll~Mra•I en t'Ollt srCe9 cl 1car ramv 
OooQta~ .-L E e·ao ~!>7!1 · Rei;lace un,flrnooatie lire alarm oart!I 

~ 

5 
8000 
ew1 

ADOT Slcllt-.,:dc • i\st:eslos anc 1ea:1 p;rn1oDal!llt'9"1e.1~:::J•r s 5CCO 
~uu , SLl!e.·.:oe. Mc:d ab.ll!!:rar.1& re:.:ir~ s 5COO 
ADO 1 ~l~ li!Y.l<li.?. Recan 11111 a1ann o;l~e1s $ 5000 

s 219,000 

CATEOORY 2 ·ROOFS 
A•Jcndal• c;onStf\jc:tlOO once BU!ll hi7 J • Rer.1ac.e reel 5 6IJ 000 
IPao:i'l r.rvo e1a1:1 lJca. Hec.w 10 i=i1r.o s 1fJ 000 
Natural s.ii::r:e V1sr1 ors cen1~1 rnoo J2.W • Recla~ rtrunn rcot sut'.PCM1 irt~& ~ 21J 000 
~rec-Oma Oercer P,1/Jtenat5 :Stcraoe B:llrJ Jll~ • HeCOll r:>.~I Ci11VU s 15000 
Pa::e Main1~narce Ya10 t.1110 rank CO•!f e1cn J~~:?. Hecface 100<1:-c Oft l.!ao ra · k co'~' s 10000 
;,f Jonns De1c.er"1.i1ena1s S!oraa11 e1e19 JOSI>. Heca11 l1Xlf ean·~~ s 15000 
i<a· ~nfd oe1cor r.•a1enAI> Sf'Ari~ Bk!g 3il>d. Hec;w ri;<;r canvas s 15 OC'<l 
T•,;aon DrslllGI Ollita BfdQ 217a • Rec1ace 111rnQ s:nQl~Dtv ree f s 40 oco 
T1.cson i.;onsl;:.iCIJCI'\ 01ric0 tilC<;J 11sa. R9c~1r unccv 11cu~u'lll HVAC IW•L~ s 25 000 
1 crcoan M11rteni!n:e omce e1eq 7•JJ5. Rer:f3Cel•eca.r roe I 
Auu 1 :::il.:Jh!·:~CJ':l • Reoarr roors 

s 
s 

2:11l00 
111000 

t01AL $ 262,000 

CATEGORY 3 ·PRESERVATION OF ASSET 
Hni,11.. "'""o 1161 • i:vaiua!e & rer.a1r et:e1101 DncJC walh s JO 
AOm1ni11ra11cn Bl<!Tl 100)1'. • Rtt!SCll eitenor WUICJOWS Pnase 1 s 1!!0 llOO 
Pl'lcer.r• Enu1crnun1 Sel'l:C6S Bldo 1701 • Reol~c~ 1:1.,,:01no c tlencr ano m.:in dcon on J SJd.!S s 51) cco 
Hcll:ircr;~ t.1.11menan<:e Y~n:l Eaurcmen! ::;r,oo Olar:i JM7 - Recl~ce s101nr1 and hQ f'C() l l1na •n lJ mam tu1!d•no wmas11rno s :; 500 
K111oman Eau1ome111 Soivicu Shoo !Ilda JOJ9. Rer:it~ea rusl!!<I WJsn oav $r<llll!! & rr.im e su~coru s 5COO 
KrMman Eowomenl Senuces Snoo Bldg 3031 • Reoarr 11 n::ll uo aocrs s 5000 
sncv.1lake Trame ::.1gna!t umce Blog 326i • H1c1ace rusll!(J out s1121na s raoaor.t e111er.or s IOCOO 
Molllrook ScroatJl!r 11aCk Bldn :>-l62 • Hi?oa11\l $area1Je1 rack s 15COO 
HOIDIOOk l>1Qn StOlaQf ana HlldlO Sl\OP ca J2~0 • Preo ilM tepatnl ~enor s J Oi'lO 
Nl!eOID Mounuun OlfoCE l.>coular BIOQ 3ui • Hl!l'!llr 1emu1e onmaQe al lront of Du+1c11nq s 'l 7ll0 
11eoii1a Moun1a1n umc;e i:1:1u11>men1 s1ora1 e illdrJ JO 11 • Pres> and i:a1n1 extcnor s 150CO 
ntt111e Mounta111 fue1 u1ana Bldn .J:.u  •11!0 ano oarnt ett1nor s 1000 
""~ Bel'ld Mam1ena111:a "'ClGIJ'> Biilo 23! , • Reoarnt 11rienor & rer:1..ice doors & ext wooa s 20000 
foc~on Eau,r>menl Shoe Blao 2186 • Abn!o D31uno leild o;,1nVteDa1nt e•lorror of 0Vl!1he)d doors s 16 000 
i;;co~oce r,1vv tsloa 2011 • R1oarn1 e.ttenor s 1J 000 
Yuma MVD Dtdq 2026 • ~eDa,11l e~ 1 eno1 s 7 000 
S•etra Vl~l.11.IVO BIClq 21 Ill· Reoa1nt e•lonor s 10000 
Cla•,llOOl l.IVO Bldo 2016 • RePoin1 e11erlo1 s 7 500 
l'>arur MVD Sida 261J • Reo11nt e'-ferlor s 7000 
Tucson COL Bldo 2159 • Ru1nV11cl~ce rool s 20.000 
r1ooa1es POE Silo 28J f Credenuals Booths 2064-2670. seal below arndc vJu!l~ s 15000 
AOOT S1a111w1do • Reoal1 doort. windi:iws & OIMQr e11onor lo~ures and surfaces s sooo 
AOOT S1n1ewkle • Rroillnt11eoil•I CA1CJ101 ~ut1ace5 s 10000 

TOTAL $ 420,700 

CATEGORY 4 ·MAJOR BUILDING SYSTEMS 
s1an s11oa e1e1a 11~z • Repaor venw.:i~on s~tems rn t...o locaLcns s lWOOO 
'raNIC 0Pif111,0llS V'l~nou'M! BIOQ 1•~~. Ret:iac:e Dl:l ' 5 Ten AJf;. un I s 8 000 
i\Cl"11Ul1Sll7il1cn 8101) 10D~U • HeDlilt.I! Dali! Ll'f1ter UPS s !>0.000 
EnoH;eenr111 1:111:1c 1oo.a • Recar coollno tower s J61l00 
E:no111~111g Hl~g 1oo.i • Replace baSl!ml!l\I sump cumps s 20000 
Aom1rusua11cn e:ag 10056 • Keoiaai S«Ond n01Y air nanCJler unr!s s liiOOCO 
Aommistratrcn t1I® tuu:iA • 1nslall •!10tall0n l/O.\lwes tor emernPflCV 1solat:c11 or crull~r 1000 s ~Ouuu 

1601vv~•mers.on61® luut>  1enC11ate el<!vat:H' caD ooor ccn111:rs s 1200CO 
1901 VJ ....nerson 81(lCJ IL1tX>o etla.:e tiuemeN At-IU s :!35 m m 

Avcndare ccnstructlOll uruoe ICln t6r J • Hi!ll!Jce I•( 1t10n.io nea1oun1P uM~ s 90000 
W•nSIOWMVO 61dll 3227. Ra ~CG ;: HVAr;. unrlS s 20000 
~o•auo r.~rn11na11ai V•ra 1110113185.1..raara:ie ccnooea ;me rnooerauve efl!i:!f1c.ll ana hQhllM s JO.COO 
ne<1cnia M,ur.tu11anca ancp 1:111:q J~ 19 • Reo1a:o cld HVAC ~Y1 !e.m s 10.000 



STATE OF ARIZONA 


FY 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPQRTATION FY 20 19 FINAL BUILQING RENEWAL PROJECT LIST• BY CAT~GORY 


PrQloc:I Doscrlpllon Esllmaled Cost 
f~• '"l ll'J Gl.111 Ae~l l'<r-?.3 Purrp H;u~e ..,,,_, )j5•). 111!".IJ ~ SCAO,\ SYSICIT' .! 87 GV 
K"'oman E~ll•lllt'~~• ~rJ1 ~ Sn!)D BltlQ JOJ 1 • Re.,1aC11 w.irr. ci.I 3 ICll h!!at i:ump ·"lll a r ew en: ~ 5C('~-

~~n S1rron Re~I A!eJ Pumo Hou~a B'd<1 2210 • Reot3ce 2 eac h O\Hl'IQ~ A VFO s 2() G~ , 

S1lfo1d 01~trc 1 T1J1oi r1 Perm ts Olfice Bh1:i 2tlS. Rec DCe 7 5 tcr o;n cacl• & • cc~ • lluCl·M s ~s c.;.. 
Tuc.:icn D•3t/1CI Lab ll'0'1 :? 15B. ReOldl:I! HVAC dui:11rg s 10 0,J 
T ~.;;son ccnstn.tttcn unoce Blda 21:1:. • RtW'ilce/rtlocale ca~rov HVAC units s 100 C-C1J 
u 1a ee•a Ma•nie:iarice urr11:e B•oo ~u:>::i • 11epJac:.e la~ n11 HVAC unit 5 15 oco 
Li 1a BeM t.;l"l"ll Acom ekla 20~d - Rooiace J 1c11 tieal p~mp uM 5 1 50~0 
Y•.ma t:llu•CIN!~I se,..,as s noo e100 20"J.t • Ae"~lolce 9 11·1i10':lri1~11t ~~ s ;!l)Qt() 

."O(n C:OL BICI~ ~ 1: ) • Reotdtt! l l'Xlf lefl l'tllal CUIT'05 s ~il CfltJ 

o· . 01.n PDF Nr-FTi\. 81<11121:!1 - rtec rac.e 011:111VAC un.t s n cr.o 
L • _ctai fntematcr.af POE lns~cn BIUQ :1016. Reoai: la111r a P•l cnver; s 2.5<:1J'l 
~ :.. t:1t1s 1niemator.a1 POE A<:m1n Bk!a 2675. Heel.Ice 1a11eo si:rar 1x:w~r •1We1er:; s 'l~fiCIJ 

IA•;)Q' Slilf~M(f.,. Reaa1r HVAL !'{Sff!mS s wcr.o 
ADO' Slall!>\lC:~ • Rt!Cillf HVAL hSl l!.m~ 111 MVO tudC:U><U s S(i(Q 

ADO T :ilillt"h1<1<! • H~Cat • HVAC ~·{'lotelTl!'i lll lOO llutl!MO\ s s nrn 
ADOl Stafev.1ue. flep.1~ HVAC svsrenu; in r:;Mo D1.1!<J11Qs 5 ~ Ql'.I) 

.\ QQT Slilli!'>'·ld~ • Rep,n HVAC !5'1'.llams ITT" c.t llUtlC1nQ5 ) 5GCtJ 
ADU! Slale'MCl!I • Rep,l .f HVAC svs1ems tnASD lllJ 110tOQ 3 s 5()Cil) 
1llu u r sLalewtlle • H~rair DlulT'D nQ svstems s 5Wl 
,100 r s.r..t!ew·..:i~ • R~Cil" e·ec1nc.:11s~slem!". s s c-~o 
I.I.Cu r sla1~1:l! • fHr;.aot erevalor svsiems s s C'~u 
A!Ju I :;UJICl'M~e. RClt::ltl ~n51!1"J!CC'1!:1e • <lh! r1~11.11es s 5 c-co 

TOTAL $ 1,AJ4 ,0110 

CATEGORY 5 · INTERIOR BUILDl~IG FINISHES 
T'arr" o::er~l!cns cen1~: Bog i 711 . Replace unset'\/IC.eaolo llocnno !. !>iJCOO 
Trd1f.c Ocerabcn5 Lcol~r B !~g 1111 • f{ecll •nt nair.'l/ilv 0·1 rest · octr~ e. conference ~m lio 7 t··o 
su....,cv feJm Blug Il l I· Renuva1a inlenor s 100 0C1' 
\'urra EQurpment ~eMces :>hop ero11 2034 • f'eDlll" cJ~lenoratM nocnno s 7,{J>:<l 
AOOT Slal!MlCC . RCC;J1r11eDfllt:C Cll~l!'Mlf!r. s s 000 
AOUT ~talev.ic:e • Rai:air1reo13ce noonnu s 10 ("llJll 
~· vv '-''""''"u~ • ''Vl'<>lllUIUp.J,r lt'lt:U~I 5\JHcn,..,~ ~ 10 vuu 

TOTAL $ 189,000 

CATEGORY 6 • RECONFlOURE OCCUPIED SPACE 
i:nf)lnee1111c BJ~g JC04 • Reocvilll? seoond nocr orric.es 
Ent1mHMrJ Bl<IQ fCO<I • rcencivale ru~c ncx11 reslrooms 
?<P.flesl Sl<lQ , 1; 1 • RenCVille intenor 
l'ac;11t~e5 MM~tl~fl1enl 81flg I.CO:?. R,nc;vare OUIDul room a AHU 
Admm1~1r.1ucn 1:1100 ICO:lA • Renova le noMensl resuooms 
Aem1•1slral!on t!IO<l 1co~A • flenovaro Human Reso11rc.es areas lor aba1ement er as~slos ce11tnt1 
Aom1ni1irar1011 Bio~ HJO!iA • Renovn1e IC1TT1er constr & t.'la1r11 ate.is rot aoatemenl of ~$oe$f:)~ ce11:111:1 
Admln111ra11on 1:11a~ 100~0 • AenovaUl Fmanaa1 Manacemenl :.erv1t!!s a•e.as 
::n1nfe 11.IVD a :o11 J62l • Reoiace olp moaular V.ll/I useo !Rlm Flaastall 
1.1rav r,'(:uniam Oe-1c.er Star.iae Bloa 3207 • Oe!llGn ra~al/'I 
E Flaq~i.an ue-1cer f!Jdn 3837 • uesllltl for fl!Pa B 
~·11111a~ a...1cer DICla 31 15. Oes1gn lor re11a-o 
Jaciill La~e oe.c.er B~tld nn BIOIJ ;s225 • o es111n JOf rep;irs 
llllhlf•elO Deicer r.lalenars ::>eoraoe oKia 3208 • Oe!l11n le< 1eoa1n; 
snow Low 1,;onstl"J.!Cl;on erao 36J4 • R101aca oro omce 1ra1:ers v.1111 uSl!il moQular 11om tr.J!llit31f 
Keams 1.;an)1ln oeic.er t:llOQ l~21 • oeslQn ror reDalf 
w::ICDl'll oe-icer S1or3ae Bica Ji e~ • oesicn fer rvoai1 
Supano1 MJ•nlen311ee oe1CJ!r r.talcnais B log 2l9J • oes1qn tcr repa1r1reolac111nen1 
viol'& MamicnanCI! De-ICllt Shoo Bloa n. t 7 • uesmn ror r11oa1~ 
0 cl!e Mo1nfon."111eo Snnd Blda 208 r • Reco11rqut11 ctt-li room 10 acccfTlmodDle ae1$Ql'l1et 
G11a Bl!NS M.ltn11!1l<lllUt m.,.... 81QQ ~u:i:i. Renovate DUJf(llnCJ 
AOOT "'-~ICYlr.l~ • Perform qenera1 ~Patr'$ 

TOTAL 

s JOO llt.'1 
s 11!011110 
s 60 000 
s 180 coo 
s 97.800 
s J80 000 
s ?IS CiOll 
s 550 ODO 
s ~0000 

s 6.~00 

s 6 500 
s 15Coo 
s 6 500 
s 15 000 
s 50 000 
s 12..500 
s 6000 
s 25 00() 
s Ii :.OU 

s 50000 
s 60000 
s 5 GOU 

$ 2.279,300 

CATEGORY 7 ·ADA COMPLIANCE 

AOu 1 :;1a1ew.:io • AOA comol1arce rep;i .1~1 e11ovaliOll~ 
 s 5CCU 
La~e H.ivas.i CllV MVO B:da JOO:! • lf\Stlll ADA sulOITlilllC elect Ott;!nerr. IOI anuvle•ll cocr3 s 1HOO 
T.....<Cf\ ~IQll,)l MVO s te :?5!1- Re'Qr'...11e ADA D<Jlk1rQ ICI ~·el'I • •e-o.>•e•te-SlnPt? 5 10 CCU 

TOTAL $ J0.000 

CATEGORY B ·INFRASTRUCTURE 
::iurvcy t eJm S11 e o, J • RCE!!t: 2a1e ana oo.?!ldr s Wt•:O 
i'am ni $1r~llon BlcJa S•tf! OOS • Rc~n.:11 & re~tr.co w1,.1h oan.1"1!'1101 OJ'1emer~ 
L<nl;i A111e100t Ma•n~nance nra 5,1e 43,i. m1cra:e fe~:nne10ano1seclte1o.1nk5 

s 
s 

sri<;o 
1 ~0 01:c 

http:Flaq~i.an
http:Oe-1c.er
http:Reso11rc.es
http:orric.es


STATE OF ARIZONA 


FY 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMIHIT PLA~' 


DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FY 201!) FINAL 6UILOlllG RENEWAL PROJECT UST. av CATEGORY 


frojocl Oescrlplion E5timilled Co51 

~•sn Crfo:'i< 1.1a1·1~nO!llc.e Ya'1l 5112 2JJ. Rec race tailinCJ w.ller l ino? t~rhffn ""'' nc1;se & sneo s u()('() 
Tucson Gr:inr R:iac Yatu i> 11 e :?9J • Rcoair1Mc~1 1orrr est ror unt:erqrouna larclul oa•~s s uOdO 
1oncpa~ t.1all'llC1tanc.e Y~ra Site 2 15 . P~nonn e1e-:1nc.:i1 s•fSl~m rei:aors s 'l~OCO 
Sa r.~ro MVD Sile 259 • Ae~a1 ill1a res~ioo c:iar1<1'lg 101 s I~ OCO 
ll011a11n PO.: ::;.1e Ml· lle~m oa•e ain1rr.1;1rl!-teed electnc seMce s 15 000 
AllUT s1 a 1 ~1ae - Reoair oa11< 11111 I04 o.1vemc111S1dlrt1onrvsrnr.1na s 10000 
AcJU oSll!U!w1dd· Rep;ur rentu\O aales & c.imerW311> s I01n 
AO•:l r SIAl~'~ae - Heoair slle v.<!;1s. waler, ana wa~1e-wa1er s·1s1ern oe11ci<:no~ s 10000 

IUfAl. s 246,000 

TOTA!. OF ALL PROJECTS REQUESTED 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT 

5 
5 

5.080,000 
70.000 

CONTIMGEHCY s 100 000 
I U I AL Ji\U I~~"':!~~~ rUNU:::> s 5,250,000 

RECAP 
CATEGORY 1 • FIREJLIFEJSAFETY s 219 000 
CA TEGORY 2 • ROOFS s 262.000 
CATEGORY 3 ·PRESERVATION OF ASSET s 420.700 
CA TEGORY 4 • MAJOR BUl!.OING SYSTEMS s 1.43.&.000 
CATEGORY 5 · INTERIOR BUILDING FINISHES s 109.000 
CATEGORY G·RECONFIGURE OR REMODEL s 2.279.JOO 
CATEGORY 7 ·ADA COMPLIANCE s 30.000 
CATEGORY O·INFRASTRUCTURE! $ 246.000 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT s 70.000 
COt1T1NGENCY $ 100.000 

IU I Al. s 5,250.000 



STATE OF ARIZOtlA 


FY 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT ATlml FY 2019 FlnAL BUILDING RENEWAL PROJECT LIST· BY CATEGORY 


P roject Oc,crlplion Eslimatod Cost I 

lsrATE AVIATION FUND 

CATEGORY 1 ·FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY 
G• ~nd Canvon Auoon Sile -16J • Rec air fire"'""" & ~oon~lcr ~v~leins 

G Ind Can1ton A11oc11 S11e J u) • /lb3lu ast!stn~ lead oa rt! !I environmcrm11 hJ:.:111fo 
s 
s 

TOTAL 5 

Iii' ,-. 

10 

26.000 

s 4 000 
$ 4.000 

CATEGORY J ·PRESERVATION OF ASSET 
Gr Jrd Carven A1rncrt Res~~nce~ B.dca J7 IO·J12 I • R~:i•lfc@ 1011ea on1rv & teJr ~1au s 5 900CO 

C,rJrd C~r. ·1on ArroM S le 4EJ Raca1nl/1ac;i1r u1erlcr sut!ilca ~ 5 70C-O 
lv'J~a 1,;ar-von Airpon Sile 11ll. R ~ci.tm tec311 \•rnoo...-s s ~000 

TOTAL s 102,000 

CATEGORY 4 ·MAJOR BUILDING SYSTEMS 
Grona 1.:an' 'Cn Al<W:1 li.r~ ·11lJ • Reca1r e•e-:(ncal 5·11• .. n•s s )000 

s 10 OU:J 
!Grano c~nicn A.rco!1 S1~~ ·16J • R~ca:rc11 =•nl) 
l.ll'l!no cim;'!;n Am:xirt S11a 4cJ . Heo.wrre~ta:c 11v~c s ,..,~.,.~ 

5 10 oon 
Cil'iiii·l Can·f';n ;I;·~· ;:>HC' ~0- . rL'-'" ' ~lt:•dh, I ~ ~.l.iCV 

TOTAL s 28,000 

CATEGORY 5 ·INTERIOR 6U1LOl~IG FINISHES 
C ·.ir;d C-i.,vcn ,\ ,Jt><lll S.tc 463 - R~cr~~e!r eol• l!oc•"'·~ s 15 coo 

s IO CCO 
Gra~C Clll\~1:11 Alfl)Cll :>1te 4')J • Rooa1r ADA 
C1an:1 Ct1'lvcn A.rccn S110 4GJ. R1tll3 rV1eo;i.1 rie -c, 

5 !> OC-0 
IUfAL $ J0,000 

rATECORY 7 ·ADA 

CATEGORY 8·INFRA~1 RUCTURE 
Grana Cilllvon A.irPC<t Site 4uJ. 1<1~oa 1r'1ei;1ace vr.11~1 e. waste w.11er 1.,,.1ems :. 10 000 
Grano Can~on fl1rt:'Ctf Siie 46) • Rcoaor11eo1ace Pi•1emonUS1CG'ii<llk!.IS1Qna~e 5 20.000 
orano C3Man Arll.'Cf1 S•ll! 463. R~oa1ruepliJCe fem:t?. oa1es & 1J•me1walls :5 ~a.coo 

I U IAI. s so.ooo 

s 2-12 000 

5 242.000 

RECAP 
CATEGORY 1 • FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY 28,000 

s 4.000CATEGORY 2 ·ROOFS ' 
s 102.000CATEGORY J ·PRESERVATION OF ASStt 
s 28.000 CATEGORY 4 ·MAJOR BUILDING SYSTEMS 
s 30.000CATEGORY 5 ·INTERIOR BUILDING FINISl1ES 

CATEGORY 6 • RECONFIGURE OCCUPIED SPACE 
CATEGORY 7 ·ADA 
CATEGORY 8 ·INFRASTRUCTURE s 50,000 
CONTINGENCY IProlctl Manacomanll 

IUIAL.l $ 2J2,000 


	092018 CAPITAL REVIEW (JCCR).1.2R.pdf
	Joint Committee on Capital Review




